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Chairman’s Statement
ERERE

To our Shareholders

In 2014, the Group reported a profit attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$238,077,000, a
144.84% increase from HK$97,238,000 recorded
a year ago. This significant increase in profit was
mainly attributable to a HK$117,313,000 increase in
gain arising on change in fair value upon conversion
of convertible notes receivable from China Star
Entertainment Limited and EDS Wellness Holdings
Limited (“EDS Wellness”, stock code: 8176) and a
gain of HK$66,883,000 arising on disposal of part of
our investment in China Star Cultural Media Group
Limited, which are partially offset by an impairment
loss of HK$46,519,000 recognised in respect of an
amount receivable by EDS Wellness.

2014 was a period of significant change for us. During
the year, we executed a number of strategic initiatives
to diversify our businesses and broaden our revenue
base. They are (i) the expansion into sale of beauty
products and provision of therapy services business
by converting the convertible notes issued by EDS
Wellness and EDS Wellness has become our 70.18%
owned subsidiary, (ii) the expansion into design and
sale of jewelry business and (iii) the entering into of
a conditional sale and purchase agreement with a
company listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange relating to the proposed acquisition
of the entire issued share capital of a target company
and the assignment of the shareholder’s loan due
by the target company for the purpose of expanding
our property investment into Beijing. In addition,
we entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party relating
to the proposed acquisition of a 74.63% interest in
the issued share capital of a company listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange in February 2015. The proposed acquisition
of the controlling stake in the company involves the
acquisition of its remaining business together with
the utilisation of its listing status for financing our
business expansion into food and beverage business.
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The performance of EDS Wellness was not satisfactory
and incurred a loss of HK$47,043,000 during the six
months ended 31 December 2014. The unsatisfactory
performance of EDS Wellness is due to the detrimental
factors affecting the local retail market, including the
slowdown of the growth of Mainland China visitors
to Hong Kong and the weakening of Mainland China
tourists’ spending power. We believe that the sluggish
operating environment of EDS Wellness persists for a
period of time. With a view to improve its profitability,
EDS Wellness entered into a conditional subscription
agreement with six subscribers relating to the
proposed subscription of new ordinary shares and
convertible preferred shares of EDS Wellness on 17
February 2015. We believe that the entering into of the
conditional subscription agreement represents a good
opportunity for EDS Wellness to (i) raise additional
funds for future business development in certain new
business developments in a segment difference from
the existing business of EDS Wellness and (ii) leverage
the expertise and business network of one of the
subscribers to take advantage of the expected strong
growth in the new business. Upon completion of the
proposed subscription, we are deemed to dispose of a
substantial percentage in our shareholding interest in
EDS Wellness and EDS Wellness will cease to be our
subsidiary. Following the completion of the proposed
subscription, we will realise our investment in EDS
Wellness as and when appropriate to take profit.

The economic outlook for 2015 remains uncertain as
the biggest test in 2015 is how the world reacts to
higher interest rates in the world’s largest economy,
the United States of America. To cope with the
uncertain economic outlook, we continuously review
our business operation to ensure a lean overhead
and cost effective operating structure and cautiously
identify potential investment targets for expanding
new business activities.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to extend
our appreciation to all fellow directors and employees
for their invaluable efforts, dedication and commitment
to the Group and to thank all shareholders and
business associates for their continuous support.

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis —

EHE RS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

On 11 June 2014, the Group disposed of the entire
issued share capital of Rich Daily Group Limited
(“Rich Daily”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. The principal activity of Rich Daily is the
provision of management services. Accordingly, the
results of Rich Daily are presented separately as
discontinued operations.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2014 from
continuing and discontinued operations amounted
to HK$238,077,000, a 144.84% increase from
HK$97,238,000 for the previous year.

Results of continuing operations

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
recorded a revenue of HK$110,755,000, a 329.40%
increase from HK$25,793,000 for the previous year.
The significant increase in turnover was attributable
to the active expansion of the Group’s money lending
business in the second half of 2013 and the first half
of 2014, the consolidation of the financial results of
EDS Wellness Holdings Limited (“EDS Wellness”,
stock code: 8176) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “EDS Wellness Group”) since 2 July 2014 and the
commencement of a new business, namely design and
sale of jewelry products, in October 2014. Of the total
turnover, HK$78,316,000 was generated from money
lending, HK$22,084,000 was generated from sale of
beauty products and provision of therapy services,
HK$14,273,000 was generated from sale of jewelry
products and a loss of HK$3,918,000 was generated
from sale of financial assets. Profit for the year from
continuing operations amounted to HK$225,147,000,
an increase of 123.93% as compared with
HK$100,543,000 for the previous year. This increase
was mainly attributable to a HK$117,313,000
increase in gain arising on change in fair value upon
conversion of convertible notes receivables and a gain
of HK$66,883,000 arising on disposal of available-
for-sale financial assets, which are partially offset by
an impairment loss of HK$46,519,000 recognised in
respect of other receivables.

Gross profit and gross profit margin for sale of beauty
products and provision of therapy services in the year
ended 31 December 2014 were HK$6,929,000 and
31.38% respectively. Gross profit and gross profit
margin for sale of jewelry products in the year ended
31 December 2014 were HK$2,427,000 and 17.00%
respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Investment and other income decreased by 91.14%
from HK$42,955,000 in the year ended 31 December
2013 to HK$3,805,000 in the current financial year.
This decrease was attributable to the absence of the
dividend income of HK$36,479,000 received from
China Star Entertainment Limited (“China Star”, stock
code: 326) in May 2013.

Other gains and losses represent items of income and
expenses, which are material and/or extraordinary
in nature. Major items of other gains and losses
recorded by the Group during the year are as follows:

(a)

On 28 March 2014, the Group converted the
remaining principal amount of HK$225,000,000
of the 8% convertible notes issued by China Star
(the “China Star 8% CNSs”) into 2,045,454,545
new shares in China Star at the adjusted
conversion price of HK$0.11 per share. Given
that the market value of the 2,045,454,545 new
shares in China Star valued at the closing price of
HK$0.151 per share on 28 March 2014, being the
date of conversion, exceeded the fair value of the
relevant debt and conversion option components
of the China Star 8% CNs by HK$28,461,000,
a gain of HK$28,461,000 arising on change in
fair value upon conversion of convertible notes
receivables was recognised. On 2 July 2014,
the Group converted the principal amount of
HK$25,000,000 of the zero coupon convertible
notes issued by EDS Wellness (the “EDS
Wellness CNs”) into 25,000,000 new shares in
EDS Wellness at the initial conversion price of
HK$1.00 per share. As the market value of the
25,000,000 new shares in EDS Wellness valued
at the closing price of HK$3.4905 per share
on 2 July 2014, being the date of conversion,
exceeded the fair value of the relevant debt
and conversion option components of the EDS
Wellness CNs by HK$61,846,000, a gain of
HK$61,846,000 arising on change in fair value
upon conversion of convertible notes receivables
was further recognised. On 30 September 2014,
the Group converted the remaining principal
amount of HK$15,000,000 of the EDS Wellness
CNs into 15,000,000 new shares in EDS Wellness
at the initial conversion price of HK$1.00 per
share. Given that the market value of the
15,000,000 new shares in EDS Wellness valued
at the closing price of HK$3.95 on 30 September
2014, being the date of conversion, exceeded
the fair value of the relevant debt and conversion
option components of the EDS Wellness CNs
by HK$43,452,000, a gain of HK$43,452,000
arising on change in fair value upon conversion
of convertible notes receivables was further
recognised.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERBHWRER 2R

On 15 April 2014 and 17 June 2014, China
Star Cultural Media Group Limited (“China
Star Cultural”, stock code: 8172 and formerly
known as China Media and Films Holdings
Limited), a then associate of the Group, allotted
and issued 100,000,000 and 300,000,000 new
shares respectively. As a result, the Group’s
shareholding interest in China Star Cultural was
diluted from 29.00% to 16.19%. The Group was
deemed to dispose of a 12.81% shareholding
interest in China Star Cultural and ceased to have
significant influence over China Star Cultural.
The Group has accounted for the remaining
16.19% shareholding interest in China Star
Cultural as available-for-sale investment whose
fair value at 17 June 2014 was HK$52,790,000
and recognised a gain on deemed disposal of an
associate of HK$7,669,000.

On 30 May 2014, Koffman Corporate Service
Limited (“Koffman”), a Hong Kong private
company, early redeemed the zero coupon
convertible notes of HK$27,000,000 (the
“Koffman CNs”) issued to the Group at par and
a gain on early redemption of convertible notes
receivables of HK$1,611,000 was recognised.

During the year, the China Star 8% CNs, the EDS
Wellness CNs and the Koffman CNs generated
imputed interest income of HK$7,686,000 to the
Group, representing a decrease of 79.90% from
HK$38,233,000 for the year ended 31 December
2013. Such decrease was attributable to the full
conversion of the China Star 8% CNs and the
EDS Wellness CNs and the early redemption of
the Koffman CNs during the year.

On 19 December 2014, the Group disposed of
75,800,000 shares in China Star Cultural in a
series of transactions on open market for an
aggregate net proceeds of HK$94,172,000,
representing an average selling price of
HK$1.2468 per share and recognised a gain of
HK$66,883,000 on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets.

Given that (i) Mr. Shum Yeung (“Mr. Shum?”)
failed to settle the judgment debt and the
accrued interest in the aggregate amount of
HK$46,519,000 under the Judgement in High
Court Action No. 1775 of 2012 and commenced
various legal actions to prevent EDS Wellness
from recovering the judgment debt and the
accrued interest including a fresh legal action
as announced by EDS Wellness on 23 January
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Management Discussion and Analysis

2015, (ii) it was unclear whether and when EDS
Wellness would be able to receive the judgment
debt and the accrued interest in full from
selling (1) the charged shares in Mr. Shum'’s
companies, and (2) the charged properties as
those properties were held by Mr. Shum and
another individual as joint tenants and subject
to mortgages and EDS Wellness did not have
the information of the financial status of Mr.
Shum and his companies, the amount of Mr.
Shum'’s interest in the charged properties and the
outstanding loan amounts under the mortgages,
and (iii) the ability of Dutfield International
Group Limited (“Dutfield”) as guarantor to
Mr. Shum to fulfill its obligations under the
guarantee depended on the outcome of the legal
proceedings for, inter alia, its claim for the sum
of HK$141,360,000 under a loan agreement but
Dutfield failed to obtain a summary judgment
against the debtor and the outcome of the legal
proceedings is uncertain, an impairment loss of
HK$46,519,000 in respect of other receivables
was recognised at the end of the reporting
period.

(g) At the end of the reporting period, the Group
revalued its equities portfolio at market prices
and recognised a gain of HK$27,483,000 arising
on change in fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

Selling and distribution expenses mainly represented
advertising and promotion expenses incurred for
the EDS Wellness Group’s personal care products
under the brand name “Evidens de Beauté”, and staff
costs of sales team and overseas travelling expenses
incurred by the Group’s design and sale of jewelry
business.

Administrative expenses (before depreciation)
amounted to HK$50,395,000 for the year ended
31 December 2014, a 0.99% increase from
HK$49,902,000 for the previous year. After adjusting
for the loss on disposal of investment properties
of HK$13,000,000 recorded in 2013, administrative
expenses (before depreciation) for the year increased
by 36.56% as compared to the previous year. This
increase was mainly attributable to a HK$10,159,000
increase in directors’ emoluments and the general
increase in administrative expenses resulted from
the acquisition of EDS Wellness in July 2014 and the
commencement of design and sale of jewelry products
business in October 2014.

THEWE S

EWIEHBABEERRFANEBRA
ZE AAZEVEHRNEERS
ATUBEBRBALTREE  UHEIR
18 MEDS Wellnesst Eit £ R H
AR ZHEMRR - HEERCKBHE
ZRESEREBTHREZERSHE
Z & ® - K (i) Dutfield International
Group Limited ([ Dutfield 1) #E &L %&£
BITERTERZERAZEN KT
WEBRERBET &2 141,360,000 %
THRBZEERF2& R - H#Dutfield
TREEBE S HRHEHARF  AE
BREZE&RER  REBEHR 2BR
2 H fth FE U FOR B B 18 5 46,519,000 7

JG °

(@ RBEHR AEERHTEEGHHERE
REMES UMBEQIFEFAESR
RCERMEELATEHEDELE ZWSE
27,483,000 T ©

EERDHEBEXEEIEEDS WellnessE B

[Evidens de Beauté |RIEEAEEERFE

SrEEREERER  URAKKERTREE

%i%ﬁﬁﬁ%iiﬁ%%%lﬁiﬁ&ﬁ%%
H o

HE-Z—NFE+-A=1+—BLEE  TH
X (3TEAT) £50,395,000/8 T BEEMN
49,902,000 T MM0.99% - EH —_FT—=
FHREBPNHEREYE ZEE 13,000,000
TTEHAREZ  FRATHEHIGTERN)REE
1 1hN136.56% ° ZIBEMEBEHEZEE S 1 0
10,159,000/8 ' YRS —NF+ BB
EDS Wellness EZ{TIBI X B2 40 - LUK
RIE-—NF+ AHRKERTREEKREE
MEFEFTE -

KEHMREERAT
B _NEEH



10

Management Discussion and Analysis —
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For the period from 1 January 2014 to 17 June 2014,
being the date on which China Star Cultural ceased
to be an associate of the Group, China Star Cultural
and its subsidiaries reported a consolidated loss of
HK$1,510,000 and contributed a loss of HK$555,000
to the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, Spark Concept
Group Limited (“Spark Concept”), an associate of the
Group, and its subsidiaries reported a consolidated
loss of HK$920,000. As the Group’s share of post-
acquisition losses equals to its interests in Spark
Concept, no further share of loss was recognised.

Finance costs represented imputed interest on
promissory notes, interest on finance leases and
interest on loan incurred by the EDS Wellness Group.

Results of discontinued operations

Profit for the year from discontinued operations
amounted to HK$153,000, whereas a loss of
HK$3,306,000 was recorded in the previous year. The
turnaround in the performance of the provision of
management services business was attributable to the
absence of the impairment loss recognised in respect
of intangible assets of HK$3,793,000 recorded in the
previous year.

Liquidity and financial resources

During the year, the Group funded its operations
through a combination of cash generated from
operations, equity attributable to owners of
the Company and issue of new shares. Equity
attributable to owners of the Company increased
from HK$1,825,372,000 at 31 December 2013 to
HK$2,144,651,000 at 31 December 2014.

At 31 December 2014, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to HK$384,778,000 (2013:
HK$662,153,000).

At 31 December 2014, the Group had outstanding
borrowings of HK$10,374,000 (2013: Nil) representing
(i) the liability component of HK$6,069,000 in respect
of two promissory notes in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$6,420,000 issued by EDS Wellness
which are non-interest bearing, unsecured and
maturing on 30 June 2015, (ii) a loan of HK$1,400,000
advanced by an independent third party which is
non-interest bearing, unsecured and repayable on
demand, (iii) a loan of HK$2,450,000 advanced by
Koffman Investment Limited, a company which is 50%
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owned by Mr. Yu Zhen Hua Johnny (the chairman and
a director of EDS Wellness), which is interest bearing
at 5.00% per annum, unsecured and maturing on 25
August 2015 and (iv) the obligations under finance
leases of HK$455,000 of which (1) HK$435,000 is
interest bearing at 3.00% per annum and secured by
a guarantee from Hong Kong Government, a joint and
several guarantee from a director of a subsidiary and
an independent third party and the Group’s title to
the leased assets, and (2) HK$20,000 is non-interest
bearing and secured by the Group’s title to the leased
assets.

Gearing ratio

At 31 December 2014, the gearing ratio calculated
as a percentage of total borrowings over equity
attributable to owners of the Company was 0.48%
(2013: Nil). The increase in gearing ratio was due to
the borrowings acquired through the acquisition of
ESD Wellness during the year.

Net current assets and current ratio

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s net current
assets and current ratio were HK$1,695,226,000
(2013: HK$1,146,744,000) and 20.52 (2013: 44.94),
respectively.

Capital structure

On 4 March 2014, the Company allotted and issued
91,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each at a price
of HK$0.78 per share to four individual and two
corporate investors, who/which and its ultimate
beneficial owners are independent third parties, by
way of placing of new shares under general mandate
raising HK$70,190,000 (net of expenses) for financing
the Group’s money lending business. The closing
price of the Company’s shares was HK$0.94 per share
as quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 20 February 2014,
being the date of the placing agreement. The net price
to the Company of each new share was HK$0.7713.
The directors considered that the placing presented
an opportunity for the Company to raise additional
funds for the operations of the Group’s money lending
business while broadening the shareholder base of
the Company.
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Use of proceeds from fund raising activities

(a)

On 24 January 2013, the Company raised
HK$29,931,000 by way of placing of 47,000,000
new shares under general mandate at a price
of HK$0.645 per share. The net proceeds from
the placing of HK$29,931,000 are intended
to be used for property investment in Hong
Kong in order to enrich the Group’s investment
property portfolio. At 31 December 2014, the net
proceeds from the placing have not been applied
as intended and are placed as interest bearing
deposits with a licensed bank in Hong Kong.

On 26 April 2013, the Company raised
HK$180,277,000 by way of open offer of
152,224,414 new shares to the qualified
shareholders of the Company at a subscription
price of HK$1.20 per share. The net proceeds
from the open offer of HK$180,277,000 were
applied as to (i) HK$100,277,000 for financing the
granting of two loans pursuant to the two loan
agreements dated 13 May 2013 and 3 June 2013,
(i) HK$40,000,000 for financing the subscription
of the convertible notes issued by EDS Wellness
on 22 May 2014 and (iii) HK$40,000,000 for
financing the granting of an unsecured loan to
EDS Wellness on 23 May 2014.

On 4 March 2014, the Company raised
HK$70,190,000 by way of placing of 91,000,000
new shares under general mandate at a price of
HK$0.78 per share. The net proceeds from the
placing of HK$70,190,000 were fully utilised for
financing the granting of a loan pursuant to a
loan agreement dated 6 March 2014.

Material acquisitions

During the year, the Group had the following material
acquisitions:

(@)

On 28 March 2014, the Group converted the
remaining principal amount of HK$225,000,000 of
the China Star 8% CNs into 2,045,454,545 new
shares in China Star at the adjusted conversion
price of HK$0.11 per share. The conversion
constitutes a very substantial acquisition of the
Company under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) and was approved by the shareholders at
the Company’s special general meeting held on
30 June 2011.
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(b)

(d)
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On 22 May 2014, the Group subscribed for
the EDS Wellness CNs of HK$40,000,000 at
their face value pursuant to the conditional
subscription agreement dated 21 March 20183.
The subscription constitutes a discloseable
transaction of the Company under the Listing
Rules and was announced by the Company on 21
March 2013.

On 2 July 2014, the Group converted the
principal amount of HK$25,000,000 of the EDS
Wellness CNs into 25,000,000 new shares in
EDS Wellness at the initial conversion price of
HK$1.00 per share pursuant to the irrevocable
undertaking dated 25 June 2014. As a result
of the conversion, EDS Wellness became a
65.58% owned subsidiary of the Company. The
conversion constitutes a discloseable transaction
of the Company under the Listing Rules and was
announced by the Company on 21 March 2013.

On 22 July 2014, the Group subscribed for
12,500,000 new shares in EDS Wellness under
the open offer announced by EDS Wellness on
25 June 2014 at a subscription price of HK$3.00
per share (the “EDS Open Offer”) pursuant to
the irrevocable undertaking given by the Group
to EDS Wellness and the underwriter on 25
June 2014. The EDS Open Offer was completed
on 11 August 2014. The Group’s shareholding
interest in EDS Wellness maintained at 65.58%
immediately after the completion of the EDS
Open Offer. The subscription constitutes a
discloseable transaction of the Company under
the Listing Rules and was announced by the
Company on 25 June 2014.

On 30 September 2014, the Group converted the
remaining principal amount of HK$15,000,000
of the EDS Wellness CNs into 15,000,000 new
shares in EDS Wellness at the initial conversion
price of HK$1.00 per share. As a result of the
conversion, the Group’s shareholding interest
in EDS Wellness has increased to 70.18%. The
conversion constitutes a discloseable transaction
of the Company under the Listing Rules and was
announced by the Company on 21 March 2013.

(b)

(e)
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Material disposals

During the year, the Group had the following material
disposals:

(@)

(b)

On 15 April 2014, China Star Cultural allotted and
issued 100,000,000 new shares by way of placing
of new shares under general mandate and the
Group’s shareholding interest in China Star
Cultural was diluted from 29.00% to 24.21%. On
17 June 2014, China Star Cultural further allotted
and issued another 300,000,000 new shares
by way of placing of new shares under specific
mandate and the Group’s shareholding interest
in China Star Cultural was further diluted from
24.21% to 16.19%. As a result, the Group was
deemed to dispose of a 12.81% shareholding
interest in China Star Cultural and China Star
Cultural ceased to be an associate of the Group
on 17 June 2014.

In April 2014, the Group disposed of 321,600,000
shares in China Star at an average price of
HK$0.1358 per share pursuant to the 12-month
mandate granted to the directors by the
shareholders on 28 June 2013. The disposal
constitutes a very substantial disposal of the
Company under the Listing Rules and was
approved by the shareholders at the Company’s
special general meeting held on 28 June 2013.

On 30 May 2014, Koffman early redeemed the
Koffman CNs of HK$27,000,000 issued to the
Group at par.

On 11 June 2014, the Group disposed of the
entire issued share capital of Rich Daily to Mr.
Ng Cheuk Fai, an independent third party, at
a consideration of HK$2,000,000 pursuant to
the conditional sale and purchase agreement
dated 30 May 2014. The disposal constitutes a
discloseable transaction of the Company under
the Listing Rules and was announced by the
Company on 30 May 2014.
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(e) On 19 December 2014, the Group disposed of
75,800,000 shares in China Star Cultural in a
series of transactions on open market for an
aggregate net sale proceeds of HK$94,172,000.
The disposal constitutes a discloseable
transaction of the Company under the Listing
Rules and was announced on 19 December 2014.

Pledge of assets

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s restricted bank
deposits of HK$19,701,000 (2013: Nil) were deposits
held at banks in respect of credit card and instalment
sales arrangement of its sale of beauty products and
provision of therapy services business. In addition, the
Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured
by the Group’s title to the leased assets, which have
a carrying amount of HK$363,000 (2013: Nil).

Material commitments

At 31 December 2014, the Group had a total
commitment of HK$1,959,000,000 (2013:
HK$408,852,000) relating to:

(@) the subscription of the second tranche of
convertible notes to be issued by China Star in
the principal amount of HK$300,000,000 pursuant
to the conditional subscription agreement
dated 21 January 2011 (as amended by the
supplemental agreements dated 28 March 2011,
29 June 2012 and 31 December 2013). The
subscription of the second tranche of convertible
notes is conditional upon the fulfillment of the
conditions precedent set out in the conditional
subscription agreement, including the availability
of sufficient fund by the Company. On 29 June
2012, the completion date of subscription was
extended from 30 June 2012 to 31 December
2013. On 31 December 2013, the completion
date of subscription was further extended from
31 December 2013 to 31 December 2015;
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(b) loans commitment in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$9,000,000 pursuant to the building
mortgages and the loan agreements entered into
between the Group and its customers; and

() the consideration of HK$1,650,000,000
for the proposed acquisition of the entire
shareholding interest in a target company
and the assignment of the shareholder’s loan
due by the target company (the “Proposed
Acquisition”) pursuant to a conditional sale
and purchase agreement entered into between
the Company as purchaser, a vendor, a wholly
owned subsidiary of a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (the “Main
Board Listed Company”), as vendor and the
Main Board Listed Company as guarantor on
11 December 2014. The consideration shall be
settled as to (i) HK$600,000,000 by cash and
(i) HK$1,050,000,000 by the issue of a share
entitlement note, which entitles the holder
thereof to call for the allotment and issue of
1,500,000,000 new shares in Company at a
price of HK$0.70 per share, to the Main Board
Listed Company. The Proposed Acquisition is
conditional upon the fulfillment and/or waiver (as
the case may be) of the conditions precedent
set out in the conditional sale and purchase
agreement.

Exchange risk and hedging

As the majority of the Group’s transactions, assets
and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars
and United States Dollars. Accordingly, no financial
instruments for hedging purposes have been used by
the Group.
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Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2014, the Group had the following
material contingent liabilities:

(@)

(b)

On 15 April 2010, a claim was brought by China
Finance & Assets Management Limited (“China
Finance”) in High Court Action No. 526 of 2010
against Rexdale Investment Limited (“Rexdale”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
for failing to pay a service fee in the sum of
HK$25,000,000 to China Finance. No provision
for the claim was made in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014 as Lafe Corporation
Limited has undertaken to indemnify and keep
indemnified the Group against any and all losses,
claims, damages, penalties, actions, demands,
proceeding, judgment and costs arising from or
in connection with the claim.

On 20 March 2014, the Company announced
that it came to its attention that a writ (the
“Writ 1”) of summons in High Court Action No.
9 of 2014 was issued by The Grande Holdings
Limited (in liquidation), Roderick John Sutton
(as joint and several provisional liquidator of
The Grande Holdings Limited), Fok Hei Yu
(as joint and several provisional liquidator of
The Grande Holdings Limited) and 65 other
companies listed as plaintiffs against 25
defendants inclusive of One Synergy Limited
(“One Synergy”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. One Synergy has, as at the date
of this annual report, not been served with the
Writ 1.

The action alleges, inter alia, that One Synergy
is liable to the plaintiffs as a constructive trustee
and/or by way of equitable compensation and/
or an accounts of profits and/or restitution and/
or damages as a knowing recipient and/or by
reason of the knowing or dishonest assistance in
the breaches of trust and/or breaches of fiduciary
duties by various of the defendants and/or by
reason of dealings between One Synergy and the
plaintiffs otherwise being voidable (and avoided),
void, unlawful or illegal, in respect of its receipt
of the shares in The Grande Properties Ltd. (now
known as Rexdale).
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Riche (BVI) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, acquired the entire issued share
capital of Adelio Holdings Limited, which is the
holding company of One Synergy, from Vartan
Holdings Limited, an independent third party,
pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement
dated 25 May 2011. One Synergy acquired the
entire issued share capital of Rexdale from Lafe
Corporation Limited, being one of the defendants,
pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement
dated 31 December 2010 (the “Agreement”).
The entire issued share capital of Rexdale was
sold by The Grande (Nominees) Ltd., being one
of the plaintiffs, and The Grand Limited to Lafe
Corporation Limited on or about 29 June 2007.
The principal assets of Rexdale were the whole
of the 1st floor and the flat roof, the whole
of 6th to 12th floors, roof, external walls, two
lavatories, three lorry parking spaces and eight
private car parking spaces on the ground floor
of an industrial building located in Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong with a total gross floor of
approximately 139,412 square feet exclusive of
lavatories, lorry and private car parking spaces,
flat roof and roof (collectively, the “Kwun Tong
Properties”). The Kwun Tong Properties was
sold by Rexdale to Grand Reward Limited, an
independent third party, in July 2013.

One Synergy has sought counsel opinion on
the Writ 1 and has been advised to defend the
plaintiffs’ claim in the said action. Counsel has
advised that, based upon available evidence,
there is nothing unusual in the Agreement and
One Synergy would not have any express or
constructive notice of the plaintiffs’ alleged
irregularities and/or fraudulent acts of the former
directors and/or management officers of the
plaintiffs and One Synergy should not be held
liable to any part of the plaintiffs’ claim and has
good and valid defence thereto.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 28 April 2014, EDS Wellness received a writ
of summons (the “Writ 2”) from the People’s
Court of Huadu District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province of the People’s Republic of
China (the “Huadu People’s Court”).

Pursuant to the two writs of civil proceedings
(the “Writs of Civil Proceedings”) enclosed with
the Writ 2, the plaintiff EMMERYEEERES
FR A & (Guangzhou Yiying Property Management
Services Co. Ltd.) (“Yiying”), a property
management company, alleges that, among
others, ()E M ™ H & & % B IR 2 7 (Guangzhou
Yaji Properties Co. Ltd.) (“Yaji”) has defaulted
in payment of the management fees and utilities
and miscellaneous fees in the aggregate amount
of RMB2,868,000 (equivalent to HK$3,622,000) in
respect of certain commercial properties owned
by Yaji in Huadu District, Guangzhou City (the
“Properties”) for the period from February 2012
to January 2014; and (ii) after the Properties
had been sold and transferred to Yaji by E/Mm
TEEIEEE Hh Z B 2 B R 2D 7 (Guangzhou Huadu
Jiaye Property Development Co. Ltd.) (“Jiaye”),
Yaji continued to default in payment of the
management fees and as Yaji did not have
enough capacity for payment, upon discussion
between the parties, Yaji, EDS Wellness, Yiying
and Jiaye entered into a letter of confirmation
(the “Letter of Confirmation”) on 26 November
2010 providing that the obligations which
should be performed by Yaji in relation to the
management of the Properties would be assumed
and performed by EDS Wellness. As such, EDS
Wellness shall be jointly liable for the payment
of the outstanding management fees and utilities
and miscellaneous fees.
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Under the Writs of Civil Proceedings, Yiying
requests the Huadu People’s Court to:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

order Yaji and EDS Wellness to forthwith
and jointly pay to Yiying the outstanding
management fees from February 2012 to
January 2014 in the aggregate amount of
RMB2,866,000 (equivalent to HK$3,620,000)
and the default payment until the day of
actual repayment (which is in the aggregate
amount of RMB1,369,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,729,000) as at 31 January 2014),
totalling RMB4,235,000 (equivalent to
HK$5,349,000);

order Yaji and EDS Wellness to forthwith and
jointly pay to Yiying the outstanding utilities
and miscellaneous fees from February 2012
to January 2014 in the aggregate amount
of RMB2,500 (equivalent to HK$3,100) and
the interest loss until the day of actual
repayment of RMB300 (equivalent to
HK$400) as at 31 January 2014), totalling
RMB2,800 (equivalent to HK$3,500);

order the appraisal fee of RMB8,000
(equivalent to HK$10,000) for the security for
the application for preservation of property
be borne jointly by Yaji and EDS Wellness;
and

order all costs of the legal proceedings be
borne jointly by Yaji and EDS Wellness.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

With reference to the announcements of EDS
Wellness dated 30 April 2010, 5 April 2012, 4 July
2012, 24 July 2012, 3 August 2012, 21 August
2012, 28 September 2012, 26 October 2012, 1
November 2012, 21 December 2012, 29 January
2013 and 25 April 2013 in relation to, among
others, the proposed acquisition of a company
which held the entire equity interest in Yaji, the
termination of such proposed acquisition and the
legal proceedings against Mr. Shum. Although
Yaji was once a wholly owned subsidiary of
the target company to be acquired by the EDS
Wellness Group, such proposed acquisition was
terminated and the EDS Wellness Group has
never acquired any equity interest in Yaji.

Having examined a copy of the Letter of
Confirmation enclosed with the Writ 2 and
reviewed the internal records of EDS Wellness
and enquired with the former management
of EDS Wellness at the relevant times, EDS
Wellness considers that the signature of the
alleged representative of EDS Wellness on the
Letter of Confirmation was not signed by any
authorised representative of EDS Wellness and
may be forged for, among others, the following
reasons:

(i) the signature of the alleged representative of
EDS Wellness on the Letter of Confirmation
was different from those of the former
directors and the chief executive officer of
EDS Wellness at the relevant times;

(i) the company chop affixed to the Letter of
Confirmation was not the one commonly
used by EDS Wellness for the execution of
documents;
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(iii) the style of the signature and the
handwriting of the date of execution of the
alleged representative of EDS Wellness
highly resemble those of Yaji on the same
Letter of Confirmation;

(iv) the internal records of EDS Wellness do not
show that EDS Wellness has executed or
approved the Letter of Confirmation; and

(v) the former chairman and executive director,
the former vice-chairman and executive
director and the former chief executive
officer of EDS Wellness at the relevant times
have confirmed that (1) they had never seen
or signed the Letter of Confirmation; (2) the
Letter of Confirmation had never been tabled
for discussion in any meetings of directors
of EDS Wellness they attended and they had
never passed any resolution in any meeting
of directors of EDS Wellness to approve
the Letter of Confirmation or authorised any
person to represent EDS Wellness to sign
the Letter of Confirmation; and (3) they are
not aware of any person having signed the
Letter of Confirmation for and on behalf of
EDS Wellness.

EDS Wellness has instructed the legal advisers in
Mainland China to defend the two cases. Three
hearings were held by the Huadu People’s Court
on 16 June 2014, 30 June 2014 and 15 August
2014 respectively.

On 24 September 2014, the EDS Wellness Group
received the judgments of the Civil Proceedings
(the “Civil Proceedings Judgments”) issued
by the Huadu People’s Court on 19 September
2014, pursuant to which, the Huadu People’s
Court made the following principal orders:

(i) order Yaji to pay to Yiying within 10 days
from the date of the Civil Proceedings
Judgments the outstanding management
fees in the total sum of RMB2,616,000
(equivalent to HK$3,304,000) and the default
payment until the day of actual repayment;
and
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(i) dismiss the claims against EDS Wellness set
out in the Writs of Civil Proceedings.

Pursuant to the Civil Proceedings Judgments,
Yaji and Yiying might, within 15 days from receipt
of the Civil Proceedings Judgments, lodge an
appeal to the Intermediate People’s Court of
Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province of the
People’s Republic of China (the “Intermediate
People’s Court”) against the Civil Proceedings
Judgments and EDS Wellness might, within
30 days from receipt of the Civil Proceedings
Judgments, lodge an appeal to the Intermediate
People’s Court against the Civil Proceedings
Judgments.

On 3 December 2014, EDS Wellness was
informed by its legal advisers that Yaji had
filed appeals (the “Appeals”) against the Civil
Proceedings Judgments and the hearing for
the Appeals was fixed on 11 December 2014.
Yiying had not filed any appeals against the Civil
Proceedings Judgments.

No provision for the outstanding management
fees and utilities and miscellaneous fees was
made in the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014 as the Appeals were dismissed by the
Intermediate People’s Court on 14 January 2015
according to the relevant judgments received by
EDS Wellness’s legal advisers in Mainland China.

Employees and remuneration policy

At 31 December 2014, the headcount of the Group
was 75 (2013: 13). Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) amounted to HK$38,694,000 (2013:
HK$18,384,000). In addition to basic salaries,
provident fund and discretionary bonus, staff benefits
include medical scheme and share options.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW

During the year, no revenue was generated from the
Group’s film distribution business as the Group was
not able to secure quality films at reasonable prices
for distribution. In addition, no film has been produced
by China Star Cultural for distribution by the Group
during the year.

During the year, the Group acquired Hong Kong
equities with market value of HK$263,874,000
and converted the remaining principal amount of
HK$225,000,000 of the China Star 8% CNs into
2,045,454,545 new shares in China Star with market
value of HK$308,864,000 as at the date of conversion.
Upon the conversion of the China Star 8% CNs,
the Group recognised a gain of HK$28,461,000
arising on change in fair value upon conversion of
convertible notes receivables under other gains
and losses and the 2,045,454,545 new shares in
China Star have been accounted for as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. The
Group’s sale of financial assets business recorded
a loss of HK$3,918,000, which consists of a gain of
HK$1,119,000 arising from the disposal of Hong Kong
equities and a loss of HK$5,037,000 arising from
the disposal of 321,600,000 shares in China Star. At
31 December 2014, the Group revalued its equities
portfolio to market prices and recognised a gain of
HK$27,483,000 arising on change in fair value of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

In 2013, the gaming promoter adopted a tightening
credit policy towards its Mainland China’s VIP
customers in response to the slowdown of Mainland
China’s economy. With worries over the Mainland
China’s economic growth and excessive growth in the
Mainland China’s so-called shadow banking sector,
the gaming promoter had unveiled to the Group
that a tightening credit policy towards its Mainland
China’s VIP customers would remain in place for
the entire 2014. In view of the above, the directors
considered that the potential growth of the provision
of management services business engaged by Rich
Daily was uncertain and determined to discontinue the
provision of management services business in order
to concentrate the Group’s resources in its existing
businesses and favorable investment opportunities.
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On 11 June 2014, the Group disposed of the entire
issued share capital of Rich Daily at a consideration
of HK$2,000,000 pursuant to the conditional sale
and purchase agreement dated 30 May 2014 and
recognised a gain on disposal of subsidiaries of
HK$312,000. During the year, the Group’s provision of
management services business generated services fee
income amounted to HK$158,000 and the results of
Rich Daily for the year ended 31 December 2014 were
presented separately as discontinued operations.

During the year, the Group’s money lending business
generated interest income on loans of HK$78,316,000,
a 224.95% increase from HK$24,101,000 for
the previous year. This significant increase was
attributable to the active expansion of the Group’s
money lending business in the second half of 2013
and the first half of 2014. The average monthly
balance of loans receivables increased from
HK$248,124,000 in the year ended 31 December 2013
to HK$901,065,000 in the year ended 31 December
2014. During the year, the Group granted new loans
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$698,440,000
to its customers and received loans repayment of
HK$520,626,000 from its customers. At 31 December
2014, the Group’s loans receivables together
with accrued interest receivables amounted to
HK$950,549,000. At the end of the reporting period,
the directors assessed the collectability of loan
receivables. As there was no objective evidence that
the Group would not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the terms of the loan agreements, no
impairment loss on loan receivables was recognised.

In order to diversify its businesses and broaden its
revenue, the Group has commenced the design and
sale of jewelry products business since October 2014.
The design and sale of jewelry products business
involves product design, sale and marketing, but
does not involve manufacturing of jewelry products.
The manufacturing of the jewelry products is
outsourced to subcontractors, who are independent
third parties. The jewelry products comprise rings,
earrings, bracelets, bangles, brooches, necklaces and
pendants made of diamonds, gemstones, pearls and
precious metals. Target customers are mainly jewelry
wholesalers and retailers in Hong Kong, Europe, the
United States of America (the “US”) and Canada.
During the year, the Group has funded HK$30,000,000
to the design and sale of jewelry products business
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for financing its development and operations. Given
that the business does not involve manufacturing
of jewelry products, the initial funding has been
utilised mainly for the purchase of inventories
and payment of operating costs. During the year,
the design and sale of jewelry products business
generated a sale of HK$14,273,000 and recorded a
net profit of HK$577,000. At 31 December 2014, the
Group’s inventories of jewelry products, including
raw materials, work-in-progress and finished goods,
amounted to HK$25,177,000 and the Group’s design
and sale of jewelry products business had undelivered
sale orders amounted to HK$800,000.

For the purpose of participating in the development
of EDS Wellness, the Group subscribed for the EDS
Wellness CNs in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$40,000,000 at their face value on 22 May 2014
pursuant to the conditional subscription agreement
dated 21 March 2013. The EDS Wellness CNs are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and maturing on 21
November 2016. Subject to the compliance of the
public float requirement by EDS Wellness, the EDS
Wellness CNs carry rights entitling the holders thereof
to convert their principal amount into shares in EDS
Wellness at the initial conversion price of HK$1.00 per
share (subject to adjustment) during their term. Unless
previously redeemed, repurchased and cancelled or
converted, any outstanding EDS Wellness CNs shall
be redeemed at par on the maturity date. For the
purpose of facilitating the EDS Open Offer, the Group,
on 25 June 2014, gave an irrevocable undertaking
in favour of EDS Wellness and the underwriter (i) to
convert the principal amount of HK$25,000,000 of
the EDS Wellness CNs into 25,000,000 new shares in
EDS Wellness before the commencement of the book
close period of the EDS Open Offer, (ii) not to convert
the remaining balance of the EDS Wellness CNs of
HK$15,000,000 into 15,000,000 new shares in EDS
Wellness before the record date for the EDS Open
Offer, (iii) to subscribe or procure the subscription
for the 12,500,000 new shares in EDS Wellness
to be allotted to it under the EDS Open Offer and
(iv) to lodge the application form in respect of the
12,500,000 new shares in EDS Wellness referred to
(iii) above accompanied by remittances prior to the
latest time for acceptance under the EDS Open Offer.
On 2 July 2014, the Group converted the principal
amount of HK$25,000,000 of the EDS Wellness CNs
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into 25,000,000 new shares in EDS Wellness at the
initial conversion price of HK$1.00 per share pursuant
to the irrevocable undertaking dated 25 June 2014.
As a result of the conversion, EDS Wellness became
a 65.58% owned subsidiary of the Group and the
financial results of the EDS Wellness Group have
been consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements of the Group since 2 July 2014. On 22
July 2014, the Group subscribed for 12,500,000 new
shares in EDS Wellness under the EDS Open Offer at
a subscription price of HK$3.00 per share pursuant
to the irrevocable undertaking dated 25 June 2014.
On 28 August 2014, EDS Wellness allotted and
issued 2,620,000 new shares by way of placing of
new shares under general mandate and the Group’s
shareholding interest in EDS Wellness was diluted
from 65.58% to 62.71%. On 30 September 2014,
the Group converted the remaining principal amount
of HK$15,000,000 of the EDS Wellness CNs into
15,000,000 new shares in EDS Wellness at the initial
conversion price of HK$1.00 per share. As a result of
the conversion, the Group’s shareholding interest in
EDS Wellness has increased from 62.71% to 70.18%.
Upon the conversion of the EDS Wellness CNs, the
Group recognised a gain of HK$105,298,000 arising
on change in fair value upon conversion of convertible
notes receivables.

The EDS Wellness Group is principally engaged in
sale of beauty products and provision of therapy
services. For the sale of beauty products, the EDS
Wellness Group offers a variety of personal care
products under the brand name “Evidens de Beauté”,
and a variety of medical skincare products, including
the brand “Activa”. For the provision of therapy
services, the EDS Wellness Group operates a spa
with the brand “Le Spa Evidens de Beauté” to offer
spa, facial sahos, body treatments and wellness
massages services at Lyndhurst Terrace in Central
and a medical skincare centre under the trading name
“COLLAGEN+” at Soundwill Plaza in Causeway Bay.
During the period from 2 July 2014 to 31 December
2014, the EDS Wellness Group generated a revenue of
HK$22,084,000 and incurred a loss of HK$47,043,000
to the Group. Of the total revenue, HK$1,648,000
was generated from sale of beauty products and
HK$20,436,000 was generated from provision of
therapy services. The reporting of a loss by the EDS
Wellness Group was mainly due to the substantial
decrease in the sale of personal care products under
the brand name “Evidens de Beaute™ resulted the
slowdown of the growth of Mainland China visitors
and the weakening of Mainland China tourists’
spending power and the recognition of an impairment
loss on other receivables of HK$46,519,000.
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For the purpose of reducing administrative expenses
and audit fees of the EDS Wellness Group, EDS
Wellness as vendor entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Koffman Investment Limited, a
company which is 50% owned by Mr. Yu Zhen
Hua Johnny (the chairman and a director of EDS
Wellness), as purchaser relating to the disposal of
the entire issued share capital of Blu Spa Group
Limited at a nominal cash consideration of HK$1.00
on 19 December 2014. Blu Spa Group Limited holds
the entire equity interest in Blu Spa (Hong Kong)
Limited, which in turn is an intermediate holding
company of seven subsidiaries (the “BS Group”). Blu
Spa (Hong Kong) Limited is in the process of being
wound up and joint liquidators have been appointed
for the winding up of Blu Spa (Hong Kong) Limited.
The assets and liabilities of the BS Group have not
been consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. As at the date of the sale
and purchase agreement, the BS Group was indebted
to EDS Wellness in an amount of HK$241,420,000,
which was fully impaired in the financial statements of
EDS Wellness in the year ended 30 June 2014. Given
that the BS Group is severely insolvent, it is expected
that no dividend will be distributed in respect of
the equity interest in Blu Spa (Hong Kong) Limited.
The disposal constitutes a connected transaction
of the Company under the Listing Rules. As all the
applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules
in respect of the disposal are less than 5% and the
consideration is less than HK$3,000,000, the disposal
is fully exempted from the connected transaction
requirements under the Listing Rules and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. The Group
recognised a gain of HK$1,359,000 from the disposal.

In 2013, the Group disposed of all its investment
properties in response to the implementation of
Double Stamp Duty in February 2013 and the Federal
Reserve tapering of its monthly bond purchase
programme. Following the disposal of all the Group’s
investment properties, the directors have cautiously
identified suitable investment properties or property
projects for the Group’s investment property business.
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To expand the Group’s property investment into
Mainland China, the Company as purchaser, the
vendor, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Main
Board Listed Company, as vendor and the Main
Board Listed Company as guarantor entered into
the conditional sale and purchase agreement in
relation to the Proposed Acquisition at an aggregate
consideration of HK$1,650,000,000 on 11 December
2014. The consideration shall be settled as to (i)
HK$600,000,000 by cash and (ii) HK$1,050,000,000 by
the issue of a share entitlement note, which entitles
the holder thereof to call for the allotment and issue
of 1,500,000,000 new shares in Company at a price
of HK$0.70 per share, to the Main Board Listed
Company. The target company and its subsidiaries
have two major assets, which are (i) the rights to
manage and operate a membership-based golf club
and resort in Beijing, Mainland China (the “Club”) up
to 31 December 2051 and (ii) the rights to develop
and operate a land adjacent to the Club (the “Subject
Land”) and the rights to manage the properties
erected on the Subject Land up to 30 January 2062.
The Club is an exclusive premier membership-based
golf club and resort, which comprises of a 7,260-yard
Nelson and Haworth designed 18-hole championship
golf course, the first PGA branded and managed
Golf Academy in Asia, driving range facilities, theme
restaurants and cafes, a luxurious spa and fitness
centre and retail shops. The Subject Land is 582
Chinese acres (equivalent to approximately 387,000
square meters) of land adjacent to the Club. The
Subject Land is intended to be developed into (i) a
low-density deluxe hotel villas community with a total
gross floor area of 55,000 square meters and (ii) a
high-end hotel apartment complex with a total gross
floor area of 25,000 square meters. Both the Club
and the Subject Land are well located in Chaoyang
District (between the Fourth and Fifth Ring Roads),
close to Beijing Capital International Airport and a
30-minute drive to Beijing central business district.
The Proposed Acquisition, if materialises, constitutes
a very substantial acquisition of the Company under
the Listing Rules and requires an approval from
the shareholders at a special general meeting of
the Company. On 19 December 2014 the Company
has submitted a draft announcement relating to the
Proposed Acquisition for the Stock Exchange’s review
and vetting. As at the date of this annual report, the
draft announcement is being reviewed by the Stock
Exchange and is pending the Stock Exchange’s
clearance for publication.
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On 18 February 2013, the directors proposed to seek
approvals from its shareholders for (i) exercising the
conversion rights attaching to the bonus convertible
notes issued by China Star (the “China Star
Bonus CNs”) in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$6,079,806.76 to convert their principal amount
into 607,980,676 new shares in China Star (the
“Conversion”) and (ii) granting a 12-month mandate
to the Company for disposing of the 303,990,338
shares in China Star that already held by the Group
and the new shares in China Star to be allotted and
issued to the Group pursuant to the exercise of the
conversion rights attaching to the China Star Bonus
CNs and the China Star 8% CNs in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$350,000,000 (the “Disposal”)
for realising the Group’s investments in China
Star. The Conversion and the Disposal constitute a
very substantial acquisition and a very substantial
disposal of the Company under the Listing Rules
respectively and were approved by the shareholders
at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 28 June 2013. The 12-month mandate was expiry
on 27 June 2014. Under the 12-month mandate, the
Group converted the entire principal amount of the
China Star Bonus CNs and the China Star 8% CNs
into an aggregate of 3,789,798,857 new shares in
China Star and disposed of 2,369,934,650 shares in
China Star. On the expiry of the 12-month mandate,
the Group held 1,7283,854,545 shares in China Star
and the net proceeds from the Disposal amounted to
HK$319,160,000. On 7 November 2014, the directors
proposed to seek approvals from its shareholders for
granting another 12-month mandate to the Company
for disposing of the remaining 1,723,854,545 shares
in China Star held by the Group. The 12-month
disposal mandate constitutes a major transaction of
the Company and was approved by the shareholders
at the special general meeting of the Company on 18
December 2014.

During the year, the Group’s fixed income portfolio
generated imputed interest income of HK$7,686,000,
a 79.90% decrease from HK$38,233,000 for the
previous year. The decrease was attributable to the
full conversion of the China Star 8% CNs and the
EDS Wellness CNs and the early redemption of the
Koffman CNs as discussed above. At 31 December
2014, the Group did not hold any convertible notes
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On 15 April 2014, China Star Cultural allotted and
issued 100,000,000 new shares by way of placing of
new shares under general mandate and the Group’s
shareholding interest in China Star Cultural was
diluted from 29.00% to 24.21%. On 17 June 2014,
China Star Cultural further allotted and issued another
300,000,000 new shares by way of placing of new
shares under specific mandate and the Group’s
shareholding interest in China Star Cultural was
further diluted from 24.21% to 16.19%. As a result,
the Group was deemed to dispose of a 12.81%
shareholding interest in China Star Cultural on 17 June
2014 and recognised a gain on deemed disposal of
an associate of HK$7,669,000. As China Star Cultural
ceased to be an associate of the Group, the Group
has accounted for its 146,640,000 shares in China
Star Cultural as available-for-sale investment. Given
that the Group’s investment in China Star Cultural
was for the purpose of forming a strategic alliance
with Culture Landmark Investment Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange under
stock code: 674, and China Star Cultural in order
to secure a stable supply of films from China Star
Cultural for revitalising the Group’s film distribution
business. However, such investment does not produce
the intended result and Culture Landmark Investment
Limited is no longer a shareholder of China Star
Cultural. Accordingly, the Company intends to dispose
of the 146,640,000 shares in China Star Cultural held
by the Group on open market from time to time in
order to realise the Group’s investment in China Star
Cultural. On 5 December 2014, the directors proposed
to seek approvals from its shareholders for granting
a 12-month mandate to the Company for disposing
of up to 146,640,000 shares in China Star Cultural
held by the Group. The 12-month disposal mandate
constitutes a major transaction of the Company and
was approved by the shareholders at the special
general meeting of the Company on 13 January
2015. Prior to the approval of the 12-month disposal
mandate, the Group disposed of 75,800,000 shares in
China Star Cultural in a series of transactions on open
market on 19 December 2014 and recognised a gain
of HK$66,883,000 from the disposal. The disposal
constitutes a discloseable transaction of the Company
under the Listing Rules and was announced by the
Company on 19 December 2014.
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Following the opening of an additional Japanese
noodle shop in Quarry Bay, the change of its major
shareholder and the restructuring of its business
in 2013, the Spark Concept and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Spark Concept Group”) has
opened a new Japanese noodle shop in Hunghom
in August 2014 to further expand its business.
During the year ended 31 December 2014, no further
cash was advanced to the Spark Concept Group
by its shareholders. At 31 December 2014, the
Spark Concept Group owed the Group an amount
of HK$7,393,000 (before an impairment loss of
HK$3,865,000), which is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand. Since two of the
Japanese noodle shops, namely Shugetsu Ramen (£
¥ mEE A ), have been selected in the Michelin
Guide Hong Kong & Macau 2015 as BIB Gourmand
restaurants in December 2014, the performance
of Spark Concept Group has improved. The Spark
Concept Group reported a loss of HK$920,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2014, represents a 49.45%
improvement from HK$1,820,000 for the year ended
31 December 2013. As the Group’s share of post-
acquisition losses equals to its interests in Spark
Concept, no further share of losses was recognised
for the year.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The economic growth of Hong Kong is determined
by the performance of the world’s two largest
economies: the US and Mainland China. With a
falling unemployment rate and firm economic growth
in the US, the Federal Reserve is approaching a
point to normalise its monetary policy and begin
to raise interest rate, albeit in a gradual manner.
While Mainland China’s economy has slowed from
its double-digit growth levels of recent years,
structural reforms and deleveraging are still the
Central Government’s priorities. At the same time,
the People’s Bank of China lowers the benchmark
interest rates and adopts selective monetary easing
measures in order to avoid any liquidity squeeze.
The Central Government is doing its best to maintain
growth targets, which makes a hard landing unlikely.
This divergence in economic growth of the world’s
two largest economies could cause equity market
volatility. In addition, the potential implications of
rising US interest rate could increase market volatility.
Accordingly, the directors expect periods of volatility
in 2015. The directors will cautiously monitor the
equity market, change its equities portfolio mix from
time to time and realise the Group’s equities into cash
as and when appropriate. The Group will continue to
adopt a conservative investment approach in investing
towards its sale of financial assets business in 2015.
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The US economy has been turnaround since the
second quarter of 2014 and the US labour market
has vastly improved which boosted the business
investment, consumer and government spending.
Accordingly, the rise in inflation will compel the
Federal Reserve to increase the interest rate in the
second quarter of 2015. The increase in interest rate
in the US will also result in higher cost of mortgage
loan in Hong Kong. This could give a negative impact
on the Hong Kong property market. Given that the
current government demand curb measures, such
as Special Stamp Duty, Double Stamp Duty and
Buyer’s Stamp Duty are expected to remain in force
in the foreseeable future, the directors predict that
the property price could drop up to 15% in 2015.
As such, the Group has adopted a wait-and-see
approach towards the property investment in Hong
Kong.

With a pessimistic view on the Hong Kong property
market, the Group shifts its focus and expands its
property investment business into Mainland China
by entering into the conditional sale and purchase
agreement relating to the Proposed Acquisition on
11 December 2014. The target company and its
subsidiaries have two major assets, which are (i)
the rights to manage and operate the Club up to 31
December 2051 and (ii) the rights to develop and
operate the Subject Land and the rights to manage
the properties erected on the Subject Land up to 30
January 2062. Both the Club and the Subject Land
are located in Beijing. The Subject Land is intended
to be developed into a low-density deluxe hotel villas
community and a high-end hotel apartment complex.
The Group intends to hold the Club and the Subject
Land as long-term investments for rental purposes.
It is expected that the Proposed Acquisition will be
completed in the third quarter of 2015.

With the active expansion in the second half of
2013 and the first half of 2014, the Group’s money
lending business recorded a significant growth in the
year ended 31 December 2014 as compared to the
previous year. The Group will slow down its pace of
expanding money lending business in 2015 as some
internal cash resources of the Group will be allocated
to finance the operations of the target company
and its subsidiaries, if the Proposed Acquisition
materialises, and the proposed acquisition of a
74.63% shareholding interest in a company listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
(the “GEM Board Listed Company”), which will be
used by the Group as a platform for expanding into
food and beverage business in Hong Kong. Therefore,
it is expected that there will be a decrease in interest
income on loans in 2015 as compared to 2014.
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EHE RS

With a slump in Hong Kong retail sales by 14.60%
in January 2015 from the same month last year,
the Group does not expect any growth in the EDS
Wellness Group’s sale of beauty products and
provision of therapy services in the coming year.
With a view to improve its profitability, EDS Wellness
as issuer entered into a conditional subscription
agreement with six investors (the “Subscribers”) as
subscribers relating to the Proposed Subscription (as
defined below) on 17 February 2015. The directors
believe that the entering into of the conditional
subscription agreement represents a good opportunity
for the EDS Wellness Group to (i) raise a substantial
amount of additional funds for future business
development in certain new business developments in
a segment difference from the existing business of the
EDS Wellness Group, (ii) improve its financial position
and liquidity and (iii) leverage on the expertise and
business network of one of the Subscribers to take
advantage of the expected strong growth in the new
business. The Proposed Subscription (as defined
below) is conditional upon the fulfillment and/or waiver
(as the case may be) of the conditions precedent
set out in the conditional subscription agreement.
Upon completion of the Proposed Subscription (as
defined below), the Group is deemed to dispose of a
substantial percentage in its shareholding interest in
EDS Wellness and EDS Wellness will cease to be a
subsidiary of the Company. The Group’s investment in
EDS Wellness will be accounted for as available-for-
sale investment and the Group will realise it as and
when appropriate.

The Group’s design and sale of jewelry products
business recorded a positive result since its
commencement in October 2014. Looking ahead, it
is expected that the gross profit ratio may not be as
high as that of 2014 due to sluggish economy and
low inflation in the Eurozone. However, in view of a
brighter economic outlook and stronger purchasing
power in the US and the rise in consumer spending
in several countries such as Canada, Germany
and England, where the Group’s target customers
locate, the directors anticipate that the sales volume
will show a moderate growth in 2015. In order to
solidify the foundation of the Group’s design and
sale of jewelry products business, the directors
consider expanding its target markets into Middle
East, strengthening its sales force and increasing its
promotional activities in 2015.
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In 2015, the directors will continue to cautiously
monitor the business environment and strengthen
the Group’s business foundation by focusing the
Group’s existing businesses. In addition to focusing
on the Group’s existing businesses, the directors will
continue to cautiously identify suitable investment
opportunities for the Group to diversify its businesses
and broaden its revenue.

Events after the Reporting Period

Subsequent to 31 December 2014 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Group had the following
material events:

(@) On 28 January 2015, EDS Wellness received a
writ of summons in High Court Action No. 200 of
2015 issued by Mr. Shum as plaintiff against EDS
Wellness as defendant for the following claims:

(i) the Judgment in High Court Action No. 1775
of 2012 dated 6 September 2013, pursuant
to which the Court of First Instance of the
High Court of Hong Kong adjudged that Mr.
Shum (1) do pay EDS Wellness the sum of
HK$39,128,000 together with contractual
interest thereon calculated from day to day
at the rate of 30% per annum from 1 May
2013 to 6 September 2013, and thereafter
at judgment rate pursuant to s.48 of High
Court Ordinance until payment; and (2) shall
pay EDS Wellness the costs of the action
including the costs of and occasioned by
EDS Wellness’ application for summary
judgment to be taxed if not agreed, entered
against Mr. Shum be set aside;

(i) loss and damages suffered by Mr. Shum as
a result of the Judgement being obtained
against him;

(i) an order for discovery upon oath of all
matters relating to the Judgement;

(iv) an order for payment of all sums found
due to Mr. Shum together with the interest
thereon at such rate and for such period as
the High Court may deem just pursuant to
the High Court Ordinance;

(v) the costs; and

(vi) further or other relief.
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On 11 February 2015, the Group as purchaser
entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party as
vendor in relation to the proposed acquisition
of a 74.63% of the issued share capital of the
GEM Board Listed Company. The proposed
acquisition, if materialises, constitutes a very
substantial acquisition of the Company under the
Listing Rules and leads to a change in control of
the GEM Board Listed Company and the Group is
required to make a mandatory general offer under
the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers
in cash for all the issued shares and relevant
securities of the GEM Board Listed Company
(other than those already owned or agreed to
be acquired by the Group and parties acting
in concert with it). The proposed acquisition
requires an approval from the shareholders at
a special general meeting of the Company. On
17 February 2015, the Company has submitted
a draft announcement relating to the proposed
acquisition to the Securities and Futures
Commission and the Stock Exchange for review
and vetting. As at the date of this annual report,
the draft announcement is being reviewed by
the Securities and Futures Commission and the
Stock Exchange and is pending their clearance
for publication.

On 17 February 2015, EDS Wellness as issuer
entered into the conditional subscription
agreement with the Subscribers, which are
independent third parties, as subscribers in
relation to a proposed subscription of new
ordinary shares and convertible preferred
shares of EDS Wellness (the “Subscription
Shares”) by the Subscribers (the “Proposed
Subscription”). Subject to satisfaction and/or
waiver (as the case may be) of the terms and
conditions set out in the conditional subscription
agreement, the Subscribers, in aggregate, will
hold more than 50% of the then voting rights
in EDS Wellness. Pursuant to the conditional
subscription agreement, one of the Subscribers
who will subscribe for the largest portion of the
Subscription Shares and who will own 42.86%
of the ordinary shares of EDS Wellness in issue
as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the
Subscription Shares (assuming none of the
convertible preferred shares of EDS Wellness
to be subscribed by the Subscribers are
converted) and 40.00% of the ordinary shares
of EDS Wellness as enlarged by the allotment
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and issue of the Subscription Shares and upon
conversion in full of the convertible preferred
shares of EDS Wellness to be subscribed by the
Subscribers, has undertaken to EDS Wellness
that, following and subject to completion of
the conditional subscription agreement, it will
make an unconditional mandatory general offer
(the “Offer”) in compliance with the Hong Kong
Code on Takeovers and Mergers in cash for all
the ordinary shares of EDS Wellness (other than
those already owned by or agreed to be acquired
by it and parties acting in concert with it
including a certain number of the ordinary shares
of EDS Wellness held by the Company (which
is considered a party acting in concert with the
Subscribers as a result of certain non-disposal
undertakings between it and the Subscribers) in
respect of which the Company has undertaken
not to accept the Offer). The Proposed
Subscription, if materialises, constitutes a
deemed disposal and major transaction of the
Company under the Listing Rules. On 5 March
2015, the Company and EDS Wellness have
submitted a draft joint announcement relating
to the Proposed Subscription and the Offer to
the Securities and Futures Commission and
the Stock Exchange for review and vetting.
As at the date of this annual report, the draft
joint announcement is being reviewed by the
Securities and Futures Commission and the
Stock Exchange and is pending their clearance
for publication.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance, in line with the principles of
the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

In the opinion of the Board, the Company had
complied with the Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2014, except for:

(a) the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are not segregated and are exercised by
the same individual; and

(b) the non-executive directors of the Company are
not appointed for a specific term but are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election pursuant
to the Company’s bye-laws.

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties. The Board
periodically reviews and improves the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company
with a view to continuously improve the Company’s
corporate governance practices by assessing their
effectiveness with evolving standards to meet
changing circumstances and needs.

The Board has reviewed and monitored the
Company’s corporate governance practices and
standards on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements and the training and continuous
professional development of directors. The Board
has also reviewed the Company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules for securities transactions by the
directors of the Company. All the members of the
Board have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and comprehensible assessment of the
Company’s annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The directors acknowledge that it is their
responsibilities for preparation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group and ensure that the
consolidated financial statements are in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The directors also ensure that the timely
publication of the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.

The directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made
all reasonable enquires, they are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditors
of the Company, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited,
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on
pages 65 to 66.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and
control of the Company and oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic direction and financial
performance. The management, consisting of
executive directors along with other senior executives,
is delegated the authority and responsibility by the
Board for the management of the Group. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities
to the four committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Finance Committee, to assist
the Board in discharging its duties and to oversee
particular aspects of the Group’s activities.

Decisions on important matters are specifically
reserved to the Board while decisions on the Group’s
general operations are delegated to the management.
Important matters include those affecting the Group’s
strategic policies, major investment and funding
decisions and major commitments relating to the
Group’s operations.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The day-to-day management of the Group is
delegated to the management. This delegation of
authority includes responsibility for developing and
formulating business plans and budgets of the Group
for the Board’s approval, operating the Group’s
businesses within the parameters set by the Board,
keeping the Board informed of material developments
of the Group’s businesses, identifying and managing
operation and other risk and implementing the policies
and processes approved by the Board.

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary
balance skills and experience desirable for effective
leadership of the Company and independence in
decision-making.

The directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lei Hong Wai
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan
(re-designated as an executive director
on 18 September 2014)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Wan Shing Chi
Mr. Ng Heung Yan
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen

Biographical details of the directors as at the date
of this report are set out under the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors” on pages 62 to 64.

Save and except for (i) Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton
and Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan are brothers and (ii) each
of Mr. Lei Hong Wai, Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton
and Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan beneficially owns 50%,
25% and 25% respectively in the issued share capital
of Twin Success International Limited, the substantial
shareholder of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, there
is no relationship between members of the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Company Secretary of the Company is
responsible to keep minutes of all Board and
committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to the directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for directors’ inspection.

The directors are able, upon reasonable request, to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. The
Board shall resolve to provide separate appropriate
independent professional advice to the directors to
assist the relevant directors to discharge their duties.

The Company prepares a monthly update on the
Group’s performance and position to all directors to
enable the Board as a whole and each director to
discharge their duties and responsibilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board
at all times met the requirements Rules 3.10(1) and
(2), and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors (representing not less than one-
third of the Board) with at least one independent non-
executive director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive directors an annual written
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent. No independent non-executive director
has served the Company for more than nine years.

The directors are fully insured under the directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance policy for indemnification
against costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities
that may be incurred by them in the execution and
discharge of their duties.

The directors are committed to complying with code
provision A.6.5 of the Code on directors’ training. All
directors have participated in continuous professional
and provided a record of training they received for the
year ended 31 December 2014 to Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

A summary of training received by the directors during
the year ended 31 December 2014 is as follows:

Executive directors: HTES
Mr. Lei Hong Wai RS
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton REIE K&
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy PRIEZE ST
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan REIB) 4
Independent non-executive directors: BIYFHTES :
Mr. Wan Shing Chi FRELE
Mr. Ng Heung Yan KREMZEE
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen BEREE
Note 1:

1: Relevant reading, video or audio

2: Courses, seminars or workshops

Note 2:

A: Corporate governance and regulatory
B: Business and management

On 19 December 2014, the Chairman of the Board held
meeting with the independent non-executive directors,
without the presence of the executive directors.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year, the Board adopted a board diversity
policy setting out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board. The Company considers diversity of board
members can be achieved through consideration of
a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. The
ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2014

EE2#E)
BE_ZE-NF+-A=+t—-HLFE EE
B 2EIIMEMNT
Types of Subject of
training training
b ki) I ERE
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Kiat 1) (Kt 2)
1&2 A
1&2 A
1&2 A&B
1&2 A
1&2 A
1&2 A
1&2 A&B

Bt -

10 MHEEEY - FARIFR
2: RE HHERIES

W2 .

A DEERREE

B: ¥KKER

REZE-—NE+ZA+HIH - EBSXFEE
VHBTESETER MUTEFLED
[E o

EEEINBE

FR - ESFRMNEFSSLRE - EPH
JIEHEEEZ bRk  ARARBES
ERESTIAATEBEBSTHRER - B
BRRRIER - Fie - MIERBEBFER - B
KB RORAE - MEESEZEHUAA
MEARFEA - URBENZEAE  YERD
ZREZEEZ b 2#E -

ERRE-—RIZ bt cBMRAERE
@?ETE'TFEEAI’.{E TR ERBBESR

HEER RITRAE RRRESEZERE
BABBAESETR2HERIRMEL -



Corporate Governance Report

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code requires that the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. During the year, Mr. Lei Hong Wai
has taken up the roles of the Chairman of the Board
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr.
Lei possesses essential leadership skills and has
extensive experience in corporate management and
business development. The Board is of the view that
currently vesting the roles of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer in the same person provides
the Group with strong and consistent leadership
and allows for more effective and efficient business
planning and decisions as well as execution of long-
term business strategies.

Terms of Non-executive Directors

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code requires that
non-executive directors should be appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election. All non-executive
directors of the Company are not appointed for a
specific term, but are subject to retirement from office
by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
provisions of the Company’s bye-laws. At each annual
general meeting, one-third of the directors for the time
being, (or, if their number is not a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. As such, the Company
considers that such provision is sufficient to meet the
underlying objective of this code provision.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees with
clearly defined written terms of reference. The main
roles and responsibilities of these committees,
including all authorities delegated to them by
the Board, as set out in the terms of reference,
are published on websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. The independent views and
recommendations of the four committees ensure
proper control of the Group and the continual
achievement of the high corporate governance
standards expected of a listed company. The
chairman of each committee reports the outcome of
the committee’s meetings to the Board for further
discussions and approvals.

The majority of the members of each board
committees are independent non-executive directors.
The board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expenses.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises two
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Ng
Heung Yan and Mr. Wan Shing Chi and one executive
director, namely Mr. Lei Hong Wai. Mr. Ng Heung Yan
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all directors
and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy and ensuring that
no director or any of his associates will involve in
deciding his own remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee makes recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages, including benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, of
individual executive directors and senior management.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
Remuneration Committee held three meetings to
review and discuss the remuneration structure
and packages of each executive directors and the
discretionary bonus of executive directors for making
recommendations to the Board for approval.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive
director, namely Mr. Lei Hong Wai, and two
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Wan
Shing Chi and Mr. Ng Heung Yan. Mr. Lei Hong Wai is
the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible
for reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board, identifying potential directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors.

The Nomination Committee leads the process and
makes recommendations for appointments to the
Board, whether as additional appointment or to fill
up the casual vacancy of directorship as and when
they arise, in light of challenges and opportunities
facing the Company, as well as business development
and requirements of the Company. In evaluating and
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

selecting candidate(s) for directorship, the Nomination
Committee considers the character and integrity,
skill and expertise, professional and educational
background, potential time commitment for the Board
and/or committee responsibilities, and the elements
of the Board Diversity Policy etc. The Nomination
Committee makes recommendation to the Board to
appoint the appropriate person among the candidates
nominated for directorship. Suitable candidate(s) shall
be appointed by the Board in accordance with the
Company’s bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
Nomination Committee held two meetings to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board
and discuss the proposed re-designation of Mr.
Cheung Kwok Fan as an executive director for making
recommendations to the Board for approval.

Finance Committee

The Finance Committee comprises one executive
director, namely Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy, and one
independent non-executive director, namely Mr. Wong
Tak Chuen. Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy is the chairman
of the Finance Committee.

The Finance Committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing and approving banking facilities and
financial instruments to be granted or issued by the
Company for the Group’s needs and the provision
of corporate guarantees by the Company for its
subsidiaries and associates.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, no Finance
Committee meeting was held.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Wong Tak Chuen,
Mr. Wan Shing Chi and Mr. Ng Heung Yan. Mr. Wong
Tak Chuen is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee
are to monitor the financial reporting process of the
Company and to review the Company’s financial
control, internal control and risk management
systems. It also governs the engagement of external
auditors and its performance. The Audit Committee
meets regularly with at least two meetings annually.
It also has separate meeting with the Company’s
external auditors at least once a year with the
absence of the management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit
Committee reviewed with the external auditors the
annual report for 2013, the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2013, the interim report for 2014 and
the unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2014 before their submission to the Board
for approval. It also reviewed the reports on internal
control system of the Group and discussed with the
management and the external auditors the accounting
policies and practices which might affect the Group
and financial reporting matters.

At the meeting held on 23 March 2015, the Audit
Committee concluded that it was satisfied with its
review of the audit fee, process and effectiveness,
independence and objectivity of HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited. The Audit Committee has therefore
recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited be re-appointed as the Company’s
external auditors at the annual general meeting in
2015.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT MEETINGS

The attendance records of each director at the various
meetings of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2014 are set out as below:
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Executive directors: yrEE:

Mr. Lei Hong Wai BlREE 1 2 40/47 33 22 NATER  NATER

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Eton ~ REI%% 1N 22 /47 NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER

Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy Riggss 1N 22 4647 NATER  NATER  NATER 00
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ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2014



Corpdrate Governance Report

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy has been the Company
Secretary of the Company since 31 January 2005.
He is also an executive director of the Company. The
biographical details of Mr. Chan are set out under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on
page 63. During the year, Mr. Chan undertook not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the Company engaged HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited to perform audit services
and non-audit services and incurred audit services
fees of HK$1,180,000 and non-audit services fees
of HK$170,000. The non-audit services consist
of taxation services, interim review and reporting
accountant services in relation to notifiable
transactions.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
internal control system and to ensure that a sound
and effective internal control system is maintained.
The Board is responsible for approving and reviewing
internal control policy while the responsibility of
day-to-day management of operational risks and
implementation of mitigation measures lies with
the management. As the internal control system is
designed to manage the Group’s risks within an
acceptable risk profile, rather than to eliminate the risk
of failure, and to achieve the business objectives of
the Group. Accordingly, it can only provide reasonable
assurance but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement of management and financial information
and records or against financial losses or fraud.

Key control procedures of the Group’s internal control
system are as follows:

o segregation of duties and functions of the
respective operational departments of the Group;

° monitoring the strategic plan and performance;

o designing an effective accounting and information
system; and

° controlling inside information.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (Continued)

The Board has established an on-going process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant
risks faced by the Group and this process includes
updating the internal control manual when there
are changes to business environment or regulatory
guidelines.

The Group has conducted an annual review of the
effectiveness of its internal control system covering all
material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance as well as risk management. Besides the
Group has also engaged HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Risk Advisory Services Limited (the “Consultant”) to
conduct review and make recommendations for the
improvement and strengthening of the internal control
system.

The review conducted by the Consultant covers
the major internal controls and measures, including
financial, operational and compliance as well as
risk management. Any material non-compliance or
failures in internal controls maintained by the Group’s
management and relevant recommendations for
improvements are reported to the Audit Committee.

Based on the assessments made by the Consultant,
the Audit Committee and the Board consider that the
key areas of the Group’s internal control system are
properly implemented.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company reports to its shareholders twice a
year. Interim and annual results are announced
to keep shareholders informed of the Group’s
performance and operations. The general meetings
of the Company provide an opportunity for direct
communication between the shareholders and the
Board. Shareholders are welcomed to raise any
query in relation to the Group’s businesses at
the general meetings. The Chairman of the Board
as well as chairman of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Finance Committee, or in their absence,
other members of the respective committees, and
where applicable, the independent Board Committee,
are available to answer questions at the general
meetings. Our corporate website which contains
corporate information, interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars issued by the Company,
enables the Company’s shareholders to access
information on the Group on a timely basis.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary of the Company, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

Any number of shareholders representing not less
than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders of the Company or not less than 100
shareholders can put forward any proposed resolution
or the business to be dealt with at general meetings
of the Company by depositing a requisition in writing
together with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s relevant expenses at the registered office
of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The requisition must be
signed by the relevant shareholder(s).

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Unit 3811, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower,
168-200 Connaught Road Central,

Hong Kong.

Fax: (852) 2369 0981

Email: billy@eternityinv.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board
at the general meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company’s bye-laws
during the year. The Company’s bye-laws is available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Report of the Directors
EFERE

The directors present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries and associates
are set out in notes 44 and 22 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 67.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014
(2013: Nil). No interim dividend was paid during the
year (2013: Nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
on page 232 of this annual report.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements during the year in the
property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of the Group are set out in notes 18 and 19
respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group at 31
December 2014 are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the share
capital of the Company are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2014

ESENEREE_2-—MFE+=-A=+—~H
LFEZEHREERREUBRE -
IBRREK

AATEBBREERAR - EMB AR REE A
A2 EBEB D BENREGES I RRM T 44
] 220

EEBERDIK
AEEEZE-ZT—NFE+-_A=1+—HLEE
PEBHNETEZHEBER -

EETERREEE-E—TNE+=-A=1+—
HEFE2AHERE(ZZE—=F : &) - FR
WERNPHBRE(ZE—=F : £) -
EFEHBEME
AEBRLAEVRFEFECXE - BERERE
BMEHNAFEIRE232H o

BEIE&EE

FRAREEz2YE BERREUARKREY
(¥EHFBEONARNGEU B RRMIT 18R
19 o

=Pt
AEBR-_Z—NFE+-A=+—HZEEH
BEHRGE T B HRRMESI8 -

B% 2

FRAQRBARAZBFBEHNGS P BIRRM
35 ¢

- "—'v-\'.;ﬁ:_



PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2014.

RESERVES

Details of movements during the year in the reserves
of the Group and of the Company are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 72 and in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution
to shareholders at 31 December 2014 amounted to
HK$463,015,000 (2013: HK$469,582,000).

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lei Hong Wai
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan
(re-designated as an executive director
on 18 September 2014)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Wan Shing Chi
Mr. Ng Heung Yan
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s
bye-laws, Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy, Mr. Wan Shing
Chi and Mr. Wong Tak Chuen retire from the Board
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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Report of the Directors
EFERE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The changes in information of directors as required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) are set out below:

(@) Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan, the then non-executive
director, has been re-designated as an executive
director with effect from 18 September 2014;

(b) In addition to a monthly director’s fee of
HK$10,000, Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan is entitled to
a monthly salary of HK$60,000 with effect from 1
October 2014;

(c) a discretionary bonus of HK$4,000,000 was paid
to Mr. Lei Hong Wai, the Chairman of the Board
and an executive director, on 9 December 2014;

(d) a discretionary bonus of HK$4,000,000 was paid
to Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton, an executive
director, on 9 December 2014;

(e) a discretionary bonus of HK$60,000 was paid to
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan on 7 January 2015;

()  Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy has been appointed
as the chairman of the board of directors,
an authorised representative, the compliance
officer, the chairman of the special investigation
committee, a member of the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee of EDS
Wellness Holdings Limited (“EDS Wellness”), a
company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
operated by the Stock Exchange under stock
code: 8176 and a 70.18% owned subsidiary of
the Company, with effect from 19 January 2015;

(g) a discretionary bonus of HK$1,000,000 was paid
to Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy on 22 January 2015;
and

(h) the monthly salary of Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy has
been revised to HK$116,000 with effect from 1
February 2014.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE
OPTIONS

At 31 December 2014, the interests of the directors
and chief executive of the Company and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as
follows:

Long positions

a. Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

“Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

%%Kigﬁﬁkéﬁﬁﬁ&%ﬁﬁz
&

R-ZZBE-—NE+=-RA=+—8  BEXQFR
BRERBEEHEIGEEE 2B EMETRE
8% RIRAQTRBEIFMRE LTRITAZES
ETEERSGNEETRIMERAN  AQAE
ERFETHAERKECHBALINAAT
FEEBELIEZRM - HERODREEENE
BZERWMT :

wE
a. AATEREEOO BrzEER

Percentage of

Number of the issued share
issued ordinary capital of the
shares held Company
Name of director Note  Capacity BEEZE®BT EARATE T
EEpnE Kz B EZEREE BAE D
Mr. Lei Hong Wai 1 Held by controlled 105,708,000 19.30%
TIEEESE corporations
FEH AT 2 ERE
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, 1 Held by controlled 105,708,000 19.30%
Elton corporations
REIELEE SEBAT 2R
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan 1 Held by controlled 105,708,000 19.30%
REIE) 4 corporations
FEFAR 2 ERE
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy Beneficial owner 2,449,500 0.48%
PRIEZE S 4 EREBA
Note: HaF
1. Twin Success International Limited is owned as to 1. Twin Success International Limited &

50% by Silver Pacific International Limited and as to
50% by Silver Pacific Development Limited. Silver
Pacific International Limited is wholly owned by Mr.
Lei Hong Wai. Silver Pacific Development Limited is
owned as to 50% by Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton
and as to 50% by Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan.

Bl F Silver Pacific International Limited
#H 50% K Silver Pacific Development
Limited # & 50% ° Silver Pacific Inter-
national Limited HZHELEE 2 EH
A o Silver Pacific Development Limited
DRIBRBELEEEE50% RIREIE £ 4+
#EH50% °
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE
OPTIONS (Continued)

EERFETBRAERROEEREZ
W= ()

Long positions (Continued) We(E)
b. Share options b. BikE
Number of Number of
share options underlying
Name of director Capacity held shares
EEpA g% BEZBREHE HEROH A
Mr. Lei Hong Wai Beneficial owner 950 950
THERE EREEA
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy Beneficial owner 5,470,950 5,470,950
PBRE2EE T4 BEREEA

Other than the holdings disclosed above, none of the
directors, chief executive and their associates had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations at 31 December 2014.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme
are set out in note 50 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

The following table discloses movements in the
Company’s share options during the year:

"Report of the Directors

BKEE)

EFEHE

THREEARANFRZBREZD :

Outstanding Outstanding
at 1 January at 31 December
2014 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2014
Share R=B-WF during during during R-Z-IF
option type —-RA-8 the year the year theyear +-A=t1—H
B AEER e R AT RERRL RERTHE RERKK i RATE
Directors and chief executive
EERFETHAR
Mr. Lei Hong Wai
THREEE 2007B 950 - - - 950
950 - - - 950
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy 2004 1,441 - - (1,441) -
REELE 2007B 950 - - - 950
2013 2,960,000 - - (2,960,000) -
2014A - 1,600,000 - - 1,600,000
2014B - 3,870,000 - - 3,870,000
2,962,391 5,470,000 - (2,961,441) 5,470,950
Total directors and chief
executive
ESRTETBAEEH 2,963,341 5,470,000 - (2,961,441) 5,471,900
Employees and consultants 2004 6,925 - - (6,925) -
EEREM 2007A 4,588 - - - 4,588
2007B 22,113 - - - 22,113
2013 20,840,000 - - (20,840,000) -
2014A - 24,760,000 - - 24,760,000
2014B - 42,350,000 - - 42,350,000
Total employees and consultants
EEREBA 20,873,626 67,110,000 - (20,846,925) 67,136,701
Total
@t 23,836,967 72,580,000 - (23,808,366) 72,608,601

The closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before 8 January 2014, the date of grant
of the 2014A share options, was HK$0.84.

The closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before 2 September 2014, the date of
grant of the 2014B share options, was HK$0.69.

AN BRMBE-ZZ—NE— F/\H(2014A

BREXHAH) A ZWHER0.848TT °

ARAABRHEE_-_ZT—NFENILHE ZH(2014B

BREXHBH) A ZWHER0.698T -
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option holdings disclosed above,
at no time during the year was the Company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following
connected transactions:

(@) On 26 August 2014, EDS Distribution Limited
(“EDS Distribution”), a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, as borrower entered
into a loan agreement with Koffman Investment
Limited (“Koffman Investment”), a company
which is 50% owned by Mr. Yu Zhen Hua
Johnny (the chairman and a director of EDS
Wellness), as lender relating to the grant of a
loan in the principal amount of HK$1,000,000
to EDS Distribution for financing the working
capital of EDS Wellness and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “EDS Wellness Group”). On 3
November 2014, EDS Distribution and Koffman
Investment entered into an extension agreement,
pursuant to which the principal amount of the
loan granted under the loan agreement dated 26
August 2014 was increased to HK$3,000,000.
The loan is interest bearing at 5.00% per annum,
unsecured and repayable on 25 August 2015. As
the terms of the loan are better than the normal
commercial terms and the loan is not secured
by the assets of the EDS Wellness Group, the
financial assistant received by EDS Distribution
from Koffman Investment is fully exempted from
the connected transaction requirements under
the Listing Rules and/or the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

For the purpose of reducing administrative
expenses and audit fees of the EDS Wellness
Group, EDS Wellness as vendor entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with Koffman
Investment as purchaser relating to the disposal
of the entire issued share capital of Blu Spa
Group Limited at a nominal cash consideration of
HK$1.00 on 19 December 2014. Blu Spa Group
Limited holds the entire equity interest in Blu Spa
(Hong Kong) Limited, which is the intermediate
holding company of seven subsidiaries (the
“BS Group”). Blu Spa (Hong Kong) Limited is
in the process of being wound up and joint
liquidators have been appointed for the winding
up of Blu Spa (Hong Kong) Limited. The assets
and liabilities of the BS Group have not been
consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. As at the date of the
sale and purchase agreement, the BS Group
was indebted to EDS Wellness in an amount of
HK$241,420,000, which was fully impaired in
the financial statements of EDS Wellness in the
year ended 30 June 2014. Given that the BS
Group is severely insolvent, it is expected that
no dividend will be distributed in respect of the
equity interest in Blu Spa (Hong Kong) Limited.
The disposal constitutes a connected transaction
of the Company under the Listing Rules. As
all the applicable percentage ratios under the
Listing Rules and/or the GEM Listing Rules in
respect of the disposal are less than 5% and
the consideration is less than HK$3,000,000, the
disposal is fully exempted from the connected
transaction requirements under the Listing Rules
and/or the GEM Listing Rules.

During the year, EDS Distribution paid rental
of HK$240,000 to Koffman Corporate Service
Limited, which is wholly and beneficially owned
by Mr. Yu Zhen Hua, Johnny (the chairman
and a director of EDS Wellness), pursuant to
the tenancy agreement dated 1 April 2014 and
entered into between EDS Distribution and
Koffman Corporate Service Limited. As all the
applicable percentage ratios under the Listing
Rules and/or the GEM Listing Rules in respect of
the transactions contemplated under the tenancy
agreement are less than 5% and the annual
rental payment for each year during the 22-month
tenancy ending on 31 January 2016 is less than
HK$3,000,000, the transactions contemplated
under the tenancy agreement are fully exempted
from the connected transaction requirements
under the Listing Rules and/or the GEM Listing
Rules.

(b)
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2014, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
shows that the following shareholders had notified
the Company of relevant interests in the issued share
capital of the Company.

Long positions

a. Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

il

EE é Il\,\J

FRLE] LN FEBEA D RBEHEM
REBDEB2EERITHREN -

s
E
FERR

R-ZE—NF+-A=+—8  KLFRER
ZRPERFIFEIBIRFEZETERRETH

BR o TIHRREAREBEADARACHITREZ
FRERAEARAT
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a. AATEREE0IIBITZZLER

Percentage

Number of of the issued

issued ordinary share capital of

shares held the Company

Name of shareholder Notes Capacity BEZERT (ADEERST

REEHE Mzt 5% EEREE BAE D

Twin Success International Limited 1 Beneﬂcial owner 105,708,000 19.30%

ERERA

Silver Pacific International Limited Tand 2 Held by controlled corporation 105,708,000 19.30%
1E2 RERDE 2 ES

Silver Pacific Development Limited 1and 3 Held by controlled corporation 105,708,000 19.30%
1R3 ZRHAR 2 EE

Mr. Lei Hong Wai 1and 2 Held by controlled corporations 105,708,000 19.30%
FRREEE 1R2 FRHAR 2R

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton 1and 3 Held by controlled corporations 105,708,000 19.30%
REIELE 1E3 REFLR 2R

Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan 1and 3 Held by contrg_lled corporations 105,708,000 19.30%
REIEN £ 4 1E3 RERDE 2 ES

Asia Vest Partners VIl Limited 4 Held by controlled corporations 129,412,174 9.95%
EELr NG

Asia Vest Partners X Limited 4 Held by controlled corporations 129,412,174 9.95%
FERHAR 2R

Asia Vest Partners Limited 4 Held by controlled corporations 129,412,174 9.95%
RERLR 2R

Mr. Andrew Nam Sherrill 4 Held by controlled corporations 129,412,174 9.95%

HERLE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Long positions (Continued)

a.

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
(Continueqd)

Notes:

1.

Twin Success International Limited is owned as to
50% by Silver Pacific International Limited and as to
50% by Silver Pacific Development Limited.

""Report of the Directors

EFEHE

FERR(E)
wR(E)

a.

AABEBREECN BT ZEBR (&)

wizt :

1. Twin Success International Limited 7z
Bl e Silver Pacific International Limited
%5 50% K Silver Pacific Development
Limited ##H& 50% °

2. Silver Pacific International Limited is wholly owned 2. Silver Pacific International Limited 2=
by Mr. Lei Hong Wai. HWEEEZERS -
3. Silver Pacific Development Limited is owned as to 3. Silver Pacific Development Limited 7
50% by Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton and as to 50% BIRRBELEEHEE50% RIREIB S
by Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan. B50% °
4.  The number of issued ordinary shares held and 4. BFEOBOTEBRERAHBERALAACEH
the percentage of the issued share capital of the TRANE DL  DEBEBERER=ZZ
Company are based on the Disclosure of Interests ZELHFNANBARRBARRZHERE
Notices filed to the Company by the relevant AN
shareholders on 4 September 2007.
Share options b. Bk
Number of share Number of
Name of shareholder Capacity options held underlying shares
IR E B 54 BEZBRERE HERHH B
Mr. Lei Hong Wai Beneficial owner 950 950

FHELE

BERERA

Derivatives to the ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company

o

AATEROOVIBAEERZITETA

Number of

derivatives

(physically

settled) Number of

BEZTE underlying
Name of shareholder Note Capacity TIAHE shares
RERER Hrit 5% (BEMRWK) HERAHE
Unique Talent Group Limited 1 Other 1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000

Hity
China Jiuhao Health Industry 1 Held by controlled corporation 1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000
Corporation Limited

FEOFEREEXERRAA ZEH AR ZER
Note: iiz4

1.

Unique Talent Group Limited is a wholly owned
subsidiary of China Jiuhao Health Industry
Corporation Limited.

1. Unique Talent Group Limited A" E]9
HREEXERARZERE -

KEHE MR EBRAT
— S R

59



60

Report of the Directors
EFERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not
been notified of any other relevant interests or short
positions in the issued share capital of the Company
at 31 December 2014.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the
independent non-executive directors, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

INTERESTS IN COMPETITORS

None of the directors or their respective associates
has any interest in a business that competed or was
likely to compete with the business of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s retirement benefit schemes
are set out in note 51 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments policy for the employees of the
Group is set up by the directors of the Company on
the basis of their individual performance, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
approved by the Board on the recommendation of
the Remuneration Committee with reference to their
duties and responsibilities in the Company.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as
an incentive to directors and eligible persons, details
of the share option scheme is set out in note 50 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the
directors of the Company as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2014, the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers accounted for 9.36% (2013: 22.20%) and
41.58% (2013: 69.23%) of its turnover respectively.

In 2014, the Group’s largest supplier and five largest
suppliers accounted for 57.54% (2013: Nil) and
82.22% (2013: Nil) of its purchases respectively.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate
of a director or a shareholder of the Company (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) have an interest in
any of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events occurring after
the reporting period are set out in note 56 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited as auditors of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015
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Biographical Details of Directors
EFEREFT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lei Hong Wai, aged 46, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company and the Chairman
of the Board on 18 January 2010 and 1 February
2010, respectively. He is also the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Mr. Lei is responsible for
the development of the overall strategic planning
and management of the Group. He has over 13 years
of extensive experience in corporate management,
investment and business development. He was an
executive director of the Company during the period
from 28 September 2001 to 13 October 2005. He
was a director of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies Limited, which promotes interaction
amongst its members which are listed companies in
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China, in
2002. He also holds directorships in the subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Lei is also a director of Twin
Success International Limited, the substantial
shareholder of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
Mr. Lei has been appointed as the chairman and an
executive director of 21 Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) under
stock code: 1003, since 10 April 2014.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton, aged 49, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 1
February 2011. Mr. Cheung is responsible for the
business development of the Group. He has over 25
years of experience in the area of corporate finance
and securities industries. He holds a Master Degree
in Accounting and Finance from the University of
Lancaster in the United Kingdom. He also holds
directorships in certain subsidiaries and the unlisted
associates of the Company. Mr. Cheung is also a
director of Twin Success International Limited, the
substantial shareholder of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance. Mr. Cheung is the elder brother of Mr.
Cheung Kwok Fan, an executive director of the
Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy, aged 52, was appointed as
an executive director of the Company on 18 January
2010. Mr. Chan is responsible for the financial
management of the Group and the overall operations
and management of EDS Wellness Holdings Limited
(“EDS Wellness”), a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market operated by the Stock Exchange
under stock code: 8176 and a 70.18% owned
subsidiary of the Company. He has over 26 years
of experience in accounting and financial control.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a CPA member of
CPA Australia and a non-practicing member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He holds a Bachelor of Administration Degree from
the University of Ottawa in Canada and a Master of
Commerce Degree in Professional Accounting from
the University of New South Wales in Australia. Mr.
Chan also holds directorships in two subsidiaries of
the Company. He is the Company Secretary of the
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Chan has been appointed as an executive
director of EDS Wellness since 10 April 2014. On 19
January 2015, Mr. Chan has been appointed as the
chairman of the board of directors, an authorised
representative, the compliance officer, the chairman
of the special investigation committee, a member
of the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of EDS Wellness.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan, aged 47, was appointed as
the non-executive director on 31 August 2011 and re-
designated as an executive director of the Company
on 18 September 2014. Mr. Cheung is responsible
for the overall management of the Group’s design
and sale of jewelry business. He holds directorships
in three subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheung
has over 23 years’ working experience in the field
of architecture. He is a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Architects, a member of The Royal
Australian Institute of Architects, Registered Architect
in Hong Kong and an Authorised Person in the list of
Architects. He obtained his Bachelor Degree of Arts
in Architectural Studies from The University of Hong
Kong in 1989 and a Bachelor Degree in Architecture
from The University of Hong Kong in 1991. He was
selected as an awardee of the Ten Outstanding Young
Persons Selection organised by Junior Chamber
of International Hong Kong in 2005. He has been
appointed as an Adjunct Lecturer of the Architecture
Subject Group of HKU School of Professional and
Continuing Education since 1 January 2014. Mr.
Cheung has been the director of his own architectural
practice, Oritecture Limited, since 10 December 2009.
He is the younger brother of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai,
Elton, an executive director of the Company. Mr.
Cheung has been appointed as an executive director
of 21 Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange under stock code: 1003,
since 10 April 2014.
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Biographical Details of Directors
EFEREFT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wan Shing Chi, aged 44, has over 21 years of
experience in the field of construction engineering
and is currently a site coordinator of a reputable
construction company in Hong Kong. He holds a
Bachelor Degree of Engineering with honours from
University of Melbourne, Australia and is a member
of the Asia Institute of Building. Mr. Wan joined the
Company in May 2010.

Mr. Ng Heung Yan, aged 44, has over 12 years of
experience in metal work engineering design and
currently works as a design manager in a private
engineering company in Hong Kong. He was
graduated from Monash University in Australia with
a Bachelor Degree of Engineering (Industrial and
Computing) in 1993. Mr. Ng joined the Company in
August 2011.

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen, aged 50, is a fellow member
of both Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom, as well as a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. He has over 25 years of
experience in auditing, financial management, mergers
and acquisitions gained from certain senior finance
related positions in an international accounting firm
in Hong Kong, companies listed in Hong Kong and a
company listed in the United States of America. He is
currently the chief financial officer and the company
secretary of a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong joined the Company
in November 2011. Mr. Wong has been appointed as
an independent non-executive director of 21 Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange under stock code: 1003, since 10
April 2014.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Bl 4 & F B oA R A
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HL

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Eternity Investment Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 67 to 231, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our
audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2014,
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Chi Fat
Practising Certificate Number: P05467

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
RAMBE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$'OOQ
Htat FET FET
Continuing operations ﬁﬂﬁ@“%ﬁ
Turnover = %ﬁ? 7 110,755 25,793
Cost of sales SHE R (27,001) —
Gross profit EF 83,754 25,793
Investment and other income RERHEMKA 8 3,805 42,955
Other gains and losses Hib Wz R B8 9 200,409 91,072
Selling and distribution expenses &R D HEEX (1,350) —
Administrative expenses TR (52,783) (49,997)
Share of results of associates i A PNCE S 22 (555) (3,720)
Profit from operations R RF 10 233,280 106,103
Finance costs MEER 11 (406) —
Profit before taxation Bﬁﬂau & Al 232,874 106,103
Income tax expense Fris#iRa X 14 (7,727) (5,560)
Profit for the year from REFELSEEKZ
continuing operations REEHEF 225,147 100,543
Discontinued operations BRI REER
Profit/(loss) for the year from RECKRIEKEER
discontinued operations REERF,(FE) 15 153 (3,306)
Profit for the year REERF 225,300 97,237
Profit for the year attributable to: LU~ A T E{EAEEHEF :
Owners of the Company RDAEE A 238,077 97,238
Non-controlling interests R ER (12,777) (1)
225,300 97,237
Earnings/(loss) per share BRER, (FHE) 16
From continuing operations REFESEER
Basic E=%iN HK44.72 cents &l HK24.81 cents &l
Diluted g HK44.64 cents %l HK24.81 cents &l
From discontinued operations RECKRIEEEER
Basic B=WiN HK0.03 cent &4l HK(0.81) cent il
Diluted e HK0.03 cent 1L HK(0.81) cent &l
From continuing and REFELSER
discontinued operations ERIEREEK
Basic B=9IN HK44.75 cents &l HK24.00 cents 7l
Diluted #aE HK44.67 cents B4l HK24.00 cents &1l

The accompanying notes form an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss'and'Other Comprehensive Income
GRERRREfMEZEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

2014 2013
—ZET-NF —2—=
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
Bt FET FET
Profit for the year REERF 225,300 97,237
Other comprehensive income for ZAFEHMEEUKE
the year, net of income tax BRI EH#%
Items that may be reclassified HETEEHIES
subsequently to profit or loss: BmkzHEE
Exchange differences arising on REBINEBEEZ
translating foreign operations B E%E 1 =
Net gain/(loss) arising on AREESHEES R
revaluation of available-for-sale Bz (EE)
financial assets FEE 25 43,212 (5,270)
Reclassification adjustments FREHETHEE
relating to available-for-sale TRIEEZ
financial assets disposed of BN ERAR - (7,079)
Total comprehensive income for XNEEZEA KR
the year 268,513 84,888
Total comprehensive income for LU TNATEEEREE
the year attributable to: 2HEAUWE :
Owners of the Company AATEE A 281,290 84,889
Non-controlling interests R ER (12,777) (1)
268,513 84,888
The accompanying notes form an integral part of M 2 BN G e BRER -9 -

these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FeMEBERIE

At 31 December 2014 R-—ZE—FE+_—F=+—H

2014 2013
—E-EF —E—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kzt FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BERSEE 18 13,074 89
Investment properties REYE 19 - =
Intangible assets BERE 20 - 1,929
Goodwill (EES 21 89,265 —
Interests in associates REE AR 2 s 22 - 46,916
Convertible notes receivables FEUR AT BR R 5 23 - 24,602
Deposit for investment KRERS 24 60,000 —
Available-for-sale financial assets AI{EESRIEE 25 68,887 172
Loans receivables e & =X 26 230,000 605,148
461,226 678,856
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 27 27,100 =
Trade receivables g 5 EWFIE 28 17,232 37
Loans receivables W E K 26 720,549 168,476
Deposits, prepayments and other e BNRER
receivables H{th FE 5K IE 29 10,495 11,191
Amount due from an associate FE WL B & X Bl TR IE 30 3,528 3,528
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEFABRRZ
through profit or loss TREE 31 598,705 49,046
Convertible notes receivables Al G R ES 23 - 200,840
Conversion options embedded in R TaREEREZ
convertible notes receivables SRR RE 32 - 77,572
Restricted bank deposits ZRFRITER 33 19,701 —
Cash and cash equivalents REeERBEEEEY 33 384,778 662,153
1,782,088 1,172,843
Assets classified as held for sale PEABIEHEZEE 34 - —
Total assets BEE#AE 2,243,314 1,851,699
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable 74~ F#HE A 1L
to owners of the Company BAR #HE
Share capital &N 35 5,477 4,567
Reserves & 2,139,174 1,820,805
Equity attributable to owners of A R#EE AEL
the Company X 2,144,651 1,825,372
Non-controlling interests FEIER RS 11,790 (3)
Total equity A 2,156,441 1,825,369
KERBEIREBRAT 69
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Consolidated Statement of Financial'Position
R PBIRRE

At 31 December 2014 R=ZF—F+=F=+—H

2014 2013
—E-mF —=—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Hiat FET FET
LIABILITIES af&
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables B ENFIEA 36 13,165 —
Accruals and other payables FESTE AR H R IE 37 17,545 10,056
Other borrowings H i fE 38 3,850 =
Promissory notes A EE 39 6,069 =
Tax payables FE{S i 1E 21,709 16,043
Deposits from customers EEE® 40 80 -
Deferred revenue IEE U 2 41 24,000 —
Obligations under finance leases MEREEME 42 444 -
86,862 26,099
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Obligations under finance leases MEHESERE 42 11 -
Deferred taxation EERTE 43 - 231
11 231
Total liabilities aEAHE 86,873 26,330
Total equity and liabilities EEkEEEE 2,243,314 1,851,699
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,695,226 1,146,744
Total assets less current EEAERRD
liabilities =L 2,156,452 1,825,600
The consolidated financial statements were approved REMBRREN-—"F-RF=A=-+tBE
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on EEEHAERTETE  YATIALREKSE
27 March 2015 and are signed on its behalf by: F:
Lei Hong Wai Chan Kin Wah, Billy
ZiEE PR {2 2=
Director Director
EE EE
The accompanying notes form an integral part of BERfT 2 M sE B R AR S B TSR R 2 — 20D

these consolidated financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
MERAE

At 31 December 2014 R=ZFE—jF+=F=+—H

2014 2013
—E-NF —E-—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'OOQ
HraE FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Deposit for investment REZRS® 24 60,000 —
Interests in subsidiaries R B AR 2R 44 1,248,942 1,034,377
1,308,942 1,034,377
Current assets /?*EEJEE
Prepayments AR 29 933 59
Cash and cash equivalents iﬁé&ﬁé%@% 33 808 565
1,741 624
Total assets EEHAE 1,310,683 1,035,001
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable Z2T%EAE AEMWN
to owners of the Company IR A R &S
Share capital R 35 5,477 4,567
Reserves & 45 1,002,795 936,774
Total equity ERBE 1,008,272 941,341
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities nREBAE
Accruals FESTE A 37 2,565 3,011
Amounts due to subsidiaries iRl NGB 46 299,846 90,649
302,411 93,660
Total liabilities =Rt b0l 302,411 93,660
Total equity and liabilities EzkaEEE 1,310,683 1,035,001
Net current liabilities REBEEFH (300,670) (93,036)
Total assets less current EEABRRD
liabilities =R 1,008,272 941,341

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27
March 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

MBHRREN=-FT—
SRHERRETE  YATIATRARES:

Lei Hong Wai Chan Kin Wah, Billy
e PR G2 25
Director Director
EE EE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statem
FeEQEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 EZ -—F—WFE+=-F=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATRRARE
Available-
for-sale
financial
Share-hased assets Non-
Share Share Capital ~ Contributed ~ payment  revaluation  Exchange Other  Retained controlling
capital premium reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve profits ~ Sub-total interests Total
e
WRRES  dHEE
Ba  ROEE  EARE  EEER 0 XHEE  EGEE  ENEE  EEEE AR Mt FERER it
HKS$'000 HKS§'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
& & &R &R iz 7Ei 7E i7:23 & &7 & 74
(Note g (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note d)
Wza)  (BED)  (BE) (B
At 1 January 2013 R-E-=E-F-A 2514 242,048 19,844 404,663 9,884 12,349 - - 830,592 1,521,954 @ 1521982
Profit for the year FERRA - - - - - - - - 97,238 97,238 (1) 97,287
Other comprehensive income fo the year AEERHEANA
Net loss arising on revaluation of ihESRER
avallable-for-sale financial assets EfEEIRERE = - - - - (5,270) - - - (5210) - (5.270)
Reclassification adjustments relating to EECHETRLE
avallable-for-sale financial assets SREEENE
disposed of E - - - - - (7,019 - - - (7,079 - (7,019
Total comprehensive income for the year AEERENALE - - - - - (12,349) - - 97,238 84,889 1) 84,888
Placing of new shares RENRH 410 20,845 - - - - - - - 30315 - 30315
Open offer of new shares DREENRR 1523 181,146 - - - - - - - 182,669 - 182,669
Share ssue expenses LS - (2776) - - - - - - - (2176) - (2.176)
Share-based payment expenses WREFAZ 2R - - - - 7,081 - - - - 7,081 - 7,081
Release on lapse of share options BhRERNERE - - - - (3) - - - 3% - - -
Share of other resenve of an associate AMEEDIEMEE - - - - - - - 1,240 - 1,240 - 1,240
At31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014~ R=B-=F+ZA=1-BR
“E-mE-f-A 4561 450,263 19,844 404,663 16,929 - - 1,240 927,866 1,826,372 8 1825369
Profit for the year FERRA - - - - - - - - 28,077 288017 (f27m 225300
Other comprehensive income for the year AEERHEANA
Exchange difierences on translating BERNEREL,
foreign operations E3ER - - - - - - 1 - - 1 - 1
Net gain aising on revaluation of T hESREREN
available-for-sale financial assets ErzhaFE - - - - - 821 - - - 8212 - B2
Total comprehensive income for the year FERRAUALE - - - - - 821 1 - 28,077 281,290 (271 28513
Placing of new shares EENRR 910 70070 - - - - - - - 70,980 - 70,980
Share ssue expenses REBER - (190) - - - - - - - (190) - (790)
Release of reserve upon deemed disposal RipfELE-BRELT
of an associate RERE - - - - - - - (1,240) - (1,240) - (1,240)
Release of eserve upon disposal RrE-EHEL
of a subsidiary MRERE - - () - - - - - - ) = (1)
Non-controling interests arising on acquisiton i E-EHEATES 2
of a subsidiary b2 - - - - - - - - - - 810 810
Open offer of new shares of a subsidiary -EREAEZARRENRS - - - - - - - (1,027) - (1,07) 19,144 18,117
Changes in ownership inerests inasubsidlary ~ REEEHE 51482
upon deemed disposal without loss of BLE-BHELT
contrl fiEREE 228 - - - - - - - 348 - 343 4393 7816
Changes in ownership inerests inasubsidlary ¥R TBRESER-ERELT
upon conversion of convertble bonds fAkREZ2S - - - - - - - (#3739) = 63,739) m (351
Share-based payment expenses WRAFAZ 2R - - - - 10,389 - - - - 10,389 - 10,389
Release on lapse of share options BREXNERE - - - - 7081) - - - 7,081 - - -
At 31 December 2014 R-E-BETZA=1-A 5411 519,543 19,833 404,663 2,231 8212 1 (41,339) 1,173,004 2,144,651 11,790 2,156,441
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FEERBgExR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

Notes:

()

(b)

(c)

(d)

Capital reserve represents the difference of share capital
and share premium of the subsidiaries and the nominal
value of the 880 shares issued by Riche (BVI) Limited
(formerly known as Ocean Shores (BVI) Limited) prior to
the allotment of 120 shares to Classical Statue Limited and
the amount arising from issue of share by a subsidiary.

Contributed surplus represents the net amount transferred
from share capital and share premium account to retained
profits/accumulated losses account pursuant to the special
resolutions passed at the special general meetings held on
22 August 2003, 30 April 2008 and 12 December 2011.

Share-based payment reserve represents the fair value
of services estimated to be received in exchange for
the grant of the relevant share options over the relevant
vesting periods, the total of which is based on the fair
value of the share options at grant date. The amount for
each reporting period is determined by spreading the
fair value of the share options over the relevant vesting
periods (if any) and is recognised as staff costs and
related expenses with a corresponding increase in the
share-based payment reserve account.

Available-for-sale financial assets revaluation reserve
represents cumulative gains and losses on revaluation
of available-for-sale financial assets recognised in other
comprehensive income less those cumulative gains and
losses recycled and recognised in profit or loss upon
derecognition of available-for-sale financial assets.

pt :

(@ BEXRBEMBRAAZRARKMZEHED
Classical Statue Limited & 2% 120 & &R 12 Al
Riche (BVI) Limited (5% Ocean Shores (BVI)
Limited) AT8 172 880 IRIZ A 2 EE R B A 7
BITRMOABRIEZELE

(b) EBERBRHKERBR-ZE=FNA=-f+=R =
ZENFNA=+AR=Z——5+=A+=H
BT ZRREIAELEBZHIAZBEERA
kROBEREREREEF R BERZF
5 o

() UBRHEAXNREEENEESEBHRNRLHEER
B LR SIS R R T 2 AP E - HAR
DREBRERREABZAFEFE - &1
Mz SR EBSBERELFEREREE B
(MB)AHOEE - WHERRHE T RAKRAREGF
3 0 M BARR 4 T S S (bt BR R AR PR 3 A

d AHHESHEESHREEENEGEEKEA
BAZAHHESCHEEEM 2R RERE
B HBERKLBRRAATHEESHEERC KWE
WMEm RTER 2 R REREE -

KIERBIREBRAR
—E—NFEFR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

ﬁ -, L— 1
*ﬁ%iﬂﬁlmz
For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ
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2014 2013
—E-E —F—=
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
BtaE FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RESEE
Profit before taxation from REFERLE R 2 BRBAT
continuing operations i A 232,874 106,103
Profit/(loss) before taxation from RECKRIELEERL ZBREE
discontinued operations AmA(E58) 15 153 (3,306)
Adjustments for: BT IE G EL 2 -
Cumulative gains reclassified from AR IEEZAATHHEESR
equity to profit or loss upon EECHERENIE
derecognition of available-for- ZERRZ ARG
sale financial assets 9 - (7,079)
Depreciation of property, plant M BERRZE
and equipment ZIE 10 2,388 95
Dividend income (=N 8 - (36,479)
Gain arising on change in fair ABREWARREEE
value upon conversion of AT EEHEE
convertible notes receivables pdl g 9 (133,759) (16,446)
Gain arising on change in fair ERABRREBERE Z
value of conversion options HRREECATYE
embedded in convertible notes BEELE 2 WS
receivables 9 - (29,836)
(Gain)/loss arising on change in BRAFETTABRRZ
fair value of financial assets at TRIEEATEEH
fair value through profit or loss EEfz (&) FHiE 9 (27,483) 5,307
Gain arising on early redemption P ER EWATBRREE
of convertible notes receivables EEzWz 9 (1,611) =
Gain on deemed disposal of an RIELEBE AR 2
associate 9 (7,669) —
Gain on disposal of available-for- HETHEESREEZ
sale financial assets e 9 (66,883) —
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BERSEZEZ
plant and equipment U &= 9 (139) —
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 2 W& 9 (1,671) (588)
Gain on disposal of trademark HEREZ G 9 (350) —
Impairment loss recognised in CEIABRTEEZ
respect of intangible assets WERE 5 - 3,793
Impairment loss recognised in EEREMERFIEZ
respect of other receivables REEE 9 46,519 —
Imputed interest income on WA RREE 2 (EE
convertible notes receivables FE U A 9 (7,686) (38,233)
Interest income on bank deposits  $RITERZFE WA 8 (2,179) (6,462)
Interest expenses FMERRX 11 406 —
Loss arising on change in fair REMFE A FESBEE
value of investment properties ZEE 9 - 1,940
Loss on disposal of investment HEREMHEZER
properties 10 - 13,000
Reversal of impairment loss ERRARBE BERZ
recognised in respect of interest ENIEL Ei=E: B
in an associate 9 - (6,137)
Share of results of associates i P =N 555 3,720
Share-based payment expenses MR T 2Bk 10 10,389 7,081
Written down of property, plant WEEME - MERERE
and equipment 9 322 —
Written off of inventories WiEFE 9 1 —

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ ==

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEBeaRER
—mE = f = —ALEE

2014 2013
—E-E —F—=
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Kt FET FET
Operating cash flows before EESSEBZKERS
movements in working capital TE 44177 (8,527)
Increase in inventories FEE M (24,486) -
(Increase)/decrease in trade g3 EERE GEm), md
receivables (11,956) 4
Increase in loans receivables JFE U & FRAE 0 (238,367) (712,871)
Decrease in deposits, prepayments 2% - FA{IFIE & HAutfEUR
and other receivables RIER D 5,100 572
(Increase)/decrease in financial BAFEGTTABRRZERM
assets at fair value through profit BEEGEM),HD
or loss (213,372) 207,205
Increase in trade payables B 5 I RIEE N 12,766 -
Decrease in accruals and other FEstE AR MR RIE
payables W (1,341) (68,124)
Decrease in rental deposits received & WHE &R R - (1,440)
Decrease in deposits from BEFRERD
customers (14) —
Increase in deferred revenue I 3E U 2 12 0 2,131 =
Cash used in operations EEMARS (425,362) (568,181)
Interest paid 2 FE (58) —
Tax paid [SERE 2 (2,735) (1,140)
Net cash used in operating RETHFMARESTFE
activities (428,155) (569,321)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Acquisition of convertible notes W B FE UK AT R AR R 15
receivables (40,000) —
Dividend income [3SUON 8 - 36,479
Interest received ELEISE 2,179 4,637
Interest received from convertible  EEWATERRKREE 2B W
notes receivables A 4,241 30,384
Net cash inflow of acquisition of KB B AR ZEERA
subsidiaries FEE 47 30,658 —
Net cash inflow of disposal of HENBARZBRERA
subsidiaries R 48 1,999 24,532
Payment for deposit for investment X{TRERE (60,000) —
Placement of restricted bank FAZRFIWITFR
deposits (38) —
Proceeds from disposal of Hjﬁ—ﬂ HESMEEMS
available-for-sale financial assets g 94,170 41,280
Proceeds from disposal of ﬁ%?xﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%?ﬂ
investment properties - 586,000
Proceeds from disposal of property, ﬁ’E%% s BENREMS
plant and equipment FIE 160 —
Proceeds from early redemption of hEE“IElFELI&T}ﬁmeFZ
convertible notes receivables T8 sRIE 27,000 =
Purchase of property, plant and BEME  BMERRE
equipment 18 (870) (13)
Net cash generated from investing REEFEELE 2 HESFE
activities 59,499 723,299
KIEREIREBRAF
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REBaRE
For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ
2014 2013
—E—E e
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kt FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE)
Net proceeds from issue of new BATHRD BRI FEE
shares 70,190 210,208
Net proceeds from issue of new Bﬁ%ﬁﬂ?‘i‘ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
shares of a subsidiary MIEFER 25,933 —
Proceeds from other borrowings Hit a8 RIE 2,450 —
Repayment of obligation under RMEREEETR
finance leases (293) -
Repayment of promissory notes AGEBNR (7,000) -
Net cash generated from METHEEZRSFHE
financing activities 91,280 210,208
Net (decrease)/increase in cash HERBLZEYWORL),
and cash equivalents 3 hnEAE (277,376) 364,186
Cash and cash equivalents at FHOzEERESEEY
beginning of year 662,153 297,967
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXxSH o8
changes 1 =
Cash and cash equivalents atend R ZHERBELZEY
of year 384,778 662,153
Analysis of the balances of cash BERBRESZEEBYLEHDIM
and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHEERES 384,778 662,153
Restricted bank deposits ZRHIRITER 33 19,701 —
404,479 662,153
Less: restricted bank deposits B ZRERITER (19,701) —
Included in cash and cash SFAZEMBEMRRERZ
equivalents per the consolidated RERBEEEEY
statement of financial position 33 384,778 662,153
The accompanying notes form an integral part of MEM 2 M sE B A G M HRET 2 — o

these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as
an exempted company with limited liability and its
issued shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The address of the registered office of the
Company is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company’s principal activity is investment
holding and the principal activities of its
subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes
44 and 22 respectively to the consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong
Dollars (HK$’000), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied,
for the first time, a number of new standards,
amendments and interpretations (“Int”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) (hereinafter
collectively referred to as “new and revised
HKFRSs”), which are effective for the Group’s
financial year beginning on 1 January 2014.

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Investment Entities

and HKAS 27
(Amendments)
HKAS 32 (Amendments) Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities
HKAS 39 (Amendments) Novation of Derivatives and Continuation
of Hedge Accounting
HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies

The Group has early applied the amendments
to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets, which is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014, in the financial year ended 31 December
2013.

—REH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 Investment Entities

The Group has applied the amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 Investment
Entities for the first time in the current year.
The amendments to HKFRS 10 define an
investment entity and require a reporting entity
that meets the definition of an investment entity
not to consolidate its subsidiaries but instead
to measure its subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss in its consolidated and separate
financial statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting
entity is required to:

° obtain funds from one or more investors
for the purpose of providing them with
investment management services;

° commit to its investor(s) that its business
purpose is to invest funds solely for returns
from capital appreciation, investment
income, or both; and

o measure and evaluate performance of
substantially all of its investments on a fair
value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made
to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 to introduce new
disclosure requirements for investment entities.

As the Company is not an investment entity
(assessed based on the criteria set out in
HKFRS 10 at 1 January 2014), the application
of the amendments has had no impact on the
disclosures or the amounts recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2014

it

& P #
(&7

Ik
o

i

U

7

R

Hﬁ il

E‘-:‘
E

Bk

) |

\

N

\

BEERBHEERFE10% - BEEHMBEHR
EERFE12HREBETERE27 KR
BERZIETX

RAFE  NEBCERERETET®
WMEERZE105E - BB BREERLE
12 R B BETERE27HEIREEE
ZABETA o BB ERELERE 105K 2
BT AEHKBREERFELARAE  WHRER
ATX%EFE%E’J%%E%‘;F S A& E KT
BARGER  MARGES KB B EIR
RAERAFESTAERRITEENE D
a o

ARHEERREBERZER  ®RE
7

‘ﬂﬂ$}

ﬁ_

e WR—FBIULREERHNES - U
BEREHIREEERE ;

e MEREEEG HEBBENAM
REEMEARTE REWZHW
EREZOHRMETRE R

o BRATEEEGFTERTMHHESEBKRI
PRE 2K o

BEEVMBREEUNFE12HEREBETE
BRI 27 E/EHMEEIBET - SIABER
EERZHEERE

HRAARLEFREEER(CER=-F—
F-A—-—BREBEFBUBHREENE10
SRATE VR EE R FTME) - MERZEE
AAGARBAEE TSV BREABE
ZERFCEIATHEBHTE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS
32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities for the first time in the current
year. The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the
requirements relating to the offset of financial
assets and financial liabilities. Specifically, the
amendments clarify the meaning of ‘currently
has a legally enforceable right of set-off’ and
‘simultaneous realisation and settlement’.

The amendments have been applied
retrospectively. As the Group does not have any
financial assets and financial liabilities that qualify
for offset, the application of the amendments
has had no impact on the disclosures or on the
amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS
39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation
of Hedge Accounting for the first time in the
current year. The amendments to HKAS 39
provide relief from the requirement to discontinue
hedge accounting when a derivative designated
as a hedging instrument is novated under
certain circumstances. The amendments also
clarify that any change to the fair value of the
derivative designated as a hedging instrument
arising from the novation should be included
in the assessment and measurement of hedge
effectiveness.

The amendments have been applied
retrospectively. As the Group does not have
any derivatives that are subject to novation, the
application of these amendments has had no
impact on the disclosures or on the amounts
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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(T EBMBHREEA ] @)
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BB & 15T
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RIS AMEER TMEE 215
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PEEFETHEERESREGERRA A
Ee ARME 2B BEEREBESR
FORBHANTHIRERE IRIEARKERK
BEIZRE -

ZEBITACEYRRA - BRAKEYL
BEENAEREHENEREERERE
& WERZRSBITALRMYAEEEZES
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HK (IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies

The Group has applied HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies
for the first time in the current year. HK(IFRIC)
- Int 21 addresses the issue as to when to
recognise a liability to pay a levy imposed by a
government. The Interpretation defines a levy,
and specifies that the obligating event that gives
rise to the liability is the activity that triggers the
payment of the levy, as identified by legislation.
The Interpretation provides guidance on how
different levy arrangements should be accounted
for, in particular, it clarifies that neither economic
compulsion nor the going concern basis of
financial statements preparation implies that an
entity has a present obligation to pay a levy that
will be triggered by operating in a future period.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 has been applied
retrospectively. The application of this
Interpretation has had no material impact on the
disclosures or on the amounts recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Save as described above, the application of the
above new and revised HKFRSs had no material
effect on how the results and financial position
for the current or prior accounting periods have
been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no
prior period adjustment has been required.
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NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-
2012 Cycle?

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-
2013 Cycle'

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-
2014 Cycle?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

(Amendments) an Investor and its Associates or Joint

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (Amendments)

HKFRS 11 (Amendments)

Venture®
Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception®

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations®

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers*

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative?

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of

(Amendments) Depreciation and Amortisation?
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants®
(Amendments)
HKAS 19 (Amendments) Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions’
HKAS 27 (Amendments) Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements®

I Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
July 2014, with limited exceptions

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 2016

. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 2017

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

January 2018
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NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) will affect the presentation
and disclosure of certain information in the
consolidated financial statements for the year
ending 31 December 2015. The Group is in the
process of making an assessment of the impact
of these changes.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new
requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. HKFRS
9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to
include requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013
to include the new requirements for general
hedge accounting. Another revised version of
HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include
(a) impairment requirements for financial assets
and (b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a
‘fair value through other comprehensive income’
(“FVTOCI”) measurement category for certain
simple debt instruments.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described
below:

° All recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms of
the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at
FVTOCI. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair
values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised
in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

3. NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value of financial
liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial
assets, HKFRS 9 requires an expected
credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39.
The expected credit loss model requires an
entity to account for expected credit losses
and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised.

The new general hedge accounting
requirements retain the three types of hedge
accounting. However, greater flexibility has
been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the
types of risk components of non-financial
items that are eligible for hedge accounting.
In addition, the effectiveness test has been
overhauled and replaced with the principle
of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also
no longer required. Enhanced disclosure
requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been
introduced.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2014

3. Eﬁﬁ@ﬁii%Z%ﬂ&@%ﬂ

ERMB®

A (&)

T

BEBUBHEEREIRLTHMITR(E

REEEAFEFABERZEH
BEZEMNS  BBUB|MEE
BIFEIRRTE  ZEeMBEZRFEE
ERSBURZBEAFEES 2
THNEMEEKREARZS - BRIE
REMEZERETFEIZEEEE
B R E . FEERRMAER
RAETHERERR - ERE
BEERBREHSIR2EHEER
FEHEFHEFITSEHIREES
"M RIBEFBSEHERFE 395 -
EERAEBEAFESFABERZEH
BEZEENFEHEDSHENES
RAZT -

REMEEREMS  HERNEE
S ERE RN ELEFERE
RE . BREYBMEEEIRR
E-HBAMFERHEEDL - ZEH
FEFEERERERUESREH
HWEREEFERESE AR -
LU R B #) 25 #e 58 LAR B9 15 & &L B
oMz BMAFEBRESR
LBLEEESHA/ERE -

M —REBEHERERE=S
HrhastRE  BREMEERAEY
HENEENRZRRINEEMN -
AERBEREESEREHHIIANT
AR SEREHPEHEEN
FEMEBENERKDER - 5
gh 2RI A AF & 5 RT3 A
[ B IR BRI o ¥ A IR
BHBAGBYNME  URERENEAR
BRI AEBREHMERE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that
the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future may have
a significant impact on the amounts reported
in respect of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities. Regarding the Group’s
financial assets, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed
review has been completed.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which
establishes a single comprehensive model for
entities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1: ldentify the contract(s) with a
customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations
in the contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to
the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as)
the entity satisfies a performance
obligation
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NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS
15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore,
extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

Save as described above, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of new
and revised HKFRSs will have no material effect
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in
the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
which is a collective term that includes all
applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Int
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the historical cost basis
except for certain properties and financial
instruments that are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange
for assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes,
fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement
date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
quoted prices included within Level
1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs
for the asset or liability.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies.

The Group’s books and record are
maintained in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”)
as the directors of the Company control
and monitor the performance and financial
position of the Group in HKS.

Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4, FEESTTHERBEE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued) (b) HZREEE(E)
Business combinations (Continued) EHEOE(E)

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by
IFRS/HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to
fair value at the acquisition date; any gains
or losses arising from such re-measurement
are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed
to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive
income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the
case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions -
that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The
fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Interests in subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the interests in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
a dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which
the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Interests in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost,
and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor’s share
of the profit or loss of the investee after the
date of acquisition. The Group’s investments
in associates include goodwill identified
on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any
difference between the cost of the associate
and the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate
is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit
or loss is recognised in profit or loss, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised
in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Interests in associates (Continued)

The Group determines at the end of
each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate and its carrying
value and recognises the amount adjacent to
“share of results of an associate” accounted
for using equity method in profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream
and downstream transactions between the
Group and its associate are recognised in
the Group’s financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest
in associates are recognised in profit or
loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of
subsidiaries or associates represents the
excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identified
net assets acquired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill that is separately presented in
the financial statements is tested at least
annually for impairment, irrespective of
whether there is any indication that it may
be impaired. In conducting the test, the
carrying value of goodwill is allocated to
the related asset groups or groups of asset
groups which are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the business combination.
If the result of the test indicates that the
recoverable amount of an asset group
or group of asset groups, including the
allocated goodwill, is lower than its carrying
amount, the corresponding impairment
loss is recognised. The impairment loss is
first deducted from the carrying amount of
goodwill that is allocated to the asset group
or group of asset groups, and then deducted
from the carrying amounts of other assets
within the asset groups or groups of asset
groups in proportion to the carrying amounts
of assets other than goodwill.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held
for sale when their carrying amount is to
be recovered principally through a sale
transaction and a sale is considered highly
probable. The non-current assets are stated
at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. Deferred tax assets,
assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets and investment properties,
even if held for sale, would continue to
be measured in accordance with the
policies set out elsewhere in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

Discontinued operations is a component
of the Group’s business, the operations
and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of
business or geographic area of operations,
or is part of a single coordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view
to resale.

When an operation is classified as
discontinued, a single amount is presented
in profit or loss, which comprises the
post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operations and the post-tax gain or loss
recognised on the measurement to fair value
less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the
assets or disposal group constituting the
discontinued operations.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. The
Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured; when it
is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity; and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of
customers, the type of transactions and the
specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue from distribution of films is
recognised when video products or master
materials of films are delivered to customers
and the title has passed.

Revenue from sub-licensing of film rights is
recognised upon delivery of master materials
of films to customers.

Revenue from sale of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised
when sale and purchase contracts become
unconditional.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in
advance, from properties under operating
lease is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the respective leases.

Service fee income is recognised when the
services are rendered.

Revenue arising from money lending is
recognised on a time proportion basis taking
into account the principal outstanding and
the effective interest rate applicable.

Revenue from properties held for sale is
recognised on the execution of a binding
sales agreement. Payments received from
the purchasers prior to this stage are
recorded as deposits received on sales of
properties and are grouped under current
liabilities.

Revenue from sales of beauty products
is recognised on the transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the beauty
products are delivered to customers.
Revenue is shown net of returns, rebates
and discounts and after eliminating sales
within the Group.

Revenue from provision of therapy services
is recognised when service are provided.
Payments that are related to service not
yet rendered are shown as deposits from
customers and deferred revenue in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Revenue from sales of jewelry products is
recognised on transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership, which generally coincides
with the time when the jewelry products are
delivered to customers. Revenue is shown
net of return, rebates and discounts after
eliminating sales within the Group.

Dividend income from investments is
recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ ==

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from financial asset is
recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the excepted life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any). When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (“CGU”)
to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of
CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
and intangible assets not yet available
for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication
that the asset may be impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

(i)

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or
a CGU) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or CGU) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or CGU) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of
the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on
taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ—-=

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred
tax liabilities or deferred tax assets for
investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and
is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than
through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised
in profit or loss, except when they relate
to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including
buildings and leasehold land (classified as
finance leases) held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purpose are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write
off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment less their residual values
over their useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Leasehold improvements 20%-33.3%

Office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 15%-20%
Plant and machinery 20%

Assets held under finance leases are
depreciated over their expected useful
lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable
certainty that ownership will be obtained
by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease
term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment
is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued used of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

U]

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation
(including property under construction for
such purposes). Investment properties
are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are
measured at fair value. Gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised
upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are
expected from the disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or
loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives
that are acquired separately are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

(m)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination and recognised separately from
goodwill are initially recognised at their
fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination
are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on
disposal, or when no future economic
benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost
and net realisable value. Costs of jewelry
products and beauty products are
determined using the first-in, first-out and
weighted average method respectively. Net
realised value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary
to make the sale. Provision is made for
inventories when they became obsolete.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the
following specified categories: financial
assets “at fair value through profit or loss”
(“FVTPL”), “available-for-sale” (“AFS”)
financial assets and “loans and receivables”.
The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those
financial assets classified as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as FVTPL
when the financial asset is either held for
trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for
trading if:

(i) it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling it in the near term; or

(i) on initial recognition it is part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

(iii) it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset
held for trading may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

() such designated eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

(i) the financial asset forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

(iii) it forms part of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives,
and HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at
fair value, with any gains or losses arising
on remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss incorporates any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the “other gains and losses” line
item. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 54 to the consolidated
financial statements.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated as available-for-sale or
are not classified as loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
AFS financial assets (Continued)

Equity and debt securities held by the Group
that are classified as AFS financial assets
and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of AFS monetary financial assets
relating to interest income calculated using
the effective interest method and dividends
on AFS equity investments are recognised
in profit or loss. Other changes in the
carrying amount of AFS financial assets
are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the
heading of available-for-sale financial
assets revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the available-
for-sale financial assets revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on AFS equity investments
are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established.

AFS equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity investments are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses
at the end of each reporting period (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables (including
trade receivables, loans receivables, other
receivables, amount due from an associate,
convertible notes receivables and cash and
cash equivalents) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment losses.

Interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate, except for short-
term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Convertible notes receivables held by the
Group are separately presented as debt and
embedded conversion option components.
On initial recognition, the debt component
represents the residual between the fair
value of the convertible notes and the
fair value of the embedded conversion
option component. The debt component is
classified as loans and receivables and is
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL,
are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired when
there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective
evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets,
such as trade receivables, assets are
assessed for impairment on a collective
basis even if they were assessed not to be
impaired individually. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of 90 days,
as well as observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets that are carried
at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the
amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment loss
will not be reversed in subsequent periods
(see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset
is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered
to be impaired, cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the investment at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

In respect of AFS equity investments,
impairment losses previously recognised
in profit or loss are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of
available-for-sale financial assets revaluation
reserve. In respect of AFS debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently
reversed through profit or loss if an increase
in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group
entity are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s
own equity instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade
payables, accruals and other payables, other
borrowings, promissory notes and obligation
under finance leases,) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis other than financial
liabilities classified as at FVTPL.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value at the date when derivative contracts
are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately unless the derivative is
designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which case the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments (Continued)
Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host
contracts are treated as separate derivatives
when they meet the definition of a derivative,
their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and
the host contracts are not measured at
FVTPL.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset,
the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement
and recognises an associated liability. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in
its entirety, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ—-=

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other
than in its entirety, the Group allocates the
previous carrying amount of the financial
asset between the part it continues to
recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that
is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised
in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between
the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on
the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
expire. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate. The amount of the provision is
recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, other
short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less,
and bank overdrafts.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired
in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less. If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently carried at
amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds and the redemption value is
recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs
of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw-down occurs. To the extent there
is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end
of the reporting period.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance
leases are recognised as receivables at
the amount of the Group’s net investment
in the leases. Finance lease income is
allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on
the Group’s net investment outstanding in
respect of the leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessor (Continued)

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets of the Group at their
fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability
to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as obligations
under finance leases.

Lease payments are apportioned between
finance expenses and reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless they
are directly attributable to qualifying assets,
in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s general policy
on borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods which
they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are
received to enter into operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed.

4. FTESTHTBEBEE)

(s)

HE (&
FEBESLHEA ()

REHEZHSWAUBERZERE
EHEMAER BEARZHEEHE
EEEZAOSHERATGARE
BEZKREE  LHAEKEAER
MR

A E@ERAEA

REBELRERBE2EENIHR
RAKEHEE  UEMENK2ZL
FEIESZEESRENREEA
fRe HEEBNHBEANEBEER
REMBRRRPIMEREREE
o

HECERERIRBENEEFTD
B UESERERN 2R RER
T2 BRIMEMXEEBNSE
REE  REASEEREERX
M—EBRREAR‘L  BRABMERNX
A RIS R T ER - AREE
ERHELHBEREMT -

HEHENRUEREN BTN E
REAX  BRASERAGLCEES
RERAREAREEESENR 2
BEN - KREHENELE2HIAREE
RELHBEIR/MX

Ml LALEHERBRBESES
AZEERIAREE BEEFNS
DESEZERBEESHRD @ KR
FRBEERCEETRERNREAA
BEEERBNZS < REESR -

KIERBIREBRAR
—E—NFEFR

117



118

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

(u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Employee benefits
Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability for bonuses
when there is a contractual obligation and
the amount can be estimated reliably.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are
held in separate trustee-administered funds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit obligations (Continued)

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% to 10%
of the employees’ relevant income, with the
employees’ contributions subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
The Group’s contributions to the MPF
Scheme are expensed as incurred. 5% of
relevant income vests immediately upon
the completion of service in the relevant
service period, while the remaining portion
vests in accordance with the MPF Scheme’s
vesting scales. Where employees leave the
MPF Scheme prior to the full vesting of the
employer’s contributions, the amount of
forfeited contributions is used to reduce the
contributions payable by the Group.

Share-based compensation

The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the
share options and restricted share awards is
recognised as an expense in profit or loss.

The total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined with reference
to the fair value of the share options and
restricted share awards granted. At the
end of each reporting period, the Company
revises its estimates of the number of
share options that are expected to become
exercisable and the number of restricted
share awards that become vested. It
recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in profit or loss,
and a corresponding adjustment to equity
in the consolidated statement of financial
position will be made over the remaining
vesting periods.

The proceeds received, net of any directly
attributable transaction costs, are credited
to share capital and share premium accounts
when the share options are exercised and
when the restricted share awards are vested.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods
or services are measured at the fair values
of the goods or services received, unless
that fair value cannot be reliably measured,
in which case the goods or services
received are measured by reference to the
fair value of the share options granted.
The fair value received is recognised as
expenses immediately, unless the goods or
services qualify for recognition as assets.
Corresponding adjustment has been made
to equity (share-based payment reserve).

Contingent liabilities and contingent
assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation
that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also
be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it
is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably. A
contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow occurs so
that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that
arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. A contingent asset is not
recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow
is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x) Related party transactions

(i)

(ii)

A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group
if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over
the Group; or

(2) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(3 is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

(1) the entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others); or

(2) one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member); or

(8) both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party; or

(4) one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity; or

(5) the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the group or
an entity related to the Group; or

(6) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in
(i); or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4., FEETHEMEE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(x) Related party transactions (Continued) (x) BBALRS(E)

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

iy MHEMATHREER REE
REREEERE: (&)

(Continueqd)

(7) a person identified in (i)(1) has 7 OBl Z A LTEHZ
significant influence over the ERTHEEAEE N
entity or is a member of the key HAZER(IZERZ
management personnel of the BARIZEEEEA
entity (or of a parent of the entity). =

(y) Provisions (v) BB

Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that the Group will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where
the effect of the time value of money is
material).

When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected
to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ ==

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
reporting period are discussed below.

(@) Impairment of intangible assets

Despite the fact that the services
agreements can be terminated by giving not
less than 12-month’s prior written notice to
the Group, the directors of the Company
determine the services agreements have
indefinite lives as they have no expiry date.

The Group performs annual tests on whether
there has been impairment of intangible
assets in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 4(h) to the consolidated
financial statements. The recoverable
amounts of intangible assets are determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates
and assumptions made by management on
the future operation of the business, pre-
tax discount rates, and other assumptions
underlying the value-in-use calculations.
Information about the assumptions
and the risk factors on impairment of
intangible assets is stated in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

(b) Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill
has suffered any impairment. These
calculations require accounting estimation.
The Group’s goodwill is mainly generated
from an acquisition for a company listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange. At 31 December 2014, the Group
applied the market value of shares of the
listed company to evaluate the recoverable
amount of the asset groups and groups of
asset groups.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Estimate of fair value of investment
property

Investment property is stated at fair value
based on the market values, being the
estimated amount for which properties
could be exchanged on the date of valuation
between a willing buyer and a willing
seller in an arm’s length transaction or the
valuation performed by an independent
valuer. In determining the fair value, the
valuer has based on method of valuation
which involves certain estimates and
assumptions. In relying on the valuation
report, the management has exercised
their judgements and is satisfied that the
method of valuation is reflective of the
current market conditions. Should there
be any changes in assumptions due to
change of market conditions, the fair value
of the investment property will be adjusted
accordingly.

Useful lives of property,
equipment

plant and

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group
estimates the useful lives of property, plant
and equipment in order to determine the
amount of depreciation expenses to be
recorded. The useful lives are estimated at
the time the assets are acquired based on
historical experience, the expected usage,
wear and tear of the assets, as well as
technical obsolescence arising from changes
in the market demands or service output of
the assets. The Group also performs annual
reviews on whether the assumptions made
on useful lives continue to be valid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Trade and loans receivables

The aged debt profiles of trade and loans
receivables are reviewed on a regular
basis to ensure that the trade and loans
receivables balances are collectible and
follow up actions are promptly carried out if
the agreed credit periods or terms of loans
have been exceeded. However, from time
to time, the Group may experience delays
in collection. Where recoverability of trade
and loans receivables balances is called into
doubts, specific provisions for impairments
are made based on credit status of the
customers, the aged analysis of the trade
and loans receivables balances and write-off
history. Certain receivables may be initially
identified as collectible, yet subsequently
become uncollectible and result in a
subsequent write-off of the related
receivables to profit or loss. Changes in the
collectability of trade and loans receivables
for which provisions are not made could
affect our results of operations.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes
in numerous jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the
worldwide provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Valuation of financial instruments

The Group uses valuation techniques
that include inputs that are not based
on observable market data to estimate
the fair value of certain types of financial
instruments. Notes 32, 50 and 54 to
the consolidated financial statements
provide detailed information about the key
assumptions used in the determination of
the fair value of financial instruments, as
well as the detailed sensitivity analysis for
these assumptions.

The directors of the Company believe
that the chosen valuation techniques
and assumptions used are appropriate
in determining the fair value of financial
instruments.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and variable selling
expenses. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the
historical experience of manufacturing and
selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes
in customer taste and competitor actions
in response to severe industry cycle. The
directors reassess the estimations at the
end of reporting period.

Fair value of contingent consideration
arising from business combination

Contingent consideration arising from
business combination is valued using a
discounted cash flow model, based on the
estimated compensation received by the
Group, discounted using the applicable
prevailing market rate. The estimation of the
compensation is based on the forecasted
financial performance of the acquiree for the
year ending 31 March 2015.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group’s reportable segments have been
determined based on the information reported
to the Chairman of the Board, being the chief
operating decision maker, that are used for
performance assessment and to make strategic
decisions. The Group’s operating businesses are
structured and managed separately according to
the nature of their operations and the products
and services they provide. Each of the Group’s
reportable segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that
are different from those of other reportable
segments. The Group currently has six reportable
segments:

Distribution of films and
sub-licensing of film rights

(@) Distribution

(b) Property
investment

Leasing of rental properties

(c) Sale of financial Sale of financial assets
assets

(d) Money lending Money lending

(e) Sale of beauty Sale of beauty products
products and and provision of therapy
provision services
of therapy
services

() Sale of jewelry Design and sale of jewelry
products products

Provision of management services was
discontinued in the current year.

ENA2foNERBAESSE
(MEBRERRABREZ2ERE
T BBENTAEFERARELR
BEMEORE - AEBEMNEEXBDIREH
ERMERRENERRBRBEER
BYEE AEERIUZHIMEREHR
ERRRBORBEEREN  HER
REHRAERNREMAZH/DE - AEEH
BRANET2HDER

(@) B1T BTEYREREY
BTHE

(b) YERE HEEAYWE

(c) tHESm HEEMEE
BE

d) fE=& g

(e) HEXRE HEXFRERMKE#H
mERM EERE
EIERK

() HEKE
Em

Rt RHEKREEMm

RAFERILEHEERE

KIERBIREBRAR
—E—NFEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 ﬁ.—c— E—F+—A=1+—HLFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. K& (&
An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment BE-_Z—NER=-ZF-Z=5+=A
results, assets, liabilities and other selected =t+t—HLEFE  XEBRELEHIE
financial information for the years ended 31 PRAESHOHEE - EE - ABEREHE
December 2014 and 2013 by operating segments HEEMBEERZD2NAT ¢

is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE-_Z—NOE+-A=+—HLEE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BAL
FREERE fiexk
Sale of beauty
products and
Sale of provision of Sale of Provision of
Property financial Money therapy jewelry management
Distribution investment assets lending services products Sub-total services  Consolidated
#E
#8ERR
BE RidE #E RUEE
G VES TREE fE& i KRER Nt i e

HK$'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i 7E7 7E7 &7 i 7E7 7E7 i i

Revenue 63
Seqment revenue Al - - (3918) 78316 20,084 14213 110,755 158 10913
Results 25
Seqent(ossprft 54(58)/ 8 W 2284 8230 75,25 (1551 ) 161,561 15 161,604
Interest income on bank deposits (note §) SrRRARNAGEES) 2179 - 2179
Unallocated corporate income EE 0N 1,626 - 1,62
Unallocated corporate expenses KORLERR (37,554) - (37,554)
(Gain arising on change in fai valug upon conversion of X BN TRRZEAATERS

convertible notes receivables (note 9) EEZW&HH9) 133,759 - 133,759
(Gain arsing on eary redemption of convertiolenotes ~ ERRARKTARZEEL,

receivables (nofe 9) Wkt 1611 - 1611
(Gain on deemed disposal of an associate (note 9) RELERED AR 7,669 - 7,669
(Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE  BERAE NG

(note 9) (K9 139 - 139
(Gain on disposal of subsidaries (note 9 HEWBAT  BE K9 161 - 16M
(Gain on disposal of trademark (note 9) HEBE WY 30 - 30
Impaiment loss recognised in respect of other BRALIEYEZ HERR

receivables (nofe 9) (29 (46,519) - (46,519)
Imputed interest income on convertible notes receivables ENTERZRE 25 EFSHA

(note 9) (K9 7,686 - 7,686
Writen down of property, plant and equipment (note §) 341 » BERRE(H29) (32 - (322
Writen off of inventories (note §) HisEE WY ] - ]
Finance costs (note 11) HEER W) (406) - (406)
Share of results of associates EEBENTFE (555) - (555)
Profit before taxation WAEA 282,874 153 283,027
Income tax expense (note 14) FRBmR K 1) 1) - 1,721)
Proftfor the year KEERA 25447 153 25,300

128 ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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" For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ=F

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. REDI#E)
At 31 December 2014 R=-B-NFE+=-A=+—H
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
2L
KEAERE fezp
Sale of beauty
products and
Sale of provision of Sale of Provision of
Property financial Money therapy jewelry management
Distribution investment assets lending services products Sub-total services  Consolidated
#E
FBERR
## i £ ## fiteE
&f HE SHEE € i HRER it R e

HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$'000
i i i i i i i fér i

Assets and liabities T
Assets iE
Segment assets for reportable segment B ViEPAES-(
~ Hong Korg ~5% % 235 91667 24 161,362 uIB QT4 -
— Macau — 2 - - - - - - - - -
— The Peaple’s Republic of — hEARLAE
Cina e “PRC) (148 - - - - ! - 4 - 4
253 2,35 987,687 979,249 161,366 44378 2,175,288 - 2,175,288
Unallocated corporate assets RoEbEER 66,026
Consoldated total assets GAEEBE 2,243,314
Liabilities i
Seqment iailtes fo reportable segment BESVEPRE-
~ Horg Korg — &% - (160) (1209 (8565 {3t (18778 (16742 - 16742
- Macau -39 - - - - - - - - -
- ThePRG 48 - - - - - - - - -
- (160) (1208 (8589 64341 (13779 (16742 - 16742
Unallocated corporate iailtes #AELEER (10,131)
Consolidated total liabilfies GAGREEE (86,873)
KERBRERRAT

—=—

M F3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z —F—WFE+=-H=+—HI FE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

6. K&

2\ 37
WA=

B ()
BE_Z-OF+-A=+—-HLEFE

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
B
FEEERR fexn
Sale of beauty
products and
Sale of provision of Sale of Provision of
Property financial Money therapy jewelry management
Distribution investment assets lending services products Sub-total services Unallocated ~ Consolidated
8
2RERR
Bt Rit#R #E RitER
&f nERE $REE £ F# KRER i i AE e
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7E7 &7 7E7 7E7 7E7 i 7E7 7E7 &7 i
Other segment information EhaHEM
Amount included in the measure of  TEASEA/(EE)RAH
segment profit/loss) and segment BB AZEE
assets
Additons to property, BENE RERAE
plant and equipment - - - - 467 390 857 - 13 810
Depreciaton of property, W% BERRELNE
plant and equipment (note 10) (et - 17 % - 822 % 889 - 1,499 2,388
Gain arsing on change n far value  RAPETARRRZ
of fnancial assets at SHERNTEREE:
fair valu through proftor LhEY)
loss (note 9) - - 27,483 - - - 27,483 - - 2,483
(Gain on disposal of avallable-for-sale HETHHESHER 2%
financiel assets (nofe 9) (K9) - - 66,883 - - - 6,883 - - 6,883

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. K&

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE-—ZE—=F+-A=1+—HIEE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
gLt
REAERE fexy
Sale of beauty
products and
Sale of provision of Sale of Provision of
Property financial Money therapy Jewelry management
Distribution investment assets lending services products Sub-total senvices  Consolidated
##
FBERR
## ftss ## it
& aRE SHEE f:§ v HRER it EBRE g8

HK§ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000
fér Fér it fér 7é7 i it fér 7ér

Revenue i
Seqnent evene PEDE - 340 171 101 - - %5753 51 28305
Results EL |
Segment (oss)fproft A(EE) /& (3) 21 3,850 200 = = 37,631 (3,306) U305
Interest income on bank deposits (note §) SnRRARAGEEs) 6,462 = 6,462
Unallocated corporate income KOREEHA 14 = 14
Unallocated corporate expenses FARLERRY (2,524) - (25,524
(Gain arising on change in fair value of conversion EAmaREENS, HaEEE

options embedded in convertble notes JAVEEBEL s

receivables (nofe 9) (K9) 2,83 = 20,836
(Gain arising on change i far value upon conversion of X AEMTARERAATERS

convertible notes receivables (note 9) EL2WE W29 16,446 = 16,446
(Gain on disposal of subsidaries (ot 9 HERRA A ha 2 588 = 588
Imputed interest income on convertible notes EHTERTE 2 HERENA

receivables (nofe 9 (k9) 38,233 = 3,233
Reversal of impaiment loss recognised inrespectof  BERREEATZBE HES

interest in an associate (note 9) EREHY) 6,137 = 6,137
Finance costs (note 11) HEER(E 1) = = =
Share of results of associates EiERENTZE (3720 = (3720
Profitoss) before taration WetaEA/ (58) 106,103 (3,306) 102,797
Income tax expense (nofe 14 FEBER Kt 1) (5,360) - (5,560)
Proftfoss) for the year REEER/(BR) 100543 (3308 97,97

AERBREARAT g
B NEEH
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6.

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. R&EH g
At 31 December 2013 HR-B—=F+=-H=+—H
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
gLt
Sale of beauty
products and
Sale of provision of Sale of Provision of
Property financial Money therapy Jewelry management
Distribution investment assets lending services products Sub-total senvices  Consolidated
#E
SRERR
#E RitER #E it
il VE SHEE 8 il HEER it EBRE b
HKS 000 HK§000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HK§'000 HK§000 HK§ 000 HKS 000
7ET & 7&i 7Er &7 23 7Er 4 -2
Assets and liabities KERAE
Assets &
Segment assets for reportable segment BES R WRE 1
- Hong Kong —&8 255 il 89,142 768,051 = = 878,419 - 878419
- Macau 8.l = = = = = = = 2,003 2,003
2%5 il 89,142 788,051 - - 878,419 2,008 880,422
Unallocated corporate assets KORLFER 911,217
Consolidated total assets GAERSE 1,851,699
Liabilites L
Seqment liabities fo reportable segment BEEDEPREET
~ Hong Kong -k - ®) Q (181) - - (12) - (1)
— Macau — B - - - - - - - 231) 231)
- ®) ] (181) - - (1 21) )
Unallocated corporate fiablties FORLEEE (25.881)
Consolidated total fablies GREREE 28.330)

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ=F—F+=-H=+—HIFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. REDI#E)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE—_E—=FE+_HA=t+—HIEE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BAL
Sale of beauty
products and
Sale of provision of Sale of Provision of
Property financial Money therapy Jewelry management
Distribution investment assets lending services products Sub-total services Unallocated ~ Consolidated
3
ZBERR
## fitge 3 2t
& E S SHEE € §i HRER it BB AR &8

HK$ 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
i fér Fér fir fér 7&7 i it fér 7ér

Other segment information HhaBEn

Amount included in the measure  SEABEA/(EE)RAS
of segment profitloss) and segment ~ EEFifAz£E

assets
Additons to property, RENE  BERAR
plant and equipment - 13 - - - - 13 - - 13
Cumulatve gains recassified HALBATHLE
from equity to profitorloss upon SHEEAMER
derecognition of avaiable-for-sale EfABEERR
financial assets (note 9) 22itha
(K29) = - 7,019 - - - 7,019 - - 7,019
Depreciaton of propert, % BERREZ
plant and equipment (note 10) fEWE ) - 1Y) 5 - - - % - - %
Dividend income (note 8 RebAzs) - - 36479 - - - 36479 - - 36479
Impaiment loss recogrised inrespect  CEAENEEZ
ofintangible assets HERR
(e 5] (H16) = = = = = = = B9 = (7%
Loss arising on change n fairvalue of -~ RATEHABE#EZ
financial assets at SHEELNTER
fair value through proftor JEEVEE
loss (note 9 (H29) - - (5,307) - - - (5,307) - - (5,30)
Loss arising on change in fairvalue of ~ RENEDFERHEE
investment propettes (rote 9) B - (1,940) - - - - (1,940) - = (1,940)
Loss on disposal of investment HERENEZEE
properties (note 10) (K 0) - (13,000) - - - - (13,000) - - (13,000)
Segment revenue reported above represents X EReoBREEHEINERFEE
revenue generated from external customers. ZWB&@E - AEFEETESBPEHEE(ZE
There were no inter-segment sales in the current —=F &)

year (2013: Nil).

AERBREERAT g9
—E_mEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ—-=

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Segment results represent profit earned/(loss
incurred) by each segment without allocation
of central administrative expenses including
directors’ emoluments, share of results of

associates,

finance costs and income tax

expense. This is the measure reported to the
chief operating decision maker for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of

segment performance.

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performance and allocating resources between

segments:

- all assets are allocated to reportable
segments other than interests in associates,
convertible notes receivables, conversion
options embedded in convertible notes
receivables and amount due from an
associate that are not attributable to
individual segments. Assets used jointly by
individual segments are allocated on the
basis of the revenues earned by individual

segments; and

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable
segments other than current tax liabilities
and other financial liabilities that are
not attributable to individual segments.
Liabilities for which segments are jointly
liable are allocated in proportion to segment

assets.

Geographical information

The Group operates in Hong Kong, Macau and
the PRC. The Group’s revenue from external
customers and information about its non-current
assets by geographical location are detailed

—HAFE+-A=+—HILFE

RE DB &)

D EPEAEIE R ORI AER] S (EER
BE)  HILES ﬁEEPEJ&ﬁBZF;ﬁS'Z(@?E
EEME  BEBREQTXE BMEE
ARAEBAX) - LMD BEERREF

fhoERBAMMO EBEE %%AE%&Z
HREE -

REEDBRERRDBEIEER

5
Zll

o1 X S Sh o
AN
n_l'll_f
S

F?‘MIEJ’“*‘B%?HEZH&%%EE » &

- KREOPHBEEERHMGEMEET
st AfE B 2 #B o Fﬁ’ﬁ_ﬁ{ii@ﬁ@ﬂ
EA2HoM e pAHBEEZE
FETE"*BQFI:I:W EE°

i EE R

AEBERES  RPIRHE
3% 3 2 2 5 B 5k B 5
EREERBEE 2ERFH

=
RA

Qﬁm
= T
= _Ti]]ﬂk
CBK
I Y

nIIP

below:
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
Revenue from Revenue from Continuing operations Discontinued operations
external customers external customers Non-current assets Non-current assets
REGECEER RECALSZEE REGESEEHK:  RECRLDEERE.
fENEFMRZUE  RUAEFTRZUE FRagE FRBEE
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-ME -E-=F -E-ME -5-=F -Z-QmF -ZE-=F ZE-NEF ZE-=f%
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
fEr FEr TEr FEr TEr FEr  FAr  TEr
Europe il 1,286 - - - - _ - _
Hong Kong & 106,836 25,793 - - 461,222 676,927 - -
Macau 1§ - - 158 512 - - - 1929
The PRC g - - - - 4 - - -
The United States of America ELE 2,633 - - - - - - -
110,755 25,793 158 512 461,226 676,927 - 1,929
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ ==

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6.
Information about major customers

Included in revenue arising from interest
income on loans of HK$78,316,000 (2013:
HK$24,101,000) are revenue of HK$10,376,000
(2013: HK$5,840,000) which arose from sales to
the Group’s largest customer. No other single
customers contributed 10% or more to the
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December
2014.

Customers contributed 10% or more to the
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December
2013 are as follows:

e M BRME

—HAFE+ZA=F+—HAIFE

K 4

II\I%]-J\%B (/{%E)
TBIERFZEHN

REERFE WA 278,316,000 78
T(ZFE — =4 :24,101,000& 7T ) &
F o ﬁ10376000,%71:(—;—: :
5840000,%7c)u&m5!5§|‘1$1¥l5—
AREFETZHEE REZ-ZT—HTF
+:ﬁz+—a¢$r§v1@m,ﬁ\m$—
EEBRAEB SR 10% L LU -

NRBE-_E—=F6+-A=+—HLE
ErAAREEERMI0% U LRFZE
FT :

Major customers Reporting segment HK$’000
FEEF Z | EB FET
Customer 1 Money lending
BZFA BE 5,840
Customer 2 Money lending
BF2 BE 5,309
Customer 3 Money lending
BZF3 Ep=4 3,038
Customer 4 Money lending
P4 BE 3,014
TURNOVER 7. EXEH
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-—A=+—HLEE
2014 2013
—E-NmEF —
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Sale of financial assets at fair value HERAFETTABRRZ
through profit or loss, net SREE  EEE (3,918) (1,710)
Interest income on loans ERF R A 78,316 24,101
Rental income HEWA - 3,402
Sale of beauty products and provision $HEERERRIZHLET
of therapy services Bk 7% 22,084 -
Sale of jewelry products HERBEEM 14,273 —
110,755 25,793

KERBEIRERRAF
R -NFFHR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

7. TURNOVER (Continued) 7.

An analysis of the turnover from sale of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
recorded on net basis is as follows:

—ES1C )

HERATEFABERZEMEEZ
EHRBRFEEESMUMT ¢

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

2014 2013
—E-NF —2-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Proceeds from sale of financial assets $HEIRAFETABRRZ
at fair value through profit or loss TREEZBRE 46,800 243,820
Carrying amount of financial assets at ZAF{ETABRZRZ
fair value through profit or loss plus cREEZRAEES M
transaction costs REBEHRH (50,718) (245,530)
(3,918) (1,710)
8. INVESTMENT AND OTHER INCOME 8. RERHMWA
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=1t—HLFE
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Dividend income (Note) B& SURA (BtEE) — 36,479
Interest income on bank deposits RITFERZFEWA 2,179 6,462
Other interest income HR S WA 1,578 -
Sundry income HEIFUA 48 14
3,805 42,955

Note: Dividend income was derived from shares in and
bonus convertible notes issued by China Star
Entertainment Limited (“China Star”), which were
classified as available-for-sale financial assets in
2013.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. Htth=mRERE

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-ZA=+t—BHLEE

2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Cumulative gains reclassified from RELTEIATHEESTRERE
equity to profit or loss upon FHEREFIPEEERR
derecognition of available-for-sale Z 25t
financial assets - 7,079
Gain arising on change in fair value FEW R EEANE 2 5k
of conversion options embedded BEECATESHEE
in convertible notes receivables 2 W - 29,836
Gain/(loss) arising on change in fair BRATFEFABERZEME
value of financial assets at fair value @ EAFEEZGHELZ
through profit or loss W (EE) 27,483 (5,307)
Gain arising on change in fair value FE?‘%FELIQ—H‘*EﬁmHEfﬁ’D\$TE
upon conversion of convertible % EBEELE 2 WE
notes receivables 133,759 16,446
Gain arising on early redemption of REBREWITRBREEES
convertible notes receivables Z Y 1,611 —
Gain on deemed disposal of an RIELHEBE AR 2 W&
associate 7,669 —
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HE&ETHEEESMEE 2 WFH
financial assets 66,883 —
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BMEREZE2ZWE
and equipment 139 —
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB QR W= 1,671 588
Gain on disposal of trademark HE®HE 2 & 350 —
Impairment loss recognised in respect R HREWFIE ZBE
of other receivables g8 (46,519) -
Imputed interest income on convertible FEUR AT Z4E > HE RIS
notes receivables PN 7,686 38,233
Loss arising on change in fair value of REYENFELEBEE
investment properties E518 - (1,940)
Reversal of impairment loss ERARBE AT ZERZ
recognised in respect of interest BB T 1R 1 [
in an associate - 6,137
Written down of property, plant and WEEME - MEREE
equipment (322) -
Written off of inventories WEETFE (1) -
200,409 91,072

KEEHRERRAT
S S
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ—-=

10. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

Profit from operations has been arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

—HAFE+-A=+—HILFE

10. ﬁ(« r’:é *U

E‘j“%/mﬂﬁ?ﬂﬁ?/(nﬂk)TZV"J‘V\IEé

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+t—BLHFE

2014 2013
—E2—-NmEF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Auditors’ remuneration Z AN EN 1,180 680
Depreciation of property, plant and LEI HE&&%Z%%
equipment 2,388 95
Loss on disposal of investment HEREMEZEE
properties - 13,000
Operating lease rentals in respect of  FHEYE o KLEHE
rental premises 4,916 1,803
Share-based payment expenses in 0 B8 5 AR 7% DA BR A2 T2 2 SR
respect of consultancy services 2R 6,576 4,195
Staff costs including directors’ EIEJM—W@?EE%@H%)
emoluments
— salaries and other allowances = %’r%&ﬁﬁiﬂiﬂﬁ 34,491 15,390
— contributions to retirement EIREFRIFTEIHFR
benefit schemes 390 108
— share-based payment expenses — UROFERXXZRZ2EX 3,813 2,886
38,694 18,384
Gross rental income from investment REBREYEHESEAKRA
properties - (3,402)
Less: direct operating expenses B FEREEHESWAZE
incurred for investment EMEELECHER
properties that generated R
rental income during the year - 19
Less: direct operating expenses B ERAREEHSWAZ
incurred for investment REVEEFE ZEHE
properties that did not KE
generate rental income during
the year - 1,206
— 2,177)
11. FINANCE COSTS 11. REER

For the year ended
31 December

BEt+t-A=1+—HLEEE

2014 2013

—E-F —E—=fF
HK$’000 HK$°000

FHET FET

Imputed interest on promissory notes X ZEHE 2 HEF S 348 -
Interest on finance leases MERERE 44 —

Interest on other borrowings wholly BAREFREEEEZ

payable within 5 years HtamsAR 14 —
406 —

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2014




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ ==

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS

The aggregate amount of emoluments paid
or payable to the directors and the chief
executive of the Company during the year was
HK$24,915,000 (2013: HK$14,756,000). The
emoluments of each director and chief executive
for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013

e M BRME

—HAFE+ZA=F+—HAIFE

2. EERTETHAEHME

FRENKENARAEERTETH
A;izwﬂﬁ%%ﬁ%m,gw,ooo%i(:
E— = 14,756,000/ T) - HZE =
T — EE& E—=F+"F=+—H
LEEE FEERTETHAE ZH M
T

is as below:
Contributions to
Salaries and other  retirement benefit Share-based
Fees allowances schemes payment expenses Total
Name of director ~ EE{% ne HEREMEN BAEAFELS ROV ZG 2R gt

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
R-PECF-CECR-MECR-CECR-RE S-S CR-MECF-ZE CR-NE -

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HKS$'000
Fér TFEr TEr TEn TEr  TEn  FEr  FEr  FEL  FEx
Mr. Lei Hong Wai,  ZHE%4
the Chief Executive  ({TH&%H)
Officer - - 10600 6,200 17 15 - - 10617 6215
Mr. Cheung Kwok  REIB%E
Wai, Elton - - 10,600 6,200 17 15 - - 10617 6215
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, — Bfgx4
Billy - - 218 950 17 15 755 881 2,957 1,846
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan EE& 54 120 120 240 - 4 - - - 364 120
Mr. Wan Shing Chi ~ RREEE 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
Mr.Ng Heung Yan — RE/{ZE4 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen  &f&# %4 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
Total emoluments ~ B&4% 480 480 23,625 13,350 55 45 755 881 24915 14,756

BE-Z-—-NFER=-ZE—Z=51=A
=+—ALFE AEEHEQEME
ERFETHAEXINHMEEARSIK
£m%$ﬁljm B 2 BB - BRI
fE-BE —mHFE+=-BA=+—H
IEFE ﬁmﬁgﬁfgﬂﬁkﬁﬂM
MEEAME(ZF—=F : 8) o

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013, no emoluments have been paid by the
Group to any of the directors and chief executive
officer as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group as compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors and chief executive officer
agreed to waive any emoluments in the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

FSEL E%?xﬁﬁﬁﬂ’_\j

—MEFFHR e
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

13. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group for the year ended
31 December 2014, three (2013: three) were
directors of the Company whose emoluments
are included in the disclosures in note 12 to
the consolidated financial statements. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2013: two)
individuals were as follows:

13. EEMS

BE-Z-—-NE+=-B=+—HLE
B REAEERERBESHFMNALTES
=R (ZEBE—Z=F: =ZR)AXPIT=E
E ORECHECREESTHRERM T
NEE - BTMA(ZE—=F - WR)
ZMEWT :

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-ZA=+t—BHLEE

2014 2013
—g-mF —T-=

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Salaries and other allowances FHeRkEMER, 1,110 926
Contributions to retirement benefit BRI EIH R

schemes 34 30

Share-based payment expenses RO 2 1,623 1,297

2,767 2,253

Their emoluments were within the following band:

BE2MENFLUTEE :

Number of employees

BEAR
2014 2013
—ZT—-NF —ZF—=
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T = 1,500,000 & 7T 2 2

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss:

14. FTBHBAX
RGEEERERAZEHAX .
For the year ended

31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

2014 2013

—E-mF —=E—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current tax expense REABL IR X (9,864) (7,633)
Over/(under) provision in prior year FtFERERSZ (TR) 2,137 (17)
Deferred taxation IEAERT 18 - 2,090
(7,727) (5,560)

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ ==

4. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profits for both years.

No provision for Macao Complementary Profits
Tax has been made for the year ended 31
December 2014 (2013: Nil) as the Group has no
estimated taxable profits.

A subsidiary of the Company is subject to the
PRC Enterprise Income Tax at 25% for the year.
No provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax
has been made for the year ended 31 December
2014 (2013: Nil) as the Group has no estimated
taxable profits.

The income tax expense for the years can be
reconciled to the profit before taxation per
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as
follows:

e M BRME

—HAFE+ZA=F+—HAIFE

14. SR (#

W@EFZE%*U SH IR (G B RBUR
FMz16.5% 5T &E
BE_Z-—MNE+-A=t—HILF

B WEBRPIMENEHRELERE(Z
T—=F8) ERAXKEHREMLTE
IR A

AN —BMELRRARPELRERAE
Mz25%xtE - BE2-Z-NFE+=A
=+—RLFE ARFEEMEMLE
FERBURF - iR B P BB EFTEH
FEHBE(ZE—=F . &) -

AEEFREHBAXITHESEZERAZ
BRI AR ERIT -

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Continuing and discontinued operations
RELEER BRLBEER BEREREALREEY
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Z5-IE tE-ck Z2-pg ZE-ck ZE-|E TE-ck
HK$000 %  HK$'000 %  HKS'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %
77 % T % FEr % FEr % TEL % %
Proft/loss) before BHRAER/
taxation (&) 232,874 106,103 153 (3,306) 233,027 102,797
Taxation atincome tax ~ REEHE16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2013: (ZE-=F!
16.5%) 165%)8F (84 (165 (7500 (165 (8 (165 55 165 (849 (165 (16%2 (165
Effect of different tax ~ REMFEEE
rates of subsidiaries bl
operating in other DAFEREH
jurisictions 2228 oo - - - - B M0 02
Taxeffectof shareof  E{BENTEEY
results of associates fikze o) ) 6149 (0 - - - - o) ) 619 (0§
Tax effect of income BERBMAZ
not taxable for tax hhze
purpose 64,854 218 23983 22.6 26 170 85 26 64,880 218 24,068 235
Tax effect of expenses ~ FAMEERZ
not deductible fortax ~~ BEZE
purpose @459 08 (367 (29 () 05 @ 0 (2460 (08 (367 (133
Utlisation of tax losses B EAi ML
previously not i
recognised (138) (0.9) 585 0.5 - - - - (138) (0.9) 585 0.6
Tax losses not yet AEIHRER
recognised (13,617) (5.8) (863) (08 - - - - (13617) (5.8) (863) (08
Over/(under) provisionin -~ L EE
prior year #%/(FR) 2137 09 ) 0 - - - ALY 09 i 0
Deferred tax credit BEREES - - 255 24 - - B (139 - - 200 20
Income tax expense for ~ AEEFEHET
the year (1,721) 8.3  (5,5960) (b4) - - - - ) 8.3  (5560) (b4)

KIE®R E%?xﬁﬁﬁﬂ’_\j
— O EF F IR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The provision of management services operations
was disposed of on 11 June 2014, details
of which were set out in the note 48 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The results and cash flows of the discontinued
operations for the current and prior years were

15. ERILLEE R

RUHEERBXBER - —NFAA
T-HHE  FRHRNESHBHRKM
F£48 °

RAFERBEFE CRIEEEER
CEBERBESREWNT :

as follows:
For the year ended
31 December
BZE+=-BA=1+—HLEE
2014 2013
—EF-mE —F-=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Turnover e 158 512
Impairment loss recognised in respect CEERAELEEZ
of intangible assets WEE B - (3,793)
Administrative expenses THEX (5) (25)
Profit/(loss) from operations e, (E5E) 153 (3,306)
Finance costs REE A - —
Profit/(loss) before taxation MBI ADRER(E51E) 153 (3,306)
Income tax expense RS X - —
Profit/(loss) for the year from RECRIEEEK 2
discontinued operations REERFN,(FHB) 153 (3,306)

Net cash effect on operating activity

,?Iﬁ,%ijzéﬁé /EEJ] 25'\/ =
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

16. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 16. BREF(FE)
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/ AAREEANEBLEREARBERF
(loss) per share attributable to owners of the S (E538) TR T HIEUESTE -

Company is based on the following data:

From continuing and discontinued operations REFELEROCRIELEEL

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

2014 2013
—E-mE —F—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Earnings BZF|
Profit for the year attributable to RAREE ANEBLEAREE
owners of the Company gl 238,077 97,238
For the year ended
31 December
BZE+=-BA=1+—HLEE
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
’000 000
FR FiE
Number of ordinary shares ZBEREE
Weighted average number of ordinary RitEESREASZEF
shares for the purpose of basic BT A 2 B B AR o0
earnings per share FEF 9 531,966 405,204
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BEBTEBR2FE
shares:
Share options issued by the Company ZA&RQTC T2 ERE 990 —
Weighted average number of ordinary Rt ESREBEER
shares for the purpose of diluted BT A 2 B i@ R o0
earnings per share BEFHH 532,956 405,204

KIERBIREBRAR 143
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

16. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued) 16. EREF,(&E#8) (&)

From continuing operations

REFEKERY

For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=1T—HILEE

2014 2013
—E-mF =F—=
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Earnings BF|
Profit for the year from continuing RAREE AEER
operations attributable to owners FERBEFER
of the Company EETE 2 EA 237,924 100,544
For the year ended
31 December
BZE+=-A=1+—HLEE
2014 2013
—2-pmE  —2-=F
000 000
TR Fi
Number of ordinary shares ZEREE
Weighted average number of ordinary RiTESRERER
shares for the purpose of basic B BT A 2 B i@ R o0
earnings per share EFHIH 531,966 405,204
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BEBETEBR2FE
shares:
Share options issued by the Company Z&RQTC 3T ERE 990 -
Weighted average number of ordinary RiTEEREERR
shares for the purpose of diluted BF BT A 2 B i@ AR 0
earnings per share FEF 9 532,956 405,204

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

16. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued) 16. EREF,(&E#8) (&)

17.

From discontinued operations

RESRIEREER

For the year ended
31 December

BE+=-A=+—BHLHFE

2014 2013
—E-E —F—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
Earnings/(loss) BR(&18)
Profit/(loss) for the year from AATEB NEILREE
discontinued operations attributable ~ REEKRILEEEK >
to owners of the Company =R (F58) 153 (3,306)
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=1t—HLFE
2014 2013
—B-mE —B-=
’000 000
TR Fhg
Number of ordinary shares EEREE
Weighted average number of ordinary RETEEREARER,
shares for the purpose of basic (BER)KFAZESBR
earnings/(loss) per share e 531,966 405,204
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BEETE FE
shares:
Share options issued by the Company ZQ 52 21T 2 B IR #E 990 -
Weighted average number of ordinary RAit&E ﬁﬂxﬁﬁ%’g’ﬂ/
shares for the purpose of diluted (BE)BFAZER
earnings/(loss) per share IR 9 & 532,956 405,204
Diluted earnings per share for the year ended BE_-_E—NE&E+-_A=+—HIFE
31 December 2014 is calculated by taking into ZEREBERANBEARDNT ZRTEREE
account the Company’s outstanding share HE OMBEEREEBSERALEE
options, which were dilutive and had a dilutive BEE o

effect.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the year

ended 31 December 2013 was the

basic earnings/(loss) per share as the Company’s
outstanding share options were anti-dilutive and

had no dilutive effect.

DIVIDENDS

The directors of the Company do not recommend

the payment of any final dividend

ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

RAB 2 RITEBREARBEE

TEBELE BHEE-FT—=
‘I' AIEFEEzBREBEERF

SREABF,(BE)HEE -

same as the

II)?II?;

17.

G
i
7’

TEBKRBEBEE=-Z—0

—BLEFEZEARER
DEE) o

+15
Il
m

4}
i

for the year

Mt B O\ +BE
i
vm
m

M
A
|

-H:f

KERBEIRERRAF
R -NFFHR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W% - MERRE
The Group KEH
Plant Furniture
and Leasehold Office Motor and
machinery improvements equipment vehicles fixtures Total
BERKE HENELERE BAERE RE BRREE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FEL FER FET FEL

Cost A
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=%-A-H - 2,550 216 1,050 1,093 4,909
Additions during the year ERIFE - - 13 - - 13
Derecognised on disposal HEMBAFKAL
of subsidiaries 2 - (169) - - - (169)
At 31 December 2013 ~ R=E-=%+=#
and 1 January 2014 =+-HER
“E-mE-A - 2,381 229 1,050 1,093 4,753
Acquisitions through ﬁL%ﬁ%Aﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ
business combination 3,723 8,194 816 - 2,113 14,846
Additions during the year ERIFE 321 282 178 - 89 870
Disposals e (38) - - - - (39)
Written off fitisH ®) (458) - - - (461)
At 31 December 2014  R-E-MIF
+=B=t-H 4,003 10,399 1,223 1,050 3,295 19,970
Accumulated ZiERAE
depreciation
and impairment
At 1 January 2013 RZZ-=%-A-H - 2,395 14 979 1,093 4,608
Charged for the year REEHE - 2% 22 48 - 95
Eliminated on disposal ~ HEMBA TR s
of subsidiaries - (39) - - - (39)
At 31 December 2013 ~ WZE-=#+ZR
and 1 January 2014 =+-HEk
“E-ME-A-H - 2,381 163 1,027 1,093 4,664
Charged for the year REEHE 822 1,060 141 23 342 2,388
Written back on disposals HEBHE (17) - - - - (17)
Written off i @ (137) - - - (139)

At 31 December 2014  R=-B-Mm#&
+ZA=1+-H 803 3,304 304 1,050 1,435 6,896

Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2014  R=B-m&E

+ZA=1-H 3,200 7,095 919 - 1,860 13,074
At 31 December 2013 R=Z-=f&

+=A=1-A = - 66 23 - 89
Included in the carrying amounts of plant and ERERMEMAESD A £344,0008 T &
machinery, and office equipment of HK$344,000 19 000 B TZMERKBIMNBPAERME
and HK$19,000 are held under finance leases M ERERES -

respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

e M BRME

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. BEWE
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-NF —E-=
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FHET
Fair value A¥E
At 1 January M—HA—8 - 21,940
Disposal of subsidiaries HEME A F
(Note and note 48) (BtaE R Bt et 48) - (24,000)
Gain arising on change in AT EEBEE 2R
fair value (Note) (Hrat) - 2,060
At 31 December R+=-—B=+—H - —
Unrealised gain on change in REVENTEEHEEZ
fair value of investment properties RIS - —
Note: BiEE -

On 6 June 2013, the Group disposed of two investment
properties by selling the entire issued share capital of East
Legend Properties Limited (“East Legend”) and Goway
Properties Limited (“Goway”), both of them were wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Company, to an independent
third party at an aggregate cash consideration of
HK$24,995,000. The consideration was determined with
reference to the fair value of the two investment properties
of HK$24,000,000 at 31 May 2013 and adjusted for the
net assets value of East Legend and Goway. Accordingly,
a gain arising on change in fair value of HK$2,060,000
and a gain on disposal of subsidiaries of HK$588,000
were recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2013 as set out in note 48 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Fair value measurement of the Group’s
investment properties

The fair value of the Group’s investment
properties as at 31 December 2013 has been
arrived at on the basis of valuations carried
out by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited
(“Grant Sherman”). Grant Sherman is a firm of
independent qualified professional valuers with
no connection with the Group. Grant Sherman is
a member of Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
(“HKIS”) and have appropriate qualifications
and recent experiences in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations. The
valuations, which conform to the HKIS Valuation
Standards 2012 Edition, were arrived at by
reference to comparable sales evidence as
available in the relevant market and the current
rents passing and the reversionary income
potential of tenancies.

AZE—=FERAXAE AEEEBLURSHE
1B 24,995,000 B TMBILE=FH HEAXR DT
2 & [{/E 2 7 East Legend Properties Limited
([East Legend]) X Goway Properties
Limited ([ Goway |) 2 2 & TR A - #Em H
EMERENZ - REDNSEMEBRENFEN=
FE—=FHA=+—HZ2F{E24,000,000%
JLEEE » A5k East Legend & Goway 2 & & %
BERAZ - Bt 2IRBE=_FT—=F+=
B=+t—HIFEZERERBRATEEHE
4 2 32,060,000 8 T K S B A 7 2 W
588,000 8 T @ AR E IS HRKRM L 48 FTE o

FEERENMEZQAVENE

AEBRENMER-ZT—=51+_7
=+ —-—BZAVE X NERTIRFMEE
RAB(HEDRETZMHEEE -
TESBYSEMEXRMERLT  BEAX
SEIWERE wEHEBAEMES
((ERUNEBMBE NEE . WHEAEM
A ASBEUYEGEECSBERRE
HiEh - ZMENSEBIEBMES 2
MELEEN(ZZ-ZFR)  £2Z
METERANAILLEERE  URR
THERHEENERBABLREH -

KIERBIREBRAR
—E—NFEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ—-=

19.

20.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s
investment properties (Continued)

There had been no change from the valuation
technique used in 2013. In estimating the fair
value of the investment properties, the highest
and best use of the investment properties were
their current use.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Group’s investment properties were categorised
under fair value hierarchy of Level 3 immediately
before their disposals.

19.

—HAFE+-A=+—HILFE

REWE &)
FEERENEZ QX FEAEE)

—E-C-FRAZAERMLESE -
A REMEZAFER  BEREY
EeHEeREEAZNAHERNRAR -

BE-Z-=F+-A=1T—-HL#HF
E AEEREVENRBEEHEN D E
RRAFESREIR -

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2, BE-—_ZE—=%+=-B=+—HI=E
or transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year B FARE2HzEMEERE  FEE
ended 31 December 2013. AREHEIR -
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. BEEE
The Group AEE
Services
agreements
PR 7 1 =&
HK$’000
FET
Cost PR 2N
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and R=—ZE—=%-—-A—H"
1 January 2014 —E-=F+ZA=t—HK
—E—-WFE—HF—H 456,857
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note a) HEMB AT (KiFa) (456,857)
At 31 December 2014 R=-Z-OF+=A=+—8H —
Accumulated impairment Z3RE
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=%—H—H 451,135
Impairment loss recognised ERRRERFE 3,793
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 R-ZE-—=F+ZA=+—-HK
—E—-W¥E—HF—H 454,928
Written back on disposal of a subsidiary & — E B A R R EE
(Note a) (Kt a) (454,928)
At 31 December 2014 R=Z-0OF+=-A=+—H —
Carrying amount BRTEE
At 31 December 2014 R=Z2-0OF+=-A=+—H —
At 31 December 2013 R-Z—=H+=ZA=+—H 1,929
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The intangible assets amounting to HK$456,857,000
represent the carrying amounts of services
agreements held by Rich Daily Group Limited
(“Rich Daily”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and a management services provider to
the concierge departments of gaming promoters in
Macau. The services agreement has indefinite useful
lives and no amortisation has been made.

At 31 December 2013, the directors of the Company
performed impairment test for the carrying amount
of the services agreement held by Rich Daily with
reference to the valuation, based on the value-in-
use calculation, performed by Grant Sherman and an
impairment loss of HK$3,793,000 was recognised in
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2013
and the carrying amount of the intangible assets
had been reduced to its recoverable amount of
HK$1,929,000.

The carrying amount of the services agreement was
tested for impairment by reference to value-in-use
calculation. A discount rate of 20.30% per annum
was applied in the value-in-use model which uses
cash flow projection based on financial forecast
approved by the directors of the Company covering a
five-year period. There are a number of assumptions
and estimates involved for the preparation of the
cash flow projection for the period covered by the
forecast. Key assumptions include growth rate
of 1% which are determined by the management
of the Group based on its expectation for market
development. The discount rate used is pre-tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the industry.

On 30 May 2014, Riche (BVI) Limited (“Riche (BVI)”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a conditional sale and purchase agreement
with Mr. Ng Cheuk Fai, an independent third party,
relating to the disposal of the entire equity interest of
Rich Daily at a cash consideration of HK$2,000,000.
The disposal was completed on 11 June 2014.

An intangible asset with a carrying amount of
HK$Nil represents the trademark “Blu Spa” (the
“Trademark”) used by a subsidiary of EDS Wellness
Holdings Limited (“EDS Wellness”, together with
its subsidiaries, (the “EDS Wellness Group”)) on
its products and therapy services which is acquired
through business combination. Such intangible asset
is amortised on a straight-line basis over 20 years
and its estimated remaining useful life is five years
at the date of acquisition of EDS Wellness.

On 24 September 2014, the EDS Wellness Group
disposed of the Trademark with a carrying amount
of HK$Nil to an independent third party at a
consideration of HK$350,000. A gain on disposal of
trademark amounting to HK$350,000 was recognised
in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2014.

e M BRME

—HAFE+ZA=F+—HAIFE

20. B EE (&)

£ %85 456,857,000/ 8 T2 EBILEE > 18
AAFEZEMBRARRBHBEE AN AE
B2 EE RS HIER Rich Daily Group
Limited ([Rich Daily|) Fff % 5 BR 75 175 3%
ZIREE - REHELERE 2 EHRAE
B BRIEHREE o

R=ZZE—=F+=-A=+—H AQFAE
ES2EZPEBENTECREBEERS 2
& » ¥ Rich Daily FriZ R = 2 BREE
ETREIR  RBE=ZE—=F5+=A4
St BLEEREZRBEIREESRE
3,793,0008 7t - WHEFEEZREE
FEZEH ATk E £ %8 1,929,000 7T ©

RSH=Z 2 REEDSRAEEAEEE
TRENR EREEEEMARRES
BF20.30% > 2RAERBEANTESH
ERLFHEMBEEIRAREREN
“,\J °© ﬁfiiﬁ\ EJHH Fﬁzlﬁﬁmuiiﬁ\ EU/&&%
BEZRMET - TEBRREFE 1N ZER
2 HAKEEEBREEHMERREZ
%Eﬁlﬁfz;z FRABRERRBAET R
MREETEBRE 2SS ERK ©

REZE-—WNERA=+H A27A2E
Ff B 2 T Riche (BVI) Limited ([Riche
(BVI) NEZBVE=F REHEET L — 17
BRGEERZ 0 AR EEZ2,000,000
B 2BEEREHERIch Daily z 22
e ZEHEER =T —HNE~A+—H
FERK °

REAEAZT B T2 EFEEIKEDS
Wellness Holdings Limited ((EDS
Wellness | ZERIEMEBE A RAKE A
[EDS Wellness &£ 8 )T — R B2
AHHEERREEREMAZEZ(BIU
Spal) ([ NEBEKEHES -
ZEMEEUESRZ 20 E#8 » KRR
B EDS Wellness H 8 » E{&5TFIr A &5
AEHAREF -

R-ZZFE—-—WMWFEHALA=+M™AB:EDS
Wellness % B 1L 350,000 jt = 1% & &
—BABYUE=FHERABEASBELZHE
Z o HEFZ 2N 350,000 TREZE
—EZ-NE+-A=+—HIFEZEHR

E*%héﬁﬁﬂj
— PO F F 3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

21. GOODWILL 21, @&
The Group KEH
Total
et
HK$’000
FET
Cost A
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—ME—-A—H —
Additional amounts recognised from business BHFRWEKSHERIEINEEE

combination occurring during the year (KizE47)

(note 47) 89,265
At 31 December 2014 NR=-=ZT—NE+=-HA=+—H 89,265
Accumulated impairment Z3RE
At 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014 R-ZE—HNF—F—HRE

—E-mOF+=A=+—H —
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 December 2014 R-ZZE—NmWE+=-A=+—H 89,265
Impairment test of goodwill EERENR
Goodwill is generated from the acquisition BEEL BUWEBEDS Wellness © BA{E
of EDS Wellness for diversifying the Group’s RIZEREBEB 2Z L AEARE
businesses and broadening the Group’s revenue BHWWAER ZBHBEXIEHBEMNEDS
base. The goodwill is mainly attributed to listing Wellness Z Emitifu R HEHK - BE—
status of EDS Wellness and its business. For the E-NFE+ZA=+—BLFE > IR
year ended 31 December 2014, no impairment BEBREIAREEE BEHAKESEHE
loss was recognised in respect of goodwill as HIBREE; MEATKE£EERIEEDS
its recoverable amount exceeds the carrying Wellness 52,500,000 i% & i i% B2 13 A
amount, of which, the recoverable amount is —ENFE+ZA=1t—HZmEHRE
calculated based on the quoted market value of E WA EAELAFESRE1R -

the 52,500,000 ordinary shares in EDS Wellness
as at 31 December 2014 and is categorised
under fair value hierarchy of Level 1.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22, REE AR 2R
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FHET
Unlisted ¥Em
Cost of investment in an associate REBE NT ZHAR - =
Share of post-acquisition profits and SN EBEEFIR
other comprehensive income, net of Hib 2 Mz -
dividends received MERE WK S - —
Listed in Hong Kong REBLD
Cost of investment in an associate KREBE N T ZHA - 51,324
Share of post-acquisition profits, other FE{GUREBEEER « Hitt2HE
comprehensive income and other Wk & H A fE A
reserve, net of dividends received HBREWRE - (4,408)
- 46,916
Less: impairment loss recognised B ERERREE AR ER
in respect of interests in ZBIEEE
associates - —
- 46,916
Market value of listed shares R zmE - 46,925

Reconciliation of impairment loss recognised in
respect of interests in associates:

CREANBELAES ZREBEHK
mT

2014 2013

kS —E-=F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

At 1 January nw—A—H - 6,137
Impairment loss recognised CERREEE - -
Reversal of impairment loss recognised TR EEEEE - (6,137)

At 31 December R+=ZBA=+—H

KEREIZREGRAR
—E—UFFEIR
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 22. NEtE DR 2 ()
At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group had RZE-—DNER=ZFE—Z=Z5+=H
interests in the following associates: =t+—B  AEERUTHBEARTE
B
Country/
place of Principal Class of
Name of incorporation place of shares Proportion of Principal
associate A operations  held voting power held activities
NG A%/ % TEEENY FRGER FisR Rl TEER
2014 2013
Direct Indirect  Direct Indirect
B Mg BB Rtk
Unlisted
kL
Spark Concept Group British Virgin Hong Kong  Ordinary - 49% = 49%  Catering
Limited (“Spark Concept’)  Islands £ LER 28
(Note a) (Hfita) EBRZHE
Listed in Hong Kong
REBLR
China Star Cultural Media ~ The Cayman Islands Hong Kong ~ Ordinary - - - 29%  Artist
Group Limited (“China and continued & LER management
Star Cultural”, formerly in Bermuda and film
known as China Media ~ BIZHE » KR production
and Films Holdings BREFE and
Limited) (Note b) distribution
HMEELEXEBERAR 8AEER
(B2 ARTE EYHfR
BRYRERERAR) B
(Hrazb)
Notes: Hiat

(a)

The Group holds 49% of the issued share capital of
Spark Concept at the end of the reporting periods.
The other shareholder holding 51% of the issued
share capital of Spark Concept is considered to
have control over Spark Concept. The directors of
the Company consider that the Group does have
significant influence over Spark Concept and it is
therefore classified as an associate of the Group.

At 31 December 2013, the Group held 29% of the
issued share capital of China Star Cultural. As
Culture Landmark Investment Limited held 48.47%
of the issued share capital of China Star Cultural
and was the controlling shareholder of China Star
Cultural (as defined under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange), Culture Landmark
Investment Limited was considered to have control
over China Star Cultural. The directors of the
Company considered that the Group had significant
influence over China Star Cultural and it was
therefore classified as an associate of the Group.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2014

RIRERR » AREEIFHE Spark Concept
BRITRAZ49% - HMRERIFHE Spark
Concept B #1TIRZA 2 51% » MR A
Spark Concept#EBZFIE - RAFES
AAREEY Spark ConceptBEE R E
h BMABERREBEZHENT -

RZEBE-—=F+Z"A=+—RH ' A&H
BEFBEEXLCEITRAZ29% ° B
Rt ZREERATZEHREE X
1£48.47% E B ITRAMEIEAFEE X
HERBRR(EZRBIMAIER EHR
Al) bt ZREFR AT EBREHH
HEX{LEEERGE ARATAESIRER
EEHTREXCEERTE D WA
AREEZBEENT -
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of
associates

Summarised financial information in respect
of each of the Group’s associates is set out
below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in each of
the associate’s financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs.

All of these associates are accounted for using
the equity method in these consolidated financial
statements.

(@) Spark Concept

On 15 December 2011, the Group acquired
49% of the issued share capital of Spark
Concept at a consideration of HK$49.
Spark Concept is an investment holding
company and the principal activities of
its subsidiaries are catering. The principal
places of operations of Spark Concept and
its subsidiaries are in Hong Kong.

22, NEE DR 2R (/)

BEQNTAMBENRBE

AEBZBERR M BERBERT
RTX e THUBERBERREERE
MBRELARR 2 EBE QAP HR
RAPFAPIEHEE

FrEZEHE N R RAERERANER
BHBHRRAR -

(a) Spark Concept

RZZE——5+ZA+HB &
% B LR E49%8 Tt W B Spark
Concept2 % 17T B & 249% °
Spark Concept® — B & & £ IR
AE HMBAGRIZEEXEKAE
8% o Spark Concept R EE QA
ZEEEEMBURES -

2014 2013

—E—-NmEF —E—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current assets RENEE 3,368 5,024
Non-current assets EREBEE 2,265 1,315
Current liabilities i p=K (13,622) (13,409)
Non-current liabilities FREBEE - =

KIERBIREBRAR
—E—NFEFR
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 22,

Summarised financial
associates (Continued)

(@) Spark Concept (Continued)

information of

()

REE QTR 2R ()
BERRZMBERRE(E)

Spark Concept (#&)

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

2014 2013
—E—E e

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Revenue Uk &= 12,501 13,406

Loss from continuing operations REBFERLEER 2EE (920) (1,820)

Post-tax loss from discontinued RECKRILEEEL Y

operations PREL 1B - —

Loss for the year REEEIE (920) (1,820)
Other comprehensive income for AEEHEMEEEKE

the year - —
Total comprehensive loss for rEEXHEBERLRHE

the year (920) (1,820)

Dividends received from Spark
Concept during the year

£ N E Y Spark Concept
ZIE

Reconciliation of the above summarised
financial information to the carrying amount
of the interest in the associate recognised in
the consolidated financial statements:

B HER B ERG S HRR
WHER 2 R E N B S < IREE
HERWMT :

2014 2013
—E-MF —E2-=

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Net liabilities of Spark Concept Spark Concept & & F 48 (7,989) (7,070)
Proportion of the Group’s K& B Spark Concept

ownership interest in Spark EERERER 2B
Concept 49% 49%

The Group’s share of net assets of

Spark Concept

Goodwill

Effect of fair value adjustments at
acquisition

A& B FE{5 Spark Concept

> EEFE
o
AR A BB %

D

Carrying amount of the Group’s
interest in Spark Concept

A EE B A Spark Concept
=2 REE

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2014
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial

information of

associates (Continued)

(a)

Spark Concept (Continued)

Unrecognised share of losses of Spark
Concept

22.

e M BRME

—HAFE+ZA=F+—HAIFE

REE QTR 2R ()
BERARZMBERNMEE)

()

Spark Concept (#&)

KR ME{L Spark Concept Z &8

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

2014 2013
—E—mF —E—=F
HK$’009 HK$'009
FHET FET
The unrecognised share of loss of KL Spark Concept
Spark Concept for the year ZI-‘iV (451) (892)
Cumulative unrecognised share of K2 &5t FE{L Spark
loss of Spark Concept Concept E18 (3,915) (3,464)
China Star Cultural (b) HEEXt
On 3 August 2012, the Group acquired RZE-—ZHFNA=ZB &K

146,640,000 ordinary shares in China
Star Cultural, representing approximately
29% of the issued share capital of
China Star Cultural, at a consideration
of HK$51,324,000. China Star Cultural is
an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are
artist management and film production
and distribution. The principal places of
operations of China Star Cultural and its
subsidiaries are in Hong Kong.

Included in the interests in associates,
the goodwill on acquisition of China Star
Cultural is measured at HK$25,397,000.

At 31 December 2013, the investment
in China Star Cultural was tested for
impairment by comparing its recoverable
amount with its carrying amount.

The calculation of recoverable amount was
based on its fair value less cost of disposal
and categorised under fair value hierarchy
of Level 1 with the quoted price of China
Star Cultural shares in active market without
taking into account of its costs of disposal.
The quoted market value of the 146,640,000
ordinary shares in China Star Cultural was
HK$46,925,000 as at 31 December 2013.

Ll R {851,324,000% T U &&
146,640,000 F B 2 X t Z B
B REEXE ZTRA
29%) c HEIEX LA —RBKREE
BATAREMBATN CEEXKA
HANEEBENEZRERREIT - FAE
EXEREMBAR 2 EEE £
ZUAERB o

REEQAFRZEZEBERETEEZ
XL ESE 2 B2 25,397,000 8T °

RZE—=%+ZA=+—-H ' ®
PEHEX{tz2REEZEBLEBEHE T
B¢ 58 & SREEETRE R -

AkEcEDIREEALEREES
RAFGE  REXRAHEE X
RERTmE ZHRECRT R EH
ERAR) MAOEEATFESHE
1Ko RZE—=FEF+=ZF=1+—
H : 146,640,000 f% 1 Bl £ 1k &
B 2™ 5 3 E A 46,925,000 8
J'Eo

KERBEIRERRAF
R -NFFHR
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial

associates (Continued)

(b)

China Star Cultural (Continued)

information of

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2013,
an impairment loss of HK$6,137,000 was
reversed and recognised in profit or loss
and hence reduced the carrying amount of
goodwill allocated to China Star Cultural by

the same amount.

22, NEE DR 2R (/)
BERRZMBERRE(E)

PR 23k (&

BE-_Z—=F+-A=+—-HL
FE - BEREEE6,137,000%
TWRIBERER > WoEFHE
EX{tzEE2zEHBERLHER S
5 o

2014 2013
—F-mE =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current assets REEE N/A R iE A Sir9se
Non-current assets FREBERE N/A R iE A 30,950
Current liabilities nREEE N/A 73 8,700
Non-current liabilities FnBEE N/A R3E A -
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-—BA=1+—HLEFE
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Revenue g N/A 38 P 15,698
Loss from continuing operations REFELEEK ZEE N/A 7 3E A (12,829)
Post-tax loss from discontinued RECKRIEEET
operations ZREiEEE N/ATER —
Loss for the year rEEEHE N/ATER (12,829)
Other comprehensive income for AEEFEHMEEmKE
the year N/A &R —
Total comprehensive loss for AEERPHEEBELSE
the year N/A 7~iE A (12,829)
Dividends received from China Star F£RZWHEE X1t
Cultural during the year ZBRE N/A R iE A —

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Summarised financial
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associates (Continued)

(b)

China Star Cultural (Continued)

information of

(b)

Reconciliation of the above summarised
financial information to the carrying amount
of the interest in the associate recognised in
the consolidated financial statements:

22, NEE DR 2R (/)
BERARZMBERNMEE)

PR 23k (&

B HER M ERRE S HRR
WHER 2 R E DB S < IREE
HERWMT :

2014 2013
—E—-OF —E=—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Net assets of China Star Cultural FEEX btz EEFE N/A 7 A 74,202
Proportion of the Group’s AEBRFBEE XL
ownership interest in China Star BEEER
Cultural Z el N/A R iE A 29%
The Group’s share of net assets of ZAEBEEEHEELZ
China Star Cultural EEFE N/A 7 iE A 21,519
Gooduwill 5k N/A 7 3iE 25,397
Effect of fair value adjustments W BB BN B R
at acquisition ZE N/A 7 iE A -
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEENPEE
interest in China Star Cultural R ZERAEE N/A 7 iE A 46,916

HMERBIREARAH
—E-FFR
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Change in ownership interest in China Star
Cultural

During the year, the Group held 29%
shareholding interest in China Star Cultural and
accounted for the investment as an associate.
On 15 April 2014, China Star Cultural allotted
and issued 100,000,000 new ordinary shares
by way of placing of new shares under general
mandate and the Group’s shareholding interest
in China Star Cultural was diluted from 29.00%
to 24.21%. On 17 June 2014, China Star Cultural
further allotted and issued another 300,000,000
new ordinary shares by way of placing of new
shares under specific mandate and the Group’s
interest in China Star Cultural was further diluted
from 24.21% to 16.19%.

As a result, the Group was deemed to dispose
of a 12.81% shareholding interest in China Star
Cultural and ceased to have significant influence
over China Star Cultural on 17 June 2014. The
Group has accounted for the remaining 16.19%
shareholding interest in China Star Cultural as
available-for-sale investment whose fair value at
the date of deemed disposal was HK$52,790,000,
which was based on the closing price of HK$0.36
per share in China Star Cultural as quoted on the
Stock Exchange on 17 June 2014. The deemed
disposal has resulted in the recognition of a gain
in profit or loss, calculated as follows:

22, NEE DR 2R (/)

RABEX(LERREER 22T

FR AEEFEHPEHE X1L29%
EREZ ARIARELZAT 2R
E- N=—ZE—NEMNAB+HEA 7HE
XIEBRE-—REEUBEHFRDZH
= i 2 & % 17 100,000,000 f% 5 Z B
B AEBRFEEX L 2ERESH
29.00% B E2421% c R = F — [
FRATLHE FEEBREZRR
BUREHBRO 2 H NEHEKETSH
300,000,000 RFZEER » REBE R+
BEN{tzEFZR2421%E—Si#E
£16.19% o

At - R=FE—MEXA+tH K&
BERBELHENTEE XL 212.81%
ERES RTBYTHREXLEESE
FEh . AEEBRFBEXLZ
FE£16.19% X REZ ARSI B AT 4 H
ERE RBEELERHZ2AFES
52,790,000 B T(EHHEXLtR=F
—MOESNATEtEEBRFAARKGE
BIR0.36BTFTE) - RIEHESIHNE
HREAWE  BEENT

HK$’000
FET
Fair value of 16.19% shareholding interest in China RAEZBEARFE Nz BRHE
Star Cultural on the date of loss of significant EX16.19% R ERZ A
influence FE 52,790
Less: carrying amount of 16.19% shareholding B RAREBEREZENZHR
interest in China Star Cultural on the date of FE 2301k 16.19% IR
loss of significant influence 2 BREE (45,121)
Gain on deemed disposal of China Star Cultural BIAEREFEE b 2 W= 7,669

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2014
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23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLES 23. EWTRRERE
The convertible notes receivables contain FERAHEBRZEEERTH  GEEE
two components: debt and conversion option BREEREDD  EXRBHOARIBER
components. The debt component is accounted REWRIE » MR R EEIH A AR
for as loans and receivables while the conversion FAESTESMIA o

option component is accounted for as derivative
financial instrument.

Movements in the debt components of FEWRTABEREE 2EBFBPRERN &
convertible notes receivables during the year are BT :
as follows:
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-NEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
At 1 January R—A—H 225,442 323,160
Subscription of convertible notes RBEWATREREE
receivables (Note c) (Hizztc) 4,551 —
Imputed interest income on convertible FEU AT ZHE 2 HEFIS
notes receivables (note 9) L ONC ) 7,686 38,233
Interest received on convertible notes AR ZE 2 WFIE
receivables (4,241) (25,507)
Early redemption of convertible notes 12 R fEEI U AT IR ZiE
receivables (Note b) (KH1EE b) (25,389) -
Conversion of convertible notes HREW AR EE
receivables (Notes a and c) (Mfetalkc) (208,049) (110,444)
At 31 December RTt=H=+—H - 225,442

Analysed for reporting purposes as: RMBEEENTHE :

Current assets (Note a) nEBEE KT a) - 200,840
Non-current assets (Note a) FRBEEKF a) - 24,602
- 225,442

HMERBIREARAH 159
—E-FFR
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23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

China Star

On 7 July 2011, China Star issued the convertible
notes in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$350,000,000 to the Group. The convertible notes
are unsecured, interest bearing at 8% per annum
and maturing on 6 July 2016.

Provided that any conversion of the convertible notes
(i) does not trigger a mandatory offer obligation
under Rule 26 of the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers
and Mergers on the noteholder(s) which exercised
the conversion rights and its/their party(ies) acting
in concert; and (ii) will not cause the public float of
China Star unable to meet requirement under Rule
8.08 of the Listing Rules, the noteholder(s) shall
have the right at any time during the period from
7 July 2011 to 5 July 2016 to convert the whole
or part of the outstanding principal amount of the
convertible notes into ordinary shares in China
Star at an adjusted conversion price of HK$0.11
per share (subject to further adjustment). Unless
previously redeemed or converted, any amount of
the convertible notes which remains outstanding
on the maturity date shall be redeemed at its then
outstanding principal amount.

The debt component of the convertible notes is
measured at amortised cost and the effective interest
rate of the debt component is 13.17% per annum.
The conversion option component is presented as
conversion options embedded in convertible notes
receivables in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

On 2 October 2013, the Group converted the
principal amount of HK$125,000,000 of the
convertible notes receivable from China Star into
1,136,363,636 new ordinary shares in China Star at
the adjusted conversion price of HK$0.11 per share.
Given that the market value of the 1,136,363,636
new ordinary shares in China Star valued at the
closing price of HK$0.135 per share on 2 October
2013, being the date of conversion, exceeded the
fair value of the relevant debt and conversion option
components of the convertible notes receivables by
HK$16,446,000, a gain of HK$16,446,000 arising on
change in fair value upon conversion of convertible
notes receivables was recognised in profit or loss for
the year ended 31 December 2013.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2014

23. BT ERE (&)

PEE

R=ZZ——FtHtH FHEQNALEE
BT £ 458 % 350,000,000 % T 2 A #2
RERE - TRREBEAHEER  RERRH
8% st E RN =T —R"FLASBEH -

fisd IR AR R RIS () TEEBATRIRRE
ZEBRAARE-—FTHALBESE
D E) B K & OF <F B 25 26 R 3R E K58 )t
BNEME R()TEEHTEHEZARE
REREMFS LMRAIZE 808K 2HE
AZBREASERR=-Z2——FLtAt
BEZZ-AFLtAABHBEBREER
OMBTzERAEBLREBE(TFE SR
BIBTHRBREBZH R RAZBREE
HRBATHELER - REMNSEER
S EAREH A RER 2 TRR
SRARAERRELO A SHED -

R REE 2 EB O TR HERAG
B BRI 2BERFANRBI13.17% -
RBBRERINHNES BHMRR R HE
BRI RIBEA S 2 A IRREE o

RZZBE-—=F+AZH AEEZRERRK
BOMBRTZEARBRELASES
125,000,000 7 Jt 2 B £ fE UK AT 3 B =
¥ R 51,136,363,636 R E £ #HZ B
BR - $8741,136,363,636 R 2 # % B
BiZ-—ZFE—=F+B=-H(BHB®REH)Z
W EEREERCI13SBLFEZHE
BBEWRTRREE - HEEEE iR
ERIM 2D F{E 16,446,000 7T » K
BE-Z-—=f1+-A=1+—HILEER
BRrBERLBERTRREREZATFE
BE)EL 2 NS 16,446,00058 T °
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23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

China Star (Continued)

At 31 December 2013, the remaining balance of the
convertible notes receivable from China Star were
expected to be converted within 12 months from the
end of the reporting period and were reclassified
under current assets.

On 28 March 2014, the Group converted the
remaining principal amount of HK$225,000,000 of
the convertible notes receivable from China Star into
2,045,454,545 new ordinary shares in China Star at
the adjusted conversion price of HK$0.11 per share.
Given that the market value of the 2,045,454,545
new ordinary shares in China Star valued at the
closing price of HK$0.151 per share on 28 March
2014, being the date of conversion, exceeded the
fair value of the relevant debt and conversion option
components of the convertible notes receivables by
HK$28,461,000, a gain of HK$28,461,000 arising on
change in fair value upon conversion of convertible
notes receivables was recognised in profit or loss for
the year ended 31 December 2014.

Koffman Corporate Service Limited (“Koffman”)

On 22 March 2012, Koffman issued the convertible
note in the principal amount of HK$27,000,000 to
the Group. The convertible note is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and maturing on 21 March 2015.

Provided that the convertible note has not been
redeemed, the whole convertible note shall
automatically be converted into shares in Koffman
upon the success of initial public offering of
Koffman’s shares at the price of initial public
offering. Any amount of the convertible note which
remains outstanding on the maturity date shall
be redeemed by Koffman at its then outstanding
principal amount plus a premium calculated at 20%
of the then outstanding principal amount.

The debt component of the convertible note is
measured at amortised cost and the effective interest
rate of the debt component is 7.97% per annum.
The conversion option component is presented as
conversion option embedded in convertible notes
receivables in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

At 31 December 2013, the convertible note
receivable from Koffman was classified under non-
current assets.

(a)

(b)

23. BT ERE (&)

BiaE : (4&)

HEE (%)

REE-—=5+ZA=+—-R BTz
BEERRTRREERHAERAREDR
BI2EARNEER  YELPBEARBEE -

R-E-—-mME=A=+/7\H > AE@ERS
BRG0I1B LT ZEAEBRRE K&k
T 7 4 %8 £ 225,000,000 T 2 FEH 2
FEU AT #2 BR =45 2 B 2,045,454,545 %
PR EHEE MR o R 2,045,454,545 %
FEEFETERE-Z-—NE=A=1+N
H(RHBRAE) 2B mESERO0.151 B T
TEoTEEBVRREEEBELER
HBREEIS G 2 D F{E28,461,000 %
T BEBEE-ZE-NE+ZA=+—HI1t
FEREBRRERALBERTEREZER
DNFEEEEE 2 U 28,461,00058 7T ©

BERMELEARBEERARN(SER]

R=F—=F=A=1=H BERBE
£ @ 4T £ % % 27,000,000 T 2 7]
BRER - TRREBHEEN  RER
BR-B-BE=A+—AHM-

i TRRFEAREED - B2 ARRKRE
BEARSERRODIBEFETERAAREE
REEANRBEEAYLRATERR
7 EARBMBNARERD Z T BRREE
THERHSERRAERRERAEHE
SINRERRABRASI20% 5t 5 2R E

m o

TR RE 2 B0 RBERAGT
B BERERDBERFRNERT7.97%  5H
BEREERORERES PRI R BER
THRREBERE 2 HIBRERE

R-ZZE—=5+-A=1+t—-H0 5ERE
BABREBESBRIFRDEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Koffman Corporate Service Limited (“Koffman”)
(Continued)

On 30 May 2014, the entire convertible note in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$27,000,000 were
early redeemed by Koffman at par and a gain arising
on early redemption of convertible notes receivables
of HK$1,611,000 was recognised in profit or loss.

EDS Wellness

On 22 May 2014, EDS Wellness issued the
convertible notes in the aggregate principal amount
of HK$40,000,000 to the Group. The convertible
notes are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
maturing on 21 November 2016.

Subject to the compliance of the public float
requirement by EDS Wellness, the convertible notes
carrying rights entitling the holders hereof to convert
their principal amount into new shares in EDS
Wellness at an initial conversion price of HK$1.00
per share (subject to adjustment) during their term.
Unless previously redeemed, repurchased and
cancelled or converted, any outstanding convertible
notes shall be redeemed at par on maturity date.

The debt component of the convertible notes is
measured at amortised cost and the effective interest
rate of the debt components is 130.32% per annum.
The conversion option component is presented as
conversion options embedded in convertible notes
receivables in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

On 2 July 2014, the Group converted the principal
amount of HK$25,000,000 of the convertible notes
receivable from EDS Wellness into 25,000,000
new ordinary shares in EDS Wellness at the initial
conversion price of HK$1.00 per share. Given that
the market value of the 25,000,000 new ordinary
shares in EDS Wellness valued at the closing price
of HK$3.4905 per share on 2 July 2014, being the
date of conversion, exceeded the fair value of the
relevant debt and conversion option components of
the convertible notes receivables by HK$61,846,000,
a gain of HK$61,846,000 arising on change in
fair value upon conversion of convertible notes
receivables was recognised in profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2014. Upon the conversion,
the Group held 65.58% interest in the issued share
capital of EDS Wellness and EDS Wellness became a
65.58% owned subsidiary of the Company.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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23. BT ERE (&)

BiaE : (4&)

(b)

()

Tt

REFXBZARBER2A(TEERD

Tt

%

i

i)

i
N—

RZE-—NFREA=1TH SEREER
T {81 & 3] X £ 48 8 55 27,000,000 38 7T 2
EABRBEE WA BEREIRRERE
B U AR AR Z 4 2 N ES 1,611,00058 7T ©

EDS Wellness

R—ZZE—-—N&EHRAB =+ = H: EDS
Wellness R E B & TAS B EAS
40,000,000 78 7T 2 ATR IR Z1E - AJRRE
BHREREF RERR=-Z—<E+—8
—t+—HZH-

f5EDS WellnessiF a2 REFERERTE
% WEREEMSEINELEEATR
AR EZEHRARDSRBESRK1.00
BL(AFAR)EEARSERBRBEDS
Wellness T i& 17 o BREAI 2 EE ~ BB K&
SR BN AR BT EREER
ZE S REEER -

R RREE 2 EB O TR HE KA
B ERHN2EBRFNERD130.32% °
RBBRERITNHNES PHMRR KRB E
WA RBEAS 2 HIRREE o

RZE-—WELtAZH AEEHEZA
SHBRESRIBETEAESHES
25,000,000 7t Z EDS Wellness & U
R = B R % 525,000,000 % EDS
Wellness 31 & & i% - % /2 25,000,000 f%
EDS Wellness HiEBERIZ—_SE—NF+t
AZR(BNAZAH) 2 Wi ESR3.4905
BRstEcHERRWBRKRER 2 HEE
R HIBRIEREIH 2 A F{E 61,846,000
B BMREBEE-ZE-—NE+=-A=1+—
HEEECEZRERRBRERTRRKRE
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Bt REBTERE  AEEFHEDS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLES

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)
(c) EDS Wellness (Continued)

On 30 September 2014, the Group converted the
remaining principal amount of HK$15,000,000 of the
convertible notes receivable from EDS Wellness into
15,000,000 new ordinary shares in EDS Wellness at
the initial conversion price of HK$1.00 per share.
Given that the market value of the 15,000,000 new
ordinary shares in EDS Wellness valued at the
closing price of HK$3.95 per share on 30 September
2014, being the date of conversion, exceeded the
fair value of the relevant debt and conversion option
components of the convertible notes receivables by
HK$43,452,000, a gain of HK$43,452,000 arising on
change in fair value upon conversion of convertible
notes receivables was recognised in profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2014. Upon the
conversion, the Group’s interest in the issued share
capital of EDS Wellness has increased to 70.18%.

24. DEPOSIT FOR INVESTMENT

Deposit for investment represents a refundable
deposit of HK$60,000,000 paid to a vendor, a
wholly owned subsidiary of a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (the
“Main Board Listed Company”), pursuant to the
conditional sale and purchase agreement dated
11 December 2014 and entered into between the
Company as purchaser, the vendor as vendor
and the Main Board Listed Company as guarantor
relating to the proposed acquisition of the entire
shareholding interest in a target company and
the assignment of the shareholder’s loan due by
the target company.

23. BT ERE (&)

e - (4&)
(c) EDS Wellness (#&)

R-E-—WERB=1+H AEHZEA
SHRBRESRI00EBETEBTAELES
15,000,000 % JT Z EDS Wellness & U
o #RR E 4 R # 515,000,000 R EDS
Wellness ¥ & i@ I% o # 7 15,000,000
JREDS Wellness i EBREZ T — Y
FEABR=1THEAEBAH) 2WHES
B3 EBRAEZAFEERTRRE
BrBERRAIBBEZEENMD 2HEE DT
{B43,452,0008 T MEBZEZE_-Z—NF
T A=+ —HLEFERERRERLZR
EROUSREEEZAFEESBES 2 W
43,452,000 7T - RABTERE @ NEE
JAEDS WellnessE % TRA 2 EHIEE
70.18% °

24, RERS

RERSEMEL (BRXFERLEHT QT
(EREFATDDHNZEMNBAR) » X
11 #9 60,000,000 8 T A RERE © I ]5
REBHA-Z-NFE+=-A+—-HH
RARMERES  HEBFERETUR
EREHRARAERERART L Z2BKRME
EEWHR  ARRNEZRWE-—BERQT
ZEEERESURERERLAASE
HRRER °
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25. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 25, THEEESMEE
ASSETS
The Group
AEH
2014 2013
—ZE-NF —ET-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Listed equity securities in EBLETRARS
Hong Kong, at fair value BRAYE
At 1 January B—A—8 - 129,499
Conversion of bonus convertible HBA R R EE
notes (Note b) (K&t b) - (82,949
Reclassification from interests in BERBE AR ZERERH
associates (Note d) DE (KT ) 52,790 —
Disposals (Notes ¢ and e) HE(Hitcke) (27,287) (41,280)
Net gain/(loss) arising on revaluation  AIEHEESHMEEEMGELE
of available-for-sale financial assets W (E1E) 35 43,212 (5,270)
68,715 —
Unlisted debt security ELEhmEKRES
Club debenture (Note f) &S (M) 172 172
At 31 December R+=A=+—8H 68,887 172
Notes: BiEE -

(@)

All of equity securities listed in Hong Kong are
stated at fair values. Fair values of the listed equity
securities are determined by reference to the quoted
market bid prices available on the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
converted the entire bonus convertible notes in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$6,079,806.76 into
607,980,676 new ordinary shares in China Star at
an initial conversion price of HK$0.01 per share and
the 607,980,676 new ordinary shares in China Star
were accounted for as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
disposed of 303,990,338 shares in China Star at an
average market price of HK$0.1358 per share.

On 17 June 2014, the Group was deemed to dispose
of a 12.81% interest in China Star Cultural and
ceased to have significant influence over China Star
Cultural. The Group has accounted for the remaining
16.19% interest in China Star Cultural as available-
for-sale financial assets whose fair value at the date
of deemed disposal was HK$52,790,000, which was
based on the closing price of HK$0.36 per share in
China Star Cultural as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on 17 June 2014.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2014

(@ FEEBEWRAFBFIRAFEIE-
EHRAEBS 2N FEDIESEBR M
HRehmEBEAEBERE -

(b) BE=ZE—Z=F+=B=t+—HLHFE"
AREEIZESR0.01 BT 2 AFRBEER
+#%8%46,079,806.76 8 7T Z = ZBAL A AT
TR EHE 5155 607,980,676 R E £ #H
LEIR 607,980,676 R P E 2 I iE
BARIABRAFE A BEEZR2EME
E o

(c) BE=ZE—Z=F+=ZB=t+—HLEFE"
AEEZEFHITESR0138BTEHE
303,990,338 IR E £ 17 ©

(d) R=EZ-—OFEASA+LH - AEERGE
HERHEE XL 212.81% %% T
BUHREEXCHEEEAZESD - A5E
HERPEEXL 28T 16.19% i A R
IRAHEHESHERE - ARNRELER
H 2 A E 452,790,000 5T 0 TR
BEXCR=-F-—NFEFATLRAEER
FRPFERW T S MR 0.36 B ITRTH °
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25. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(e)

On 19 December 2014, the Group disposed of
75,800,000 ordinary shares in China Star Cultural
in a series of transactions on open market for
an aggregate net proceeds of HK$94,170,000,
representing an average selling price of HK$1.2468
per share and recognised a gain on disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets of HK$66,883,000
in profit or loss.

The club debenture has indefinite useful life and no
amortisation has been made and is stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any. The fair
value of the club debenture at 31 December 2014
has been arrived at with reference to comparable
sales evidence as available in the relevant market.
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
identified no impairment loss related to the club
debenture (2013: Nil).

26. LOANS RECEIVABLES

AHEESMEE#E)

BiaE : (4&)

) RZZFE-—ME+=A+HhAB AEBMELD
BMmBEER—ESRER 5 HE75800,000
BAAREXEER S8 HEMRBHE
EE A £94,170,0008 T - FHEBEA
FR1.24688 T THREFZEEIHE
e S FE E ~ K% 66,883,000 &
T o

) EBFREFLEREAUFERERS  BCRMEER
8 RIERAIBRESRERRE(E)
ReR=ZZ—WUEF+=-_A=+—8: Ef
%EZﬂiﬁﬁﬁg%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁmT
HEHERREE - HE-Z—NE+=-A
Er= Hmiﬁ AEBERBREEE
SECRBEBE(ZZ—=F : §F)

26. EWWE R

The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-NF —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loans to customers AEFRHEHZER 941,000 763,186
Accrued interest receivables FE U FEET I B 9,549 10,438
950,549 773,624
Less: impairment loss recognised B - BRERREEE - =
950,549 773,624

KB R E AR AT
—s-mEFy 00



166

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o &
FeEMBEERME
For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ
26. LOANS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26. BWWER (&)
All loans are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. MEEREUBRFTE ERERZE
The loans receivables carry effective interests BMEFNEHINF8HE20% (ZF— =
ranging approximately from 8% to 20% per FEFE25%ZE48%) c R—F—T
annum (2013: 2.5% to 48% per annum). A FR-_FE—=%+ZHA=+—H " &3
maturity profile of the loans receivables (net HAgs 2BRRER(NRE BRI BERS
of impairment loss recognised, if any) at 31 B(A))2EBHERDT
December 2014 and 2013, based on the maturity
date is as follows:
2014 2013
—E-NmE —E—=
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Current assets HEEE
Within one year —F R 720,549 168,476
Non-current assets HmEEE
Over one year but within two years —F L EWFEUR 230,000 605,148
950,549 773,624
At 31 December 2014, certain loans amounted E’Q\— =2 -—mWE+=ZHA=+—H " :F
to HK$206,000,000 (2013: HK$315,148,000) are & 206,000,000 T(=Z & — =
secured by personal guarantees, undated share 315,148,000 78 jt ) J3 LAE A B4R ~ TFE
charges and the pledge of customers’ properties ARG ECRE B AT EAE ST (=
at fair value of HK$Nil (2013: HK$258,600,000). T — =1 :258,600,000BT)2EFY
EFIEA o
27. INVENTORIES 27. 78
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-IF —F—=
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Raw materials FEArR 8,950 =
Work-in-progress TG 3,794 —
Finished goods SR G 14,357 -
Less: written off B HEE (1) -
27,100 -

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses
and included in “cost of sales” amounted to
HK$14,857,000 (2013: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2014,
certain inventories were obsolete that could not
generate future economic benefits and a written
off of inventories of HK$1,000 (2013: Nil) was
recognised.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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28. TRADE RECEIVABLES

e

28.

The Group assesses the credit status and
imposes credit limits for the customers in
accordance with the Group’s credit policy. The
credit limits are closely monitored and subject to

periodic reviews.

The Group allows credit period ranging from 0
day to 120 days to its customers. Details of the
aged analysis of trade receivables that are not
considered to be impaired and based on the

invoice dates as follows:

g2 RWRIE

AEBRBECERRFETF Z2EM
MRARGITEERE  THEEREE
TRIEAREMBRE

AEBAFOEEFRHENEEHN T
0Z£120H - REBBMEZEZ BIIR
BEZAMETHRED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

MAT :

The Group
rEE

2014 2013
—E-mE —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FBT
0-30 days 0Z30H 13,549 37
31-60 days 31260H 2,783 —
61-90 days 61Z290H 818 —
91-120 days 91&120H 82 —
Over 120 days 120 H A L 396 396
17,628 433
Less: impairment loss recognised B BHERRESE (396) (396)
17,232 37

The following is an aged analysis of the trade
receivables (net of impairment loss recognised, if

any) at the end of the reporting period:

RBERR  EZRRKR(EHKRERE

REEEE(WA)) ZREDTOT

2014 2013

—E-mF —B—=fF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FETT FET

0-30 days 0Z30H 13,549 37
31-60 days 31£60H 2,783 —
61-90 days 61Z90H 818 —
91-120 days 91120 H 82 —
17,232 37
KIEREIRERGRATR

ik
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28.

29.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

At 31 December 2014, the Company had no trade
receivables past due but not impaired (2013:
Nil). The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

Age of impaired trade receivables is as follows:

28.

B 5 RWRIEAE)

R-ZZF-NFE+ZA=+—0 ' FA21QFH
WEBRERBENE S EBRRE(ZR
—=F &) AEEI RUZEERE
BEERR -

EREEZBUGRENRRIMAT -

2014 2013
—ZT-nEF —
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Over 120 days 120H L £ 396 396

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

29.

BE - ANRERAEMERRE

The Group The Company
FEH NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mf —T-=F =—B-NF —T-=F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Deposits e 3,001 469 - —
Prepayments FBFRIE 1,888 118 933 59
Other receivables Ht W FRIE 52,125 10,604 - —
Less: impairment loss A mEA R IEZ
recognised in respect of ERARESE
other receivables (Note) (Hz) (46,519) - - -
10,495 11,191 933 59
Note: Bt

On 30 April 2010, Blu Spa (Hong Kong) Limited (“BSHK”"),
a then wholly owned subsidiary of EDS Wellness, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with Mr. Shum Yeung
(“Mr. Shum?”), pursuant to which BSHK had agreed to
acquire (i) a 70% of the entire issued share capital of an
entity and (ii) the shareholder’s loan due by such entity at
a total consideration of HK$80,000,000.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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MR-ZZE—ZFFWHA=+H  EDS Wellness £
2 &K B2 Blu Spa (Hong Kong) Limited
(TEBH « H(E\EB)DEIELRE(REE]D
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DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

The acquisition did not proceed and the EDS Wellness
Group has entered into various deed of termination
and deeds of settlement with Mr. Shum and a deed of
guarantee with Dutfield International Group Company
Limited (“Dutfield”) in relation to the repayment of the
refundable deposit. As Mr. Shum defaulted in the full
repayment of the refundable deposit and the accrued
contractual interest despite repeated demands and
requests, EDS Wellness had obtained a judgement against
Mr. Shum pursuant to which it was adjudged, inter alia,
that Mr. Shum shall pay to EDS Wellness the sum of
HK$39,127,500 (being the amount of the outstanding
and unpaid refundable deposit) together with contractual
interest at the rate of 30% per annum from 1 May 2013
to 6 September 2013 and thereafter at judgement rate
pursuant to s.48 of the High Court Ordinance until
payment. At 31 December 2014, the aggregate amount
of the outstanding and unpaid refundable deposit and
the accrued interest was approximately HK$46,519,000.
Since (i) Mr. Shum failed to settle the judgement debt
and the accrued interest and commenced various legal
actions to prevent EDS Wellness from recovering the
judgement debt and the accrued interest including a
fresh legal action as announced by EDS Wellness in its
announcement dated 23 January 2015; (ii) it was unclear
whether and when EDS Wellness would be able to receive
the judgment debt and the accrued interest in full from
selling (1) the charged shares in Mr. Shum’s companies;
and (2) the charged properties as those properties were
held by Mr. Shum and another individual as joint tenants
and subject to mortgages given that EDS Wellness did not
have the information of the financial status of Mr. Shum
and his companies, the amount of Mr. Shum’s interest in
the charged properties and the outstanding loan amounts
under the mortgages; and (iii) the ability of Dutfield to
fulfil its obligations under the guarantee depended on the
outcome of the legal proceedings for, inter alia, its claim
for the sum of HK$141,360,000 under a loan agreement
but Dutfield failed to obtain a summary judgement against
the debtor and the outcome of the legal proceedings
was uncertain, the Company has decided to recognise
an impairment on the judgement debt and the accured
interest in the aggregate amount of HK$46,519,000.
For further details, please refer to EDS Wellness’s
announcements dated 5 April 2012, 4 July 2012, 24 July
2012, 3 August 2012, 21 August 2012, 28 September
2012, 26 October 2012, 1 November 2012, 21 December
2012, 29 January 2013, 25 April 2013, 3 May 2013, 12
January 2015 and 23 January 2015.

29.

?@T)ﬁ s BENREREAERRE
&

BiaE : (4&)

BB EIE R G # 1T © EDS Wellness &£ B 5
EHF] ZEALIERE R FFERE > J8@E Dutfield
International Group Company Limited ([
Dutfield ) FiRB AR E R ST L IERZE -
MNIHEERSBERNZEEDEN T2 E
ZEOEREZREREFEHNFE - EDS Wellness
CREHEMAEENHR Bk LEEWH
EA(H AR E4E) BMEDS WellnessX 1§ & &
39,127,500 7% 7t (B) 5k /8 K {4 49 7] 3R B 2 & X
H)ERENNEZHR  —E—=FEFH—H
ECE-—=FENANBRENERE30%E
HERSZERGEHEISHENHERN RIS -
AZE—NE+ZA=1+—H KERSHA
EEZRESHRER R F B H 54 546,519,000
B BERMOILAEEREFEHRAEEARR
SRR BEREMZEEETE(EIEEDS
Wellness R —Z—HF—A =+ =H AWK
STHASE 4T EN) LUEEDS Wellness F gE Uk @ £
REERZ&FIE ; (i) 5 K E# EDS Wellness
SERMABEEBEE (1)LLEQXTNEHR
B RQHBRLEERII—BBEILALUES
BEEEANEENASYEHREB)KREZ
R RBERESFE > MEDS Wellness if
EREEREATNHBRAER  LEER
WM ENEZRIRBTHREZEER » R (i)
Dutfield BITEARZE TIEBIER AN IR
FTHERFNER HBEERBEERBERR
£ %84 141,360,000 7T © SR Dutfield K AE
HYUEBEANSEHIHR  BEABEEER
FrER ARPBARERMRAEERZFAANE
44 2E 7 52 0RL {5 46,519,000 8 7T © # —H 315 -
HZ2HMEDS WellnessAfiA=-ZE——F @A
FH-ZE-—-—FtAWMHE -ZZET—Z-%+tA
“+tME-=ZZF—Z—%N\B=H -ZF—ZF
NBZ+—HB -ZZE—Z-FABAZ+NB: =
E——_F+AZ+REB-Z E—ZF+—H—
B2 —f+-A=+—-HA -=ZF—=%F—
B-Z+hB-ZE—=Ff@mA=-+HA =F
—=FHB=H -ZE-—HF—HA+ZHR=Z
—HEE—BZ+=Hz2Afi°
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30. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 30. FEUNERZ N Bl FIE
Amount due from an associate disclosed REEBATGRL(FE622F)MR115
pursuant to Section 78 of Schedule 11 to the 78IRU B ERI BB A ARAI(E32FE)E
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) with 161BEIIRE 2 FE B E A B FIEM T -
reference to Section 161B of the predecessor
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) is as
follows:
Maximum
amount
outstanding The Group
during the year rEE
FRAREE 2014 2013
ZEETH —E-mF —E—=
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FHET
Spark Concept Spark Concept 7,393 7,393 7,393
7,393 7,393
Less: impairment loss B BHEARERSE
recognised (3,865) (3,865)
3,528 3,528

The carrying amount of amount due from
Spark Concept is reduced to the recoverable
amount which is determined by reference to the
estimation of future cash flows expected to be
generated from Spark Concept.

The amount due from an associate is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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FEUX Spark Concept X IE 2 BREE TR
LSEAREISE TREEENESE
FEHA S A Spark Concept B4 25tk
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32.
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

31.

e M BRME

BRAFEFABSERZERNEE

The Group
rER
2014 2013
—E-MmEF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Equity securities held-for-trading: BEEEZBRAES .
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong, & EHRAFES -
at fair value RAYE 598,705 49,046
During the year ended 31 December 2014, a BE-ZE—NEF+=-A=+—HLHF
gain arising on change in fair value of financial E REZREIARDNFEHITAER
assets at fair value through profit or loss of KXt EELATEEHELE 2 RS
HK$27,483,000 was recognised in profit or loss 27,483,000 T(Z E —=F: &

(2013: a loss of HK$5,307,000).

CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN
CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLES

Conversion options embedded in convertible
notes receivables represent the conversion option
components of convertible notes receivables
from China Star, Koffman and EDS Wellness,
which are measured at fair value using a binomial
option pricing model, at initial recognition and at
the end of each reporting period.

Movements in the conversion option components
of convertible notes receivables during the year
are as follows:

32.

5,307,000 8 7T) °
ERTHRREEAS 2 HAIRRER

FERABRBREEAES 2 AR ERERER
HE 5= RK&EDS Wellness Z FEUL [
BREECDBEZEEIRD  RAOSHE
ARBSREPRFA_EBEAHEEEE
NIZAFEFE °

EWARREE 2 AR EREIRORF
NZEEBWT :

The Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
At 1 January m—HA—H 77,572 74,256
Subscription of convertible notes RIBREWTRRZEE
receivables
— conversion option components — RIRBEREING 35,449 -
Gain arising on change in fair value of  RIRRBIZBREIRG 2 N F
conversion option components BEEEEE W - 29,836
Conversion of convertible notes HIREW AR EE
receivables (113,021) (26,520)
Early redemption of convertible notes 12 2 B& G FE U8 A] 2 IR
receivables L4 - -
At 31 December R+=—B=+—H - 77,572

KERBRABRAF
ik

171



Notes to the Consolidated Fmanclal Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

32. CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN 32. BT EREBRASZAIBRER

CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLES (#&)
(Continued)

Notes: Kzt

(@) China Star (@ HEEZ

Binomial option pricing model is used for determining
the fair value of the conversion option component.
The inputs into the model at 31 December 2013 are
as follows:

RA-EASEEERLEE LIREE
BN 2AFE R-E-—=5+=A
=t —HZREBAHBENOT

31 December 2013

—E—=
+=p=+-8
Stock price HK$0.119
fRE 0.1197& T
Conversion price HK$0.11 per share
BRIRE HKR0.11BT
Volatility 71.96%
RS
Dividend yield Zero
IR B s = =
Option life 2.52 years
AR HR 2504
Risk-free rate 0.524%
4 7 B ) 2=
(b)  Koffman by BF

Binomial option pricing model is used for determining
the fair value of the conversion option component.
The inputs into the model at 30 May 2014 (being the
date of early redemption) and 31 December 2013 are
as follows:

HOZAFE - R=F-—NFAA=T

®RA :Iﬁiﬁﬁiﬁigiﬁffﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁ%%%
+

(REFEEREH) R -"ZF—=F
=t-—AZEBERABENOT :

30 May 2014
(date of early

31 December

redemption) 2013
—B-mE
EA=+H =F—=
(REEEHH) +=A=+—H
Stock price HK$6.9 HK$6.5
I8 6.9/ 7T 6.5 7T
Conversion price HK$60 per share HK$60 per share
HBIRE FR60E T FR60E T
Volatility 37.71% 40.30%
B IE
Dividend yield Zero Zero
BB = =
Option life 0.81 year 1.28 years
HEFH 0.81 % 1.23F
Risk-free rate 0.15% 0.235%

$ [ B R 2=
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32. CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN

CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLES (#&)
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

EDS Wellness

Bat -

(c)

Binomial option pricing model is used for determining
the fair value of the conversion option component.
The inputs into the model at 22 May 2014 (being the
date of subscription) are as follows:

Stock price
BR1E

Conversion price

BRE

Volatility

IR
Dividend yield
IR E =

Option life
HARESEHR

Risk-free rate
92 B P Rl =

(#&)

EDS Wellness

fr e M BB RN

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B E=F— &+ =H=+—HILFE

32. B MREERNS 2 HRRERE

HRA—ENECEEREE LIRREE
HRZAFE AR-ZE—NFEFEA=-1+=
B(RBEBEH) 2 EAEGAGBENOT :

22 May 2014
(date of
subscription)
—E-mF
BEA=-+=H
(REEH)

HK$3.80
3.808 T

HK$1.00 per share
BKR1.008T

68.50%

Zero
=

=

2.51 years
2514

0.54%

KERBRERRAT

B NEEH
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33. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 33.

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

BeRESLENRSRAUBTE

=h
TA

The Group The Company
rEE KAF

2014 2013 2014 2013

=F-mF ZF-=F ZF-OF Z—FT-=F

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET FET FET

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERES 384,778 662,153 808 565
Restricted bank deposits: ZIRFIBITFER

Interest bearing TR 12,554 - - -

Non-interest bearing At R 7,147 - - -

404,479 662,153 808 565

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and
bank balances of the Group denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$64,000 (2013:
Nil).

The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under the PRC’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, and Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Bank balances earn interests at floating rates
based on daily bank deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

Restricted bank deposits represent deposits
charged by banks for securing the credit card
and instalment sales arrangement for the Group’s
sale of beauty products and provision of therapy
services business, of which (i) HK$12,554,000
was interest bearing ranging at 0.9% to 1.03%
per annum and maturing in January 2015 to
March 2015 and (ii) HK$7,147,000 was non-
interest bearing and maturing on 4 July 2015.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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MNBEHR REBUARBETAR
¥ NDFEZRERIRTEEA64,0008
T(ZE—=F ) o

ARBIAIEHABBEMBER - R
e REPENIMEERFRIREER
EERNEERAE AEEEEEB
ERXRERRMNEEB2RITEARER
BOHMER -

RITERBRRBRBRITEAFRFRFEZ
FEARFE - ROTERFHRNEER
% BT RS0 B A0 RC 8k 2 BRAT o

SREABRTERDEBTRAIAEBZHE
ERERRREHEEREREENER
FRABNREERHEZRF EF
() 12,554,000 Tt B> FEENTF
0.9% Z1.03% W MHR=—F—HE—A
Z= AMZEIHE - (i) 7,147,000 TH TR
R UEN—E-AFELANB R -
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34. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR 34.
SALE

On 20 November 2012, Rexdale Investment
Limited (“Rexdale”) entered into a preliminary
sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party relating to a disposal of
the investment properties located in Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong at a cash consideration of
HK$586,000,000. The fair value of the investment
properties at 30 June 2013 was HK$599,000,000
and a loss arising on change in fair value of
HK$4,000,000 was recognised in profit or loss
for the six months ended 30 June 2013. The fair
value of the investment properties at 30 June
2013 has arrived at based on a valuation carried
out by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, a firm
of independent qualified professional valuers
with no connected with the Group. Peak Vision
Appraisals Limited is a member of HKIS and has
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences
in the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant location, with reference to comparable
sales evidence as available in the relevant
market and the current rents passing and the
reversionary income potential of tenancies.
The disposal of the investment properties
was completed on 4 July 2013. Accordingly,
a loss on disposal of investment properties of
HK$13,000,000 was recognised in profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The major class of assets classified as held for
sale is as follows:

TERBFEHEZEE

RZE—-—Z—F+—H=+H ' Rexdale
Investment Limited ([ Rexdale ) 82 —
EEIUE=ZFFUGRESH:E IR
BB LR £ K E586,000,000% T HE
NRAEBNEBEZRENE - R=ZZ
—=FXB=1+H ZEBREWEZAD
F{& £599,000,0008 7k ' WREEZ=
Z-ZHFXA=ZtHLERNERZERR
AT ESEESE ZEIE 4,000,000
B ZEREVER=-ZE—=F A8
=S+ A AFEDIRERIEERAT
BB EERBETEMAR  EHAK
SEMERE  RRFAGERATNER
BHEMEBEEs  BEAEER I
ERHAE AEEL B EET
BB T2EZHETSENRERLEE
EBE URENHESREEERBRAE
AMBYE ZEREVEECHR=ZT—=
FLtAMATEREE - At REZEZ
E-—=F+-A=+—-HLEFEZEHZ
RERLEREY X 2518 13,000,000
BT o

DERAFFHEZEEZ2EEZERINT ¢

The Group
rEEH
2014 2013
—ZE-NF —2—=

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

At 1 January m—A—H - 603,000

Loss arising on change in fair value AT EEHEEZEE - (4,000)

Disposal HE - (599,000)

At 31 December Rt+=—BA=+—H - _
Unrealised gain on change in REVELATEEHEEZ

fair value of investment properties R W2

KIERBIREBRAR
—E—NFEFR
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35. SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are as follows:

35. &
RRBRARFERNZEEBMOT ¢

Number of shares

Share capital

RGHEE &N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NFE —Z-=Ff Z—FE-NF —ZT-=F
’000 000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TR FK FET FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01  SREE0.018 T
each (2013: HK$0.01 each) (ZZ—=%: §REE
0.01BT) 2EBR
Authorised: ZEE
At 1 January and R—B—BRK
31 December +=BA=+—H 10,000,000 10,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EBTRHE :
At 1 January R—B—H 456,673 257,449 4,567 2,574
Placing of new shares ELEXRRMD (MaFakc)
(Notes a and c) 91,000 47,000 910 470
Open offer of new shares NEBEHRD (HEb)
(Note b) - 152,224 - 1,523
At 31 December Rt+t=B=+—H 547,673 456,673 5,477 4,567
Notes: Bret -

(a)

On 24 January 2013, 47,000,000 new ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued at a price
of HK$0.645 per share by way of placing of new
shares under general mandate. The net proceeds
of HK$29,931,000 were intended to be used for
property investment in Hong Kong in order to enrich
the Group’s investment properties portfolio.

On 26 April 2013, 152,224,414 new ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued at a
subscription price of HK$1.20 per share by way
of open offer to the qualifying shareholders of the
Company on the basis of one new ordinary share for
every two existing ordinary shares held on 5 April
2013, raising HK$180,277,000 (net of expenses), of
which HK$40,000,000 was used for financing the
proposed subscription of the convertible notes to be
issued by EDS Wellness, HK$40,000,000 was used
for financing the proposed granting of an unsecured
loan to EDS Wellness and the remaining balance
of HK$100,277,000 was used for financing the
development and expansion of the Group’s money
lending business.

On 4 March 2014, 91,000,000 new ordinary shares of
HKO0.01 each were allotted and issued at a price of
HK$0.78 per share by way of placing of new shares
under general mandate. The net proceeds from the
placing of HK$70,190,000 were used for the Group’s
money lending business.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

R-ZZ—=F—H=+MA - 47,000,000
REREEOOIBITZHZTERBE —R
REUNREFRMHB AN EEMK0.645
B 2EBREERET IEREBTFE
29,931,000/ 8 T BIERETBWE - UL
WIRAREE 2 YEREAS -

RZE—=FWAZ=Z+"HB ER2FUM
HEERBRRAMBEZAR BRR=F
—=FENAELESEERREATERE
BT-—RBRHZTER2EERER1.20%E
TTZRBE MERBIT 152,224,414
BREREEIOIBIZHIZIER  £&
& £ 180,277,000 T (M BRBEI &) >
& 440,000,000 T AEREZRZRE
EDS Wellness#& FE 1T 2 o 2R =4
40,000,000 Jt A E & XX & & W EDS
WellnessiZ i —EBIBEHREREHT
100,277,000 T AER B RE R IEAR
EEEEEK -

R=ZZ2—ME=AMNA - ARARE—R
REUARENRN 2 XRER0.788 T
2 B 1% B 3 & 317 91,000,000 }R & IR H
E0.01 BT ZHEER - BRERSREF
$870,190,0008 T AF B A& B 2 &
B -
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36. TRADE PAYABLES 36. EZERIE
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-NF —E-=

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Trade payables B S ENRIER 13,165 —

37.

The following is an analysis of trade payables by

ZREAMETHNEZRATIRRED

age based on the invoice dates: T :
2014 2013
—E-IOF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
0 - 30 days 0Z30H 7,347 —
31 - 60 days 31£Z 60 H 2,524 —
61 — 90 days 61 £90H 3,241 —
91 — 120 days 91 2120 H 20 —
Over 120 days 120 A £ 33 —
13,165 —

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

37. EEtERARHEMENRKIE

The Group The Company
AEE ADT

2014 2013 2014 2013
—E2-mE ZE-=F ZEB-QNF ZT-=F
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FHET
Accruals 9,498 4,894 2,565 3,011
Other payables 8,047 5,162 - —
17,545 10,056 2,565 3,011

KERMBEERAT 7
—E_MEFH
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38. OTHER BORROWINGS

38. HMfERK

The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-0OF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET THET
Interest bearing other borrowings FFRHEMER
(Note a) (Ktita) 2,450 —
Non-interest bearing other borrowings &rE EAthf
(Note b) (Bfatb) 1,400 —
3,850 —
Notes: g3

(@) Included in other borrowings of HK$2,450,000 was
a loan advanced by Koffman Investment Limited
(“Koffman Investment”), a company which is 50%
owned by, Mr. Yu Zhen Hua, Johnny (the chairman
and a director of EDS Wellness), which is interest
bearing at 5% per annum, unsecured and maturing
on 25 August 2015. The loan is classified under
current liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

(o)  Included in other borrowings of HK$1,400,000 was a
loan advanced by Dr. Lo Shing Kei, an independent
third party, which is non-interest bearing, unsecured
and repayable on demand. The loan is classified
under current liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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HiE R 2,450,000 8 T NS ERRE
BRAR(EERKE]) (EDS Wellness
FEREETHEERERE0% REZA
ARBZER > BEREF5%:TE &K
AER=-ZZ2—FFENAZT+HEBEH - &%
BERRGEUBRRRIEARBES -

HE R 1,400,000 8 T HBILE=FH
Dr. Lo Shing KeifRft 2 & BRE ~
BRI EREREE - ZFEERRESE
BBMRRRD BERRBEALE -
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39. PROMISSORY NOTES 39. AL EE
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-mE —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FTHET
At 1 January Hn—HA—8 - =
Acquisition through business FREK SO

combination (note 47) (HizE47) 12,721 —

Imputed interest on promissory EGREBZEERE
notes (note 11) (HfaE11) 348 -
Repayment of promissory notes A Z AT (7,000) —
At 31 December R+=BA=+—H 6,069 —

Note:

On 11 April 2014, EDS Wellness issued four promissory
notes in the aggregate principal amount of HK$13,420,000
to two independent third parties (the “Vendors”) as part
of the consideration for the acquisition (the “Acquisition”)
of 51% equity interest in China Honest Enterprises Limited
(“China Honest”) by the EDS Wellness Group. The four
promissory notes are interest-free and unsecured. Two of
the promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$2,608,000 and HK$4,392,000 (collectively, the “PNs
1”) were maturing on 30 June 2014. The remaining two
promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$4,028,000 and HK$2,392,000 (collectively, the “PNs
11”) are maturing on 30 June 2015.

Pursuant to the terms of the Acquisition, the Vendors
have irrevocably and unconditionally warranted and
guaranteed to EDS Wellness the profits before taxation
and extraordinary items of China Honest for the years
ending 31 March 2014 and 2015 will not be less
than HK$4,000,000 (the “2014 Guaranteed Profit”)
and HK$9,000,000 (the “2015 Guaranteed Profit”)
respectively. In the event the 2014 Guaranteed Profit
or 2015 Guaranteed Profit is not fulfilled, the Vendors
shall compensate the EDS Wellness Group an amount
equivalent to the shortfall by way of setting off the shortfall
against the face value of the PNs | (for the shortfall in
respect of the year ending 31 March 2014) or the PNs Il
(for the shortfall in respect of the year ending 31 March
2015) on a dollar to dollar basis.

MR-ZZE—EHEW™AB+— B » EDS Wellness A
MEBEBIYFE=F(EF)BTEAARSLEEE
#13,420,000% T 2 & H ZE & > /£ BEDS
Wellness EEWEAIECEER QT AIE))
51% BRETWEBSEE]) 235 K E - MM
REZEBEARERERF BMOLASBEIBNE
2,608,000 7T % 4,392,000 T 2 & % Z &
(BB EMAREE DR =_E—NEXA=1
HEIH - RgMHASHEEES B A 4,028,0005%
7tH 2,392,000 T 2 AR EE (GBAIFEZ#t
AAREE BN =_S—AFA=1THIILE -

REWBEEMGR  EFTARE B E &4
B EDS WellnessfFHRFBERIER @ BIREE=
E-NER-_ZE-FAF=A=1+—BLEEN
FREL & 45 7 18 B Al & 2 Bl T 4> 1 4,000,000
B2 —WERFEA )% 9,000,00078 T
ZE2—FERBEAN] - HAREH=ZT—H
FERFEANBF=-B—FDERBEN EHEM
EDS Wellness&BIREZR  ARAUZHEE
EREFRHEEMALEZE(BRBE-T—TF=
B=t-—-BLEFEZZHEM=)RE-HALE
BRBE-E—RE=A=1+—HLEEZE
BEmE) ZEEER -

KIERBIREBRAR
—E—NFEFR
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39. PROMISSORY NOTES (Continued)
Note: (Continued)

As the 2014 Guaranteed Profit was fulfilled, the PNs | were
fully repaid on 27 July 2014.

At 31 December 2014, the PNs Il were subjected to the
compensation obligation of the 2015 Guaranteed Profit
and were classified as contingent consideration. During
the period from 12 April 2014 to 31 December 2014, China
Honest earned a profit before taxation and extraordinary
items of HK$7,662,000. The directors of the Company are
of the opinion that the 2015 Guaranteed Profit is most
probably to be fulfilled and no provision for contingent
consideration is made.

Based on the valuation carried out by Roma Appraisals
Limited, a firm of independent qualified professional
valuers, the fair values of the PNs | and the PNs Il at the
date of their issue were HK$6,824,000 and HK$5,568,000
respectively. The effective interest rates of the PNs | and
the PNs Il are 11.74% per annum and 12.28% per annum
respectively.

—HAFE+-A=+—HILFE

39. AR ()
s ()

A-ZE-NERBEANCEEYR > SHARER
ER-ZE-—MNFLtA-+LtRAZHEE -

R-B—NE+=-A=+—H F-HRIEZE
AE—ZT-hFRBEANZEESEHRR m
EARARE R-ZZ-—NEMA+=HZE
E-NE+ZA=1+—BHE  AIEHSE @m&
45 7RTE B ISR 7,662,0008 7T c N T EER
B BER_E-AFERIBENZAEERK > )
RETIRRANRERE -

ERNBYSEREXMEAANESEBTEAER
NEZMEE BHRAARERE AL RE
REZTAMZAFED 556,824,000 8 T K
5,568,000/87C - B AXZEERE—HALR
BeBBRFFNEDRIH11.74% K% 12.28% °

40. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS 40. BEF &S
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-NF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Deposits from customers ERRE 80 —

Deposits from customers represent the deposits
received for provision of therapy services and
sale of beauty products.
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e M BRME

41. DEFERRED REVENUE 41, EEW R
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
At 1 January Hn—HA—8 - =
Acquisition through business FREK SO
combination (note 47) (HizE47) 21,869 —
Sale contracts entered into (Note a) R ZHESRN (MiFa) 22,577 =
Revenue recognised upon the RERBEEI NG
provision of services (Note b) (Mt b) (18,510) -
Revenue recognised upon expiry of FENEEEEEMERER
prepaid treatment packages (Note ¢c) WA (Htztc) (1,704) -
Revenue recognised for sale and CHREAHERBRERER
redemption of beauty products A& (48) —
Refund of treatment packages EEERRR(MED)
(Note d) (184) -
At 31 December R+=B=+—~H 24,000 —
Notes: k3

(a)

The amounts represent receipts from provision of
therapy services to clients during the year which
were to be settled via credit cards, Electronic
Payment System, cash and instalment payment
arrangement.

The amounts represent revenue recognised in profit
or loss as a result of therapy services rendered to
clients during the year.

The amounts represent revenue recognised in profit
or loss for prepaid service packages expired in
accordance with the contractual service periods
stipulated in the respective sale contracts, which
mainly last for three months to two years from the
invoice date of the sale contracts.

The amounts represent refunds of treatment
packages as a result of five clients’ claims during
the year in relation to treatment outcome assessed
with reference to individual physical conditions and
treatment progress on a case-by-case basis.

At 31 December 2014, the entire balance of
deferred revenue was aged within two years from
the date when the respective sale contracts were
entered into.

(b)

()

ZE R FARE P IR A R i W
2B ZEREEBERAF - EFXH
G BeRoHNRZHEE -

ZERERARFERNO T P RAEREREM
REBBERERDWE ©

ZERERBHEBEESHRENS IR
BH(EERBHESHN 2R EHHES
ZEAEWME)  MEEBmZENERY
FENESZRBER WS -

ZEREFANREERPRERAR (K2
ZEAGERAREEEEMRERELE
)RR RMEI B2 ERETRA -

R-ZF-NE+Z-A=+—H  EEZEW
SRERZRENTFEIT LHBEES

Wz BARETTMER °

KIERBIREBRAR
—E—NFEFR
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42. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 42,

The Group leased certain of its machineries
and a digital photocopier under finance leases.
The average lease term is five years (2013: Nil).
Interest rates underlying all obligations under
finance leases are fixed at respective contract
dates ranging from 0% to 3% (2013: Nil) per

MEMHESE

AEERREHAEHEE THEN—B
BN PTHEBATFE(=Z
—ZFE . &) FEMEHNEEREZE
FEZRNEZEHBENEHEE  NF0%
B3N ([ZEB—=F :#&]) -

annum.
Present value of minimum
Minimum lease payments lease payments
BREHEENRK EEEENRZEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-QNE 2= ZB-NF ZT-=F
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Amounts payable under MERSENRE
finance leases:
Within one year —FR 509 - 444 -
More than one year and not —FNEEFBBRE
more than five years 11 — 11 =
520 — 455 —
Less: future finance charges & - ARBMEEH (65) = - -
455 — 455 -
Less: amounts due for B AR12{E R R
settlement within 12 FMEE Y
months (shown under HEGIARD
current liabilities) aE) (444) _
Amounts due for settlement ER 12 Z2HEE
after 12 months ZFRIE 11 -

Included in the obligations under finance leases
of (i) HK$435,000 is secured by a guarantee
from the Government of the HKSAR, a joint and
several guarantee from a director of China Honest
and an independent third party and the Group’s
title to the leased assets, and (i) HK$20,000 is
non-interest bearing and secured by the Group’s
title to the leased assets.
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BEHESEF () 4350008 T LLE B
BRATHERRNZ2RE - AIRE—RES
M—BBIE=F 2 LR R1E R RFE U
RAEEHEEEEZMBEREEER
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43. DEFERRED TAXATION 43. EERIE
The followings are the major deferred tax UTAFTECORRELEBEEBEREE
liabilities and assets recognised and movements KEES) :
thereon:
The Group rEH

Accelerated Estimated

tax tax Intangible
depreciation losses assets Total
MEBERE EEHHESR BREE #ct
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2013 W-E-=%-H-H 2,521 (876) 687 2,332
Released on impairment loss FERABRFEERESSE
recognised in respect of EEAS
intangible assets — - (456) (456)
Disposal of investment HEREME
properties (2,450) 816 - (1,634)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR (HE48)
(note 48) (71) 60 - (11)
At 31 December 2013 and RZB-Z5+ZRA=+-
1 January 2014 AR=—F-mE-A-A = - 231 231
Disposal of a subsidiary HEME AR (HzE48)
(note 48) = = (231) (231)
At 31 December 2014 R-Z-ME
+ZB=+-H - - - -
At 31 December 2014, the Group had unused MR-ZE—MNE+_—_A=+—H KA&EH
estimated tax losses of HK$143,867,000 (2013: BARE B AT HEEE 143,867,000 8
HK$101,678,000) available for offsetting against T(ZE—=4 :101,678,000/%E jt ) A
future taxable profits. No deferred tax asset has HIKE A BERF SR - MIEEIIEL
been recognised. No deferred tax asset has been MEEE HBAREXMGETHEZERN
recognised due to the unpredictability of future WAREBTAEERIBEE

profit streams.

KERBRABRAF
ik
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& M R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

44. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

44. AB AR Z RS

The Company

AATH
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FHET
Unlisted shares, at cost FEETRM - B 83,552 83,553
Less: impairment losses recognised B BERRESE (83,552) (83,553)
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE UR B BB X R FRIE 2,224,495 2,009,930
Less: impairment losses recognised B BRERREEE (975,553) (975,553)
1,248,942 1,034,377

The carrying amounts of interests in subsidiaries
are reduced to their recoverable amounts which
are determined by reference to the estimation of
future cash flows expected to be generated from

respective subsidiaries.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free and represent equity
funding by the Company to a subsidiary as the
Company does not expect repayment in the

foreseeable future.

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31

December 2014 are set out as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEAREE

Country/place of
incorporation

EMRLER, b

RMBRR 2R 2 REETHREH
AREERE AREEESZZHER
AFRMEEZATRRESREETE -

BURHEBLRRESERE 8 15
ARAANEBAR zEEHE(HAAAH
BAPAERT RAERKEKIER)

AKAAMBARR=-Z—NFE+=A
=t+—Hz2HBHEINAOT :

Particulars of issued
share capital

ERTRAZHE

Principal activities

FEER

Adelio Holdings Limited

Angel Wish Group Limited

Best Season Holdings Corp.
(“Best Season”)

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2014

British Virgin Islands
EBRL

British Virgin Islands

RBELHS

British Virgin Islands

RBELHS

1 ordinary share of US$1
TREREET1XT
ZEBR

1 ordinary share of US$1
TREREE1XT
ZEBR

100 ordinary shares of
US$1 each
100 REREE1 X
EER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Dormant
o
Tmex
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e M BRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

44. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Country/place of
incorporation

AMRLER, b

44. AMIB AR 2 (&)

Particulars of issued
share capital

ERTRAZHR

Principal activities
TEXH

Bluelagoon Investment Holdings
Limited

Century Capital Holdings Limited*
(“Century Capital”)

Century Finance (BVI) Limited*

Century Finance Limited?

HEEEARAA"

China Honest?

)

Dragon Leader Limited

EDS (Asia) Limited*

EDS (China) Limited*

EDS Distribution Limited*

EDS International Holdings Limited*

EDS Wellness

Eternity Finance Group Limited

XERBEEERATF

British Virgin Islands

RERLES

British Virgin Islands

RERLES

British Virgin Islands

RERLES

Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

&R

British Virgin Islands

RBELHE

Hong Kong
&#

Hong Kong
B

ang Kong

B

British Virgin Islands

RBELHS

The Cayman Islands and
continued in Bermuda

MEHE RREREFE

British Virgin Islands

RBREZ

1 ordinary share of US$1
1REBREETET
LER

1 ordinary share of US$1
1REREETET
EER

1 ordinary share of US$1
1REREETET
ZEBR

1 ordinary share of HK$1

TREREE1ET
ZEBR

100 ordinary shares of
HK$ 1 each
100 REREE1 BT
HER

1 ordinary share of US$1
TREBREET1XT
ZEBR

1 ordinary share of HK$1
1TREBREETERT
ZEBR

1 ordinary share of HK$1
1REREEET
LER

1 ordinary share of HK$1
1REREEET
LER

1 ordinary share of US$1
TREREET1XT
ZEBR

74,803,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10
each

74,803,000 R EREE
0108 TZEBR

100,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each

100,000,000 iz B REE
1BTZEBR

Investment holding, sale
of financial assets,
distribution of films and
sub-licensing of film rights
REER  HESREE
ROBYREREVRTE

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REZR

Dormant
Fmex

Marketing development,
product distribution and
customer support services

SRR EROHE
EPXERS

Investment holding

REER

Marketing development,
product distribution and
customer support services

mEHR  Ema R
EFXERS

Investment holding

REER

Marketing development,
product distribution and
customer support services

mEAR  Ema#HR
BFXERS

Investment holding

REERR

Investment holding

REERR

Investment holding
REE

KIERBIREBRAR
—E—NFEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

44. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 44, B ARz (4#)

Name of subsidiary

Country/place of
incorporation

Particulars of issued
share capital

Principal activities

WEAREE SRR IER b H ERTRAHE TEXH
Gainful Fortune Limited British Virgin Islands 160,000,100 ordinary Holding of film rights
KBELES shares of HK$1 each ~ HEEFATHE
160,009,]00\?]&?]&@@
1BTEBR
Golden Stone Management Limited  British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 Dormant
RBELZES 1TREBREE1XT EEER
LEBR
Hong Kong Builders Finance Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of Money lending
BENBERDH BB HK$1 each BE
2BEREE BT
ZEBR
K E G Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 Investment holding
AEELES 1REREETET REER
ZEBR
K E Group Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of Design and sale of jewelry
REEERRAR BB HK$1 each __products
10000 RBRABI1ET R RHEREER
ZEBR
Legend Rich Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1  Investment holding
RBELES 1hBR1ZT2EEBR  REZR
Max Winner Investments Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 Investment holding
YEREERLE & 1 BEREE ST BERR
ZEBR
New Cove Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 Investment holding
ABELES 1RSREETE7T RERR
ZEBR
Om Gem Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of Design and sale of jewelry
&E HK$1 each __ products
1000 RERABTET B RBEREER
ZEBR
One Synergy Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1  Investment holding
(“One Synergy”) BB TREREETET REER
ZEBR
Rexdale Hong Kong 10,000,000 ordinary Propert% holding
&8 shares of HK$1 each  #E#%
10,000,000 B EREE
1BTEBR
Riche Advertising Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1  Sale of financial assets
RERLHE 1 HQ@%EEJE e HELREE
=l

Riche (BVI)

British Virgin Islands

RERZ

1,000 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

1,000 REREE1 X
BER

Investment holding
REZR

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

e M BRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

Country/place of
incorporation

AMRLER, b

44. AMIB AR 2 (&)

Particulars of issued
share capital

ERTRAZHR

Principal activities

TEXH

Ri@e D_istribution Limited
EXRTERLE

Ri@e Multi-Media Limited
EXZEBEERAT

Riche Pictures Limited

Rigbe Video Limited
SEXRFERLE

Simple View Investment Limited

Stgple Income Limited
BRARAA

Victory Peace Holdings Limited

AZFEHHRHEEBRAT

Hong Kong

I
Hong Kong
i
British Virgin Islands

RBREZ

Hong Kong

B

British Virgin Islands

KBEL

Hong Kong

BB

British Virgin Islands
EERLES

The PRC
hE

The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held

1,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

1,000,000 B HEE
1BIZEBR

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

2REREE1ET
ZEBR

1 ordinary share of US$1
1REREEIER
ZEBR

10 ordinary shares of
HK$100 each
20,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$100 each*

10 BIREE 1008 T2
Rk
20,000 REREE
1008 T2 BREE
ERER

1 ordinary share of US$1
1RBREE T
LER

1,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

1,000,000 R B HEE
1RTZEBR

1 ordinary share of QS$1
1BRAB1 ZET2EBR

500,000 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

500,000 R EREE1 BT
ZEBR

Sub-licensing of film rights
and sale of financial
assets _

ERERRTERBEESAR

HETREE

Distribution of films and
other video features
BTEFREMTREE

Investment holding
REZR

Distribution of video
products in Hong Kong
REBBRITHRER

Investment holding

REER

Dormant

LEES

Investment holding

REER

Dormant

BEXS

* ZEERZRELER G (LFAAEER

by the Group, carry practically no rights to dividends
nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at
any general meeting of Riche Video Limited nor to
participate in any distribution on winding up.

# Wholly owned subsidiary of EDS Wellness, which is
a 70.18% owned subsidiary of the Company.

G Wholly Foreign-Owned Enterprise in the PRC.

4 51% indirectly owned by EDS Wellness.

BERIESIZRE - ZEREXETE
RARMEMRRAGZBERHEASH
REERFER  TEABRESEGE
AR ZHER]

EDS Wellnes 2ZEMB A AHART
70.18% HEEMMHE A A °

HEAtEEPERE -

51% B EDS Wellness B #H& o

KIERBIREBRAR
—E—NFEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

44. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The Company directly holds the interest in Riche
(BVI). All other subsidiaries are indirectly held by
the Company.

All of the subsidiaries are wholly owned by the
Company, except for:

(i) Best Season, which is 75% owned by the
Group;

(i) the EDS Wellness Group, which is 70.18%
owned by the Group; and

(iii) China Honest is 51% indirectly held by EDS
Wellness, in which the Group’s effective
shareholding in China Honest is 35.79%.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities at the end of the year, except for the
PNs Il in the principal amount of HK$6,420,000
issued by EDS Wellness which is held by third
parties.

Details of material non-wholly owned
subsidiary that has non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of material non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company that
has material non-controlling interests:

44. AMIB AR 2 (&)

RAREERFE Riche (BVI) 2#z  ff
BHMHE D RHIHEAQBEESSE -

FrEMBARIIRARAZERER » U
TREIBRS :

(i) Best Season ' ZNEEIFH75% &
S

(i) EDS Wellness% 8 A&EEIFH
70.18% #E ; &

(iii)y RBIE51% #Ez=H EDS Wellness#F
B MAEEREAEZERERE
£A35.79% o

BREDS Wellness3 1T X & # % A
6,420,000 /B T A& X EE R I EE —HEA A
EE(HE=ZFFB) N HMEHNBELA
RERBZEFMEEES -

BEEAKEREEZH2ENEAT
ZEM

RARETHERERFEREZZFR
ENBARZHBTHINT :

Proportion of ownership

Place of interests and voting
incorporation and rights held by non-  Profit allocated to non-
Name of principal place controlling interests controlling interests Accumulated non-
subsidiary of business FERERFERTE PETEERER controlling interests
WEARER SRR UEERTELE LR RERRFELH i Rt RER
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-mE ZE-=f CZE-Wf ZE-=F ZE-NF —E-=F
HK’000 HK’000 HK’000 HK’000
FEr TEr T A
EDS Wellness The Cayman Islands and 29.82% = (12,776) = 11,792 =

continued in Bermuda

The summarised consolidated financial
information in respect of the EDS Wellness
Group, which has material non-controlling
interests is set out below.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2014
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e M BRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

44. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Details of material non-wholly owned
subsidiary that has non-controlling interests
(Continued)

The EDS Wellness Group

44. AMIB AR 2 (&)

BEEARFERERZHZENBAA
Zt5 (&)

EDS Wellness £ &

2014
“E-mF
HK$°000
FET
Current assets REBEE 59,451
Non-current assets FRBEE 30,915
Current liabilities REEE (41,299)
Non-current liabilities FREAE (11)
Equity attributable to owners of EDS Wellness EDS Wellness 8 A FE{L 5 45,299
Non-controlling interests FERER 3,757
For the period
from 2 July 2014
to 31 December
2014
B-2-IF
tA=RHZE
—E-IF
t=A=t+-H
il
HK$’000
FET
Revenue WA 22,084
Loss from continuing operations REFELEEBR R (47,043)
Post-tax loss from discontinued operations REFELZEBZHABRE -
Loss for the period HEESE (47,043)
Other comprehensive income attributable to owners EDS Wellness B A B2 E
of EDS Wellness 0N 1
Other comprehensive income attributable to FERERELEMZHEBA
the non-controlling interests -
Other comprehensive income during the period HEEM2ERA 1
Total comprehensive expense attributable to owners EDS Wellness B A B2 HR X
of EDS Wellness B (48,938)
Total comprehensive income attributable to the non-controlling  FFEREREL2ERALLE
interests 1,896
Total comprehensive expense during the period HE2EMRXAH (47,042)
Dividends received from EDS Wellness during the period HAEWEDS Wellness 2R & -

HMERBIREARAH
—E-FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ—-=

44.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Details of material non-wholly owned
subsidiary that has non-controlling interests
(Continued)

—HAFE+-A=+—HILFE

44. AMIB AR 2 (&)

BEEARFERERZHZENBAA
Zt5 (&)

For the period
from 2 July 2014
to 31 December

2014
B-E-MF
tAZRE
—E-mF
+ZA=1+-H
B

HK$°000
FET

Net cash outflow from operating activities
Net cash outflow from investing activities
Net cash outflow from financing activities
Net cash outflow

BEIHELECRERETE (1,259)
RETHEEZBEREFE (412)
BETBELZRSRLFE (2,410)
RERLFE

(4,081)

Changes in ownership in a subsidiary

On 2 July 2014, the Group acquired 65.58%
shareholding interest in EDS Wellness
by converting the principal amount of
HK$25,000,000 of the convertible notes issued
by EDS Wellness into 25,000,000 new ordinary
shares in EDS Wellness at the initial conversion
price of HK$1.00 per share. Pursuant to the
irrecoverable undertaking given by the Group in
favour of EDS Wellness and Kingston Securities
Limited on 25 June 2014.

On 22 July 2014, the Group subscribed for
12,500,000 new ordinary shares in EDS Wellness
under the open offer as announced by EDS
Wellness on 25 June 2014 at a subscription price
of HK$3.00 per share pursuant to the irrevocable
undertaking dated 25 June 2014 given by the
Group. After the completion of the open offer, the
Group’s shareholding interest in EDS Wellness
remained at 65.58%.

On 28 August 2014, EDS Wellness allotted and
issued 2,620,000 new ordinary shares by way of
placing of new shares under general mandate
and the Group’s shareholding interest in EDS
Wellness was diluted from 65.58% to 62.71%.

On 30 September 2014, the Group converted the
remaining principal amount of HK$15,000,000 of
the convertible notes issued by EDS Wellness
into 15,000,000 new ordinary shares in EDS
Wellness at the initial conversion price of
HK$1.00 per share. As a result of the conversion,
the Group’s shareholding interest in EDS
Wellness increased from 62.71% to 70.18%.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2014

RMBLAREEEZEE

%:g—mitﬁzav$%ﬁéﬁ
BEALSBRBRES RKRI. 005%7_1:
Wellness 2% 1T Y 78 & 28 & 25
BATZAUBREE LB B25 000 000
JREDS Wellness ¥ Z @1k + U B EDS
Wellness 2 65.58% 5 IR fE z= IR B AR
EER=-ZE—MNESNH=+HHLEDS
Wellness R &R EEAER AT HZ =
AMEH 2 T ] e &GS o

R-ZZE-—NFLtA=-+=H xEEIR
BHR=-ZE-—-NFEAB=+tHBAEHZ
T\Eﬁﬁﬁl@%pﬁ % HﬁS.OOi%r_uZ%}%J
BERBEDS WellnessR=—ZFE— &

NAEZ +£EFEN¥EZ/AF§J§§%IETZ
12 500,000 iR EDS Wellness ¥ & &

s AABIRE E‘Eﬁkfﬁ AX%IJ&AEDS
We||nesszm§7f HHEFIN65.58% °

MR=ZFE-—mWENA=+/\H:EDS
Wellness 1R 15 — A% 1% # LU EL & 37 IR 17
2Z 5 = B 2% & 3% 172,620,000 R # B
& MZAEBE A EDS Wellness 2 iR #
%5 FH 65.58% #E £ 62.71% °

R-ZE—MNELA=1+H » XEBEIRDD
SHRREBESR1.00BTEGBTASES
15,000,000 jt Z EDS Wellness 3 1T
Z AR S H A 15,000,000 B% EDS
Wellness ¥7 2 38 J8 o 3 It /% 55 18 1% -
ZF%TJ”\\\EDS Wellness 2 5 IR # 35 B
62.71% =2 70.18% °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

45. RESERVES 45, f##E
The Company ¥ NN
Share-based
payment
Share Contributed reserve Accumulated
premium surplus  MBRGFA losses Total
B4R ME B R X e R ER @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Note)
(Hizt)
At 1 January 2013 R=Z—=F—H—H 242,048 488,016 9,884 (8,255) 731,693
Placing of new shares BLEFR G 29,845 - - - 29,845
Open offer of new shares AREEHKH 181,146 = = = 181,146
Share issue expenses RDBITHX (2,776) - - - (2,776)
Share-based payment  UBRHERX2
expenses 3 - - 7,081 — 7,081
Release on lapse of B AR AE K B 1R
share options - — (36) 36 -
Loss for the year XEEHE - - - (10,215) (10,215)
At 31 December 2013 R-B—=F
and 1 January 2014 +=A=+-8
R-F-DmF
—A—H 450,263 488,016 16,929 (18,434) 936,774
Placing of new shares  EEHRA 70,070 = = = 70,070
Share issue expenses RMETHX (790) = = = (790)
Share-based payment  LRHBFEAXMZ
expenses X = = 10,389 = 10,389
Release on lapse of BREXMERE
share options - - (7,081) 7,081 —
Loss for the year rEEFR - = = (13,648) (13,648)
At 31 December 2014 R=-B—NF
+=ZHA=+-H 519,543 488,016 20,237 (25,001) 1,002,795
Note: Yoz

mﬁ%:ggzﬁnﬁ:+:a —EENEN
=StHR-Z-——S+-A+-HETZRR
%%k@tﬁﬂz%ﬂﬁ 2% AQTFZEBHER

The contributed surplus account of the Company
represents the difference between the underlying net
assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company

as at the date of the group reorganisation and the
nominal amount of the Company’s share capital issued
as consideration for the acquisition as well as the net
amount transferred from share premium account and
to accumulated losses account pursuant to a special
resolution passed at the special general meeting held on
22 August 2003, 30 April 2008 and 12 December 2011.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the Company shall not declare or pay a dividend, or
make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if there are
reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than its liabilities.

BEREA QR RBHBARREBEAEH 2
EEFE  EAQFAERSWBRERRTREZ
HERBRDGEERERZZMABRRZESF
HEZE5 -

BEAEE-AN-FQEEERIERT) @ iAQ
DEAEEEAEERELTER  BIREMLS
ABBRPFEIRSOKAREHAFH DK

() (EHDIREARRQFEEDSEEEBED
=L -

(i) AQXBDEEZALREFEREEE -

KERBEIRERRAF
R -NFFHR

191



Notes to the Consolidated Financial
e MBERME

Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

46. AMOUNTS DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES
The Company

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

47. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
For the year ended 31 December 2014
The EDS Wellness Group

On 2 July 2014, the Group converted the
principal amount of HK$25,000,000 of the
convertible notes issued by EDS Wellness into
25,000,000 new ordinary shares in EDS Wellness
at the initial conversion price of HK$1.00 per
share pursuant to the irrecoverable undertaking
given by the Group in favour of EDS Wellness
and Kingston Securities Limited on 25 June
2014. EDS Wellness became a 65.58% owned
subsidiary of the Company immediately after the

46. BB N RIRE
A F

BAMBLARRERERERT REREA
BERMEE -

47. (B A6t
BE-F-DNE+-A=+-HLFE
EDS Wellness %/2

A—ZE-—NMELtHA=-RH AEERE
RZZE—@m&ENAB =+ HH LEDS
Wellness RE&RMLBHEEBRATAEZH
AEH 2 OB E &S RASBRRE
F P2 1.008 ;TS EDS Wellness 3 17 Y
N & %8 525,000,000 t 2 Al A RE
18 X, 3 525,000,000 iR EDS Wellness
HEBRKRMD - BEHXEBE - EDS
Wellness A AZAQ E#HE 65.58%
ZHEBAT o

conversion.

HK$°000
Consideration: ReE : FHET

25,000,000 new ordinary shares at HK$3.4905 per 25,000,000 IZ = % 3.4905 8 T 2 Z B
share MRD 87,263
HK$’000
FET
Property, plant and equipment (note 18) W BERSZE B 18) 14,846
Restricted bank deposits ZRRFIRITER 19,663
Trade receivables g 5 WA 5,239
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables RE - EARIEREMEWIR 50,573
Inventories 7E 2,615
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBREEEY 30,658
Trade payables B S EAFIE (399)
Accruals and other payables Bt ERARH M ENATRIE (10,249)
Tax payables PE %18 (614)
Other borrowings HfEmR (62,842)
Promissory notes (note 39) A ERE (B 39) (12,721)
Convertible notes AREEE (14,590)
Obligations under finance leases MERSSE (748)
Deposits from customers BEFZEE (94)
Deferred revenue (note 41) ERE R &= (frat41) (21,869)
Deferred taxation IEFER IE (660)
Non-controlling interests R E R (1,861)
(3,053)
Non-controlling interests (34.42%) FEIE PR RE RS (34.42%) 1,051
(2,002)
Gooduwill (note 21) BB (Mt 21) 89,265
Total consideration BRAE 87,263

192 ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

47. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Continued)

The EDS Wellness Group (Continued)

e M BRME

. XBE6t(#)

BE-Z-IF+-A=+t—HLEFEAE

EDS Wellness 22 (&)

HK$°000
FET

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WEELECBESRATE
Cash consideration paid EARENRE -
Cash and cash equivalents acquired EWEZREREEEEY 30,658
30,658

The goodwill represents the excess of the fair
value of the consideration as at the acquisition
date over the fair value of the net assets.

The EDS Wellness Group contributed
HK$22,084,000 to the Group’s turnover and
a loss of HK$47,043,000 to the Group during
the period from 2 July 2014, being the date of
acquisition, to 31 December 2014.

Had the acquisition been completed at the
beginning of the year 2014, the Group’s
total revenue for the year would have been
HK$129,835,000 and the profit for the year
would have been HK$224,395,000. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purpose only.

Century Capital

On 18 December 2014, EDS Wellness entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with 21
Holdings Limited (“21 Holdings”), for acquiring
the entire shares in and the shareholder’s loan
due by Century Capital at a cash consideration
of HK$1. In addition to Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan
holding 24.92% of the issued share capital of 21
Holdings, Mr. Lei Hong Wai, Mr. Cheung Kwok
Fan and Mr. Wong Tak Chuen, who are directors
of the Company, are directors of 21 Holdings.
The acquisition was completed on 18 December
2014.

AEEANERAREESR A FEELR
BEAFEZEHE

REZE-—NWFELA-HEIWEBE)Z
—E-—NNE+ZA=+—HHM - EDS
Wellness EB D Bl B A EB BB & %58
% &5 822,084,000 JT K 47,043,000
BT ©

HRBER - -—NFEFODER - A
AEBRFER WS RIENS DR
129,835,000 & Jt & 224,395,000 /& 7T °
wEENERSE -

Century Capital

R=-ZZE—-—MWOME+ =5+ /)\H EDS
WellnessE221#E g B R & A([213
B 1) ET B &t WU B Century
Capital 2R B R EAR Z REREFK -
HEeEREA1BT  REEBELEREE
2112 R 24.92% 2 B BITRAIN » KAAQ
AEETHRELLE  REBLERS
ERELREBB2IERZES - NEBS
HRAZZ—NE+=-B+N \HBEMK°
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47. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Continued)

Century Capital (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial'Statements™
& M R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

47. (B BE(E)
BE-Z—WNFE+=-H=1+—HIEFE#E,

Century Capital (&

HK$’000
FET
Consideration: RE :

Cash paid ENRE -
HK$’000
FET
Amount due to the shareholder FE{S IR SRR IE (747)
(747)
Sale loan HEER 747
Goodwill B —
Total consideration HRE =
HK$’000
FET

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WBELE 2RSSR HTEE
Cash consideration paid ENEERE -
Cash and cash equivalents acquired EWEZHREREEEEY -

The goodwill represents the excess of the fair
value of the consideration as at the acquisition
date over the fair value of the net assets.

Century Capital did not generate any revenue nor
make any profit or loss to the Group during the
period from 18 December 2014, being the date of
acquisition, to 31 December 2014.

Had the acquisition been completed at the
beginning of the year 2014, the revenue of the
Group and the loss of the Group for the year
would have no material effect. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purpose only.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

48. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
For the year ended 31 December 2014
Rich Daily

On 30 May 2014, the Group entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement
relating to the disposal of the entire issued share
capital of Rich Daily to Mr. Ng Cheuk Fai, an
independent third party, at a cash consideration
of HK$2,000,000. The disposal was completed on

48. HEKHEB QA
BE-T—NE+-A=+—HLEE
Rich Daily

RZEBE-—NERA=1H  XEE X
—BERGEENE RAEEUES
K {E2,000,000 B TMBILE=ZFRE
# &4 HERich Dallyz 2B 2 TRKR
Ko ZEHECR=-ZE—WEARA+—
H5E R ° Rich Dailyz EERBEFH1E

11 June 2014. Details of the assets and liabilities HFHHWOT :
of Rich Daily are set out as follows:
HK$’000
FET
Intangible assets (note 20) ‘B ERE (ML 20) 1,929
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY 1
Deferred taxation (note 43) IEFEBLIE (AL 43) (231)
Net assets disposed of EHEFERFE 1,699
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HEMB ATz :
Cash consideration received EWEERE 2,000
Net assets disposed of EHEFERE (1,699)
Release of capital reserve BEIERFE 11
312
Net cash inflow arising from disposal: HEEEZHSRAFHE
Cash consideration received 2WEENRE 2,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of B EHERERREEEY (1)
1,999

KERBRABRAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

48. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 48. HEMBE L F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Continued)
Blu Spa Group Limited

On 19 December 2014, EDS Wellness entered
into a sale and purchase agreement to dispose
of the entire issued share capital of Blu Spa
Group Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of EDS Wellness, to Koffman Investment, a
company which is 50% owned by, Mr. Yu Zhen
Hua Johnny (the chairman and a director of EDS
Wellness), at a cash consideration of HK$1.00.
Blu Spa Group Limited holds the entire equity
interest in BSHK, which is the intermediate
holding company of seven subsidiaries (the
“BS Group”). The disposal was completed on

BE-Z—NF+-A=1+—HLFERHE)
Blu Spa Group Limited

m:g—i-k—ﬁwwtavEDs

Wellnessz] 2 — 4 B ;‘é W& BB
£RKE1.008 tE s E R KREEDS

WeIInessiﬁﬁE%ﬂ:ﬁE%%E%ﬁ
50% @ 2 /A F) HE&EBIu Spa Group
Limited (EDS Wellness Z 32 &K B A
7)) 22 B BITIRZA ° Blu Spa Group
Limited HEEE{ e (BB )NWAHE
HQZMEfm(E.EE e E(BEB)IERM
BAR(EEI EEm.J)ZEPFﬁrHX
NP Elﬁiﬁ’éaﬁf‘—i mE+=A
THhEER EHEBTE EEB2E

19 December 2014. Details of the assets and EREEHERINNT :
liabilities of the BS Group are set out as follows:
HK$’°000
FET
Other payables H i FIB (1,359)
Net liabilities disposed of BEHESEFHE (1,359)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMBE ARz :
Cash consideration received BWEERE -
Net liabilities disposed of BEHEEEFHE 1,359
1,359
Net cash inflow arising from disposal: HEELEZRERAFE
Cash consideration received BWEESRE -

A EHERERREEEY -

Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2014
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

48. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2013
East Legend

On 6 June 2013, the Group entered into an
agreement to dispose of the entire issued share
capital of East Legend to an independent third
party at a cash consideration of HK$12,505,000.
The disposal was completed on 6 June 2013.
Details of the assets and liabilities of East

48. HEMB AT (&)

BE-—Z-—=F+-A=+—HLFE
East Legend

MRZBE-—=ZFEXxAANA NEBETLH
# - UBeMKE12,505,0008BLE— A
B E =5 HEEast Legend 22 EE
BITRA - ZEHECR-ZZE—=FX
A/NHXMK ° East LegendzEER A
BEHBEHRINNOT :

Legend are set out as follows:

HK$’000
FET
Property, plant and equipment (note 18) ME - MERRE ML 18) 62
Investment properties (note 19) REWZE (M 19) 12,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 240
Accruals and other payables FEstE AR EMmEARIE 6)
Rental deposits received EWESES (79)
Amount due to an immediate holding company  FE{fH R#2 R A BIFIE (11,126)
Deferred taxation (note 43) IERERLIE (17t 43) (6)
1,086

Assignment of amount due to an immediate EERMNTPBZER A BNRIE
holding company 11,126
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 12,212

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HEMB ARz :

Cash consideration received EWEERE 12,505
Net assets disposed of EHEFEE (12,212)
293

Net cash inflow arising from disposal: HEEEZHESRAFHE
Cash consideration received 2WEERE 12,505
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of B EHERERREEEY (240)
12,265

HMERBIREARAH 197
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48. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

48. HEMB AT (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) BE-—ZE—=F+=-HA=1t—HLEFE#E)
Goway Goway
On 6 June 2013, the Group also entered into an RZEBE—=FxAXE ' X&EBTEL
agreement to dispose of the entire issued share W& LLIRE 18 12,490,000 T [@ —
capital of Goway to an independent third party ZBIE=TTHE Goway 2 EZ 2B 1T
at a cash consideration of HK$12,490,000. The AR - ZIBHECHR -_FE—=F~AX
disposal was completed on 6 June 2013. Details HERK - Goway 2 EER BEFEHY
of the assets and liabilities of Goway are set out T
as follows:

HK$’000

FET

Property, plant and equipment (note 18) ME - MERRE ML 18) 68

Investment properties (note 19) REWZE (M 19) 12,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 223
Accruals and other payables FEstE AR EMmEARIE (15)
Rental deposits received EWESES (76)
Amount due to an immediate holding company  FE{ A1 RE4% iR 1\ B FRIE (11,126)
Deferred taxation (note 43) IERERLIE (17t 43) (5)

1,069

Assignment of amount due to an immediate

EERNhEERLAREA

holding company 11,126
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 12,195
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HEMB ARz :

Cash consideration received EWRERE 12,490
Net assets disposed of EHEFEE (12,195)
295

Net cash inflow arising from disposal: HEELEZRERAFE
Cash consideration received 2WEERE 12,490
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of B EHERERREEEY (223)
12,267
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

49. COMMITMENTS

(a)

Lease commitments
The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of rented premises which
fall due as follows:

49, EiE

(a)

HERE
K& BERAEA
REBEBHR  AEERBASWE

ZIAHESERERAEZRE
RIEEENRZEHRBERAOT

The Group
rEHE

2014 2013

=F-mFE  —F—=F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FBT

Within one year —F R 4,845 1,489
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EEREF

(BREERMEF) 847 496

5,692 1,985

Operating lease payments represent rentals
payable by the Group for its office premises.
Leases are mainly negotiated for an average
term of three years and rentals are fixed for
an average of three years.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the
year was HK$Nil (2013: HK$3,402,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
did not hold any investment properties.
Accordingly, the Group had no future
minimum lease payments contracted with
tenants (2013: HK$Nil).

KEHENTREAEERERLE
MERNZHEE - HBFTERFY
SHEER MEESTYHR=FE

(==}

EO

EEBEDHEA

FARMUERETRARTET
(ZZ2—=% :3,402,00038T) °

RBERKR  AEERESHEM
REW - At - NEB A HEETH
FRINzBERERAS(=ZE—=
FE)

KIERBIREBRAR
—E—NFEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

49, COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Other commitments

At 31 December 2014, the Group had other
commitments of HK$1,959,000,000 relating

to:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

the subscription of the second tranche
of convertible notes to be issued by
China Star in the principal amount
of HK$300,000,000 pursuant to the
conditional subscription agreement
dated 21 January 2011 (as amended
by the supplemental agreements dated
29 June 2012 and 31 December 2013).
The subscription of the second tranche
of convertible notes is conditional
upon the fulfilment of the conditions
precedent set out in the conditional
subscription agreement, including
the availability of sufficient fund by
the Company. On 29 June 2012, the
completion date of subscription was
extended from 30 June 2012 to 31
December 2013. On 31 December 2013,
the completion date of subscription was
further extended from 31 December
2013 to 31 December 2015;

loans commitment in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$9,000,000
pursuant to the building mortgages
and the loan agreements entered into
between the Group and its customers;
and

the consideration of HK$1,650,000,000
for the proposed acquisition of the
entire shareholding interest in the target
company and the assignment of the
shareholder’s loan due by the target
company (the “Proposed Acquisition”)
pursuant to the conditional sale and
purchase agreement entered into
between the Company as purchaser,
the vendor, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Main Board Listed Company,
as vendor and the Main Board Listed
Company as guarantor on 11 December
2014. The consideration shall be settled
as to (i) HK$600,000,000 by cash and
(i) HK$1,050,000,000 by the issue
of a share entitlement note, which
entitles the holder thereof to call for the
allotment and issue of 1,500,000,000
new ordinary shares of Company at a
price of HK$0.70 per share, to the Main
Board Listed Company. The Proposed
Acquisition is conditional upon the
fulfillment and/or waiver (as the case
may be) of the conditions precedent set
out in the conditional sale and purchase
agreement.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

50. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by
the shareholders on 12 December 2011, the
Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the “Option Scheme”) to replace the share
option scheme adopted on 21 January 2002. The
Option Scheme will expire on 11 December 2021.
The purpose of the Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant share options to selected
eligible participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the
Group.

Under the Option Scheme, eligible participants
are full time or part time employees of the Group
(including any directors, whether executive or
non-executive and whether independent or not,
of the Company or any subsidiary); any holder
of any securities issued by the Group; and any
business or joint venture partners, contractors,
agents or representatives, consultants, advisers,
suppliers, producers or licensors, customers,
licensees (including any sub-licensee) or
distributors, landlords or tenants (including any
sub-tenants) of the Group or any person who, in
the sole discretion of the board of directors of
the Company, has contributed or may contribute
to the Group.

The overall limit on the number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all share options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares
in issue from time to time. Subject to the above
overall limit, the total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all share options
to be granted under the Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
Option Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”).
The Company may refresh the Scheme Mandate
Limit subject to approval of the shareholders
in general meeting, provided that the Scheme
Mandate Limit as refreshed must not exceed 10%
of the shares in issue as at the date of approval
of the refreshed limit.

50. URBEAXN 2R H

RERRR-"ZF-——F+-A+-HE
BreEBRRRE  ARARMA-IAHE
BRAETE(BRETE D UBMAR =
EE_F At -HEMZBREST
g BREMABAN _-_ZE_—-F1+=A
tT—HER BREFEEESAQT
TAEECRERSEAERHBRE
EARSHAKE 2 ERMEEEMZ
RESIREN -

REBRETE  SERBEE[LE
B 2B RBES (BEARQXATEM
MBABZEMNES  FTWATRFH
T RAWRERY) ) NEBR#T
FAEZ2EMEEA RAKE 2/
AEBREEBH - AEH - ABHR
xFMBFAA HEB REBWR
REA BEF ERRA(BREMNER
ERBEADIBTH ZETREF(BE
EMSEBEF)  RRRAESS2ED
BRAECERTREHYAKEEFHER 2
EMAL

RATERBEBERESSARADAEME
B RETEREMERITEZABERE
REZATHRITZROBBEEELR
TEBBAKCEITRGDZ30% - £ £
MBERBART  RTERBEBR
RERT 8 R AN 0 BRI H Ab BB R AE ST 858
%?’:H:'.ZF)?ﬁE%H%E?&ﬂ%%ﬁZHQﬁ
ﬁﬁ%ﬂ( ST GEBBRETZELE
EREBTRHO210% ([ & RER
B ERRASLERRMERZ - K
NAAEHERERE  EEHRZ
AEIRERBEAGERENRBELE
EAEBTRD210% -

E*%héﬁﬁﬂj
— PO F F 3R
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50. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Unless approved by the shareholders, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the shares options granted to each
eligible participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of grant must
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue. Where
any grant of share options to a substantial
shareholder of the Company or an independent
non-executive director or their respective
associates and if such grant would result in the
total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted and
to be granted (including share options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant to
such person (i) representing in aggregate over
0.1% of the shares in issue and (ii) having an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares at the date of each grant, in excess
of HK$5,000,000, then the proposed grant must
be approved by the shareholders at a general
meeting, with voting to be taken by way of a poll.

A non-refundable nominal consideration of
HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee upon
acceptance of the grant of share options. Share
options may be exercised at any time during the
period to be determined and identified by the
board of directors, but in any event no later than
ten years from the date of grant but subject to
the early termination of the Option Scheme.

The exercise price is determined by the board of
directors of the Company, provided that it shall
be not less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing prices of the shares
for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Company’s shares.

At 31 December 2014, the Company has not
adopted any share option scheme other than the
Option Scheme.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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50. URBFEAXN 2% (&)

BRIEERRAE  RRABERERHER(E
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50. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

50. URBFEAXN 2% (&)

(Continued)
Details of specific categories of share options are BEERBREZFBEOT :
as follows:
Share
option type Date of grant Exercise period Exercise price
BREEN REBH THEH TEE
2004 13 December 2004 13 December 2004 to 12 December 2014 HK$6,392.849*
“EENF+ZA+=H ZEEWNF+ZA+=HE 6,392.849 /B T*
—E-MNE+=A+=H
2007A 22 March 2007 22 March 2007 to 21 March 2017 HK$1,549.705*
“EELF=AZ+=ZH ZEELF=ZAZ+=HE 1,549.705 #ET*
—E—tHF=A=+—H
2007B 31 May 2007 31 May 2007 to 30 May 2017 HK$2,306.876*
“EELFRA=+T—H ZEELFRA=+—HE 2,306.876 B&T*
—E2-—t§¥HA=+H
2012 4 June 2012 4 June 2012 to 3 June 2013 HK$0.339*
—E—_—FXAMAH —E-—_FXAWNHEZE 0.339 & T*
—E-=%XA=H
2013 24 May 2013 24 May 2013 to 23 May 2014 HK$1.274
“E-=ZFHA=-tWME —E-=FHA=-TWMBZE 1.274 87T
—E-NERA=+=H
2014A 8 January 2014 8 January 2014 to 7 January 2015 HK$0.84
—Z-mE-ANH —E-NFE-ANHE-Z-HF—AtH 0.84387T
2014B 2 September 2014 2 September 2014 to 1 September 2015 HK$0.69
—E-MFEHAAZH —E-NFhRAZRE-Z—AFNAA—H 0.69 & 7T

*.

The exercise prices are adjusted for the open offer

as completed on 26 April 2013.

L TREEER-FE—=FHA=-F+NHZTHK

ZRFREFH R
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50. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

The fair values of the share options granted on
2 September 2014, 8 January 2014 and 24 May
2013 were measured, using a binomial option
pricing model, by Grant Sherman. The following
table lists the inputs to the model used:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

50. URBFEAXN 2% (&)

R-—F-—NEAA=A  —F—NF—
ANBR-E—=SRA-1+WEEH
ZBREZAFELBEPERA AR
HEETEREGTE  TRITERFA
WARE

Share option type

BRESRR

2014B 2014A 2013
Share option life 1 year 1 year 1 year
B IR 1 15 15 15
Grant date share price HK$0.69 HK$0.84 HK$1.20
REBHRE 0.697& T 0.847& 7T 1.208 T
Exercise price HK$0.690 HK$0.84 HK$1.274
1TEE 0.690 & 7T 0.848 7T 1.2748 7T
Expected volatility (%) 43.20% 60.74% 76.71%
TEERRIE (%)
Expected lives of share options 0.5 year 0.5 year 0.5 year
BIRE AR FH 0.5 0.5 0.5%
Dividend yield (%) 0% 0% 0%
REWEHEER (%)
Risk-free interest rate 0.11% 0.21% 0.14%

R A=
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—HAFE+ZA=F+—HAIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ ==

50. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

The fair value of the share options granted
during the year ended 31 December 2014 was
HK$10,398,000 (2013: HK$7,081,000) which
had been expensed as share-based payment

expenses during the year.

The following table discloses movements of the
Company’s share options held by directors of the
Company, employees and consultants during the

BE-_Z-—NE+-A=+—HILEE
AEFEH 2 BRE A F{ES10,398,000
BRT(ZE—=% :7,081,0008T) ' 2

50. URBFEAXN 2% (&)

RERFMEURD A F2FX -

TERBEEALNAES BEEREERSTF

RFFARBBREZEE :

year:
Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding at Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding at
Share 1 January during during during 31 December
option type 2014 the year the year the year 2014
RZZE-WF R-Z2-m&
-A-H +ZA=+-H
BRESRR e R AT RERRL RERTHE RERER B RATE
2004 8,366 - - (8,366) -
2007A 4,588 - - - 4,588
2007B 24,013 - - - 24,013
2013 23,800,000 - - (23,800,000) -
2014A - 26,360,000 - - 26,360,000
2014B - 46,220,000 - - 46,220,000
23,836,967 72,580,000 - (23,808,366) 72,608,601
Exercisable at the end of the year

REATFTE 72,608,601
Weighted average exercise price HK$6.14 HK$0.74 - HK$3.52 HK$1.61
Mg EE 61487 074387 - 35287 1.61%7T
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50. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the
Company’s share options held by directors of
the Company, employees and consultants during
prior year:

50.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial'Statements
iR & M5 &R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

UROBEAX N 2R S (@)

TREREBALNAEE EEREBE
FRBAAFBREZZE

Number of share options
EREHAE

Qutstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Adjusted for Qutstanding
at 1 January during during during open offer  at 31 December
Share option type 2013 the year the year the year (Note) 2013
RZ%-zF
R-B-zf ROREE t2A
-A-H it - =t-8
ERERR BRI RERRH RERTE RERZN (i) BRI
2004 8,219 - - - 147 8,366
2007A 4,507 - - - 81 4,588
2007B 23,589 - - - 424 24,013
2012 380,000 - - (386,840) 6,840 -
2013 - 23,800,000 - - - 23,800,000
416,315 23,800,000 - (386,840) 7492 23,836,967

Exercisable at the end of the year
RELTFE 23,836,967
Weighted average exercise price HK$278.94 HK$1.27 - HK$0.34 - HK$6.14
IETSETER 218947 12187 - 034 %7 - 6147

Note: The numbers of share options are adjusted for the
open offer as completed on 26 April 2013.

No share options granted under the Option
Scheme were exercised during the year.

At 31 December 2014, the Company had
72,608,601 share options outstanding (2013:
23,836,967), representing 13.26% (2013: 5.22%)
of the issued share capital of the Company at
that date.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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it BREBEREN-Z2-—=FHA=+
A2 NRBEFHAE -

TR BEREBRESIAREZEBR
RERETME -

R=ZZF-—OF+=-A=1+—H &AQF
B72,608,601 M HAKRTHEZEREZ
T — =4 :23,836,96710) » th AR D F
EHERITRAEA13.26% (ZFBE—=5F:
5.22%) °
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has
set up a defined contribution retirement scheme,
the MPF Scheme for all the eligible employees of
the Group. The Group did not provide retirement
benefits for its employees prior to set up of the
MPF Scheme.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are
required to contribute 5% of their monthly
salaries up to a maximum of HK$1,500 per
employee and they can choose to make
additional contributions. The employer’s monthly
contributions are calculated at 5% of each
employee’s monthly salaries up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 (the “Mandatory Contribution”). The
employees are entitled to 100% of the Mandatory
Contribution upon their retirement at the age of
65 years old, death or total incapacity.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group entered into
the following material related party transactions
during the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013:

(a) Loan from/(to) related parties

51.

52.

RIKBREE

—EZTFE+_A-BE ARESR
FEEEREERY —HAEHICGRIK
8 — BmESEE c RRYBESEE
Bl ASEIESRESRMEMARKE
A e

RiEEESFE EEHEAREAFH 2
5% (LLBBEEE&Z1,500/8 TAR)/E
B WrREEHBEBMR - EE
BAZHREEZEERHF 25% (LR
1,500 8B T BR)FTE(RHE /TR
BETRGSREN  HittfTR2ARET
1EBE DB Z BUERGRFIEHEX o

EXBBALRE

BRAGREUWBBRREMBY AKEE
M RBE-ZFE-—NFER-_FT—=
TZA=FT—BLEFE AKEFTALT
IERBEBEALRS :

(a) MEEALTWEL (EH)ER

2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Amount due from an associate FEUR B & X Bl TR IE
(note 30) (Kt 30) 3,528 3,528
Interest bearing other borrowing RESERKRENTE
from Koffman Investment (note 38 H &R (M 38 K
and Note) Krat) (2,450) —
Note: Hfat -

During the year, interest on other borrowings of
HK$15,000 was paid to Koffman Investment, which
is 50% owned by Mr. Yu Zhen Hua, Johnny (the
chairman and a director of EDS Wellness).

FR BasERRKEHF15000%E
THMERZFNE  SERKREBHEDS
WellnessEERESTHELELERE A
50% BRAE ©

KIERBIREBRAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

52. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Compensation for key management
personnel

(c)

Emoluments for key management personnel,
including amount paid to the directors of
the Company and certain of the highest paid
employees, as disclosed in notes 12 and 13
to the consolidated financial statements, are
as follows:

 EXBBMALRS (&)

(b) TEEEAEHM

TEEBEAENE(BEFEESYH
HRRMFE12R AT E AT FA
AAESRETHREHEEZS
B)MT :

For the year ended
31 December

BE+=-A=+—BLHFE

2014 2013

—E-mF —E-=F

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Director fees EEWE 480 480

Salaries and other allowances FHeRkHEMER 24,735 14,276
Contributions to retirement benefits BRINERIFTE

scheme 89 75

Share-based payment expenses R BT 2B 2,378 2,178

27,682 17,009

Other transactions

(i)

On 19 December 2014, the Group
sold the entire issued share capital of
Blu Spa Group Limited, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company,
to Koffman Investment at a nominal
cash consideration of HK$1.00. Blu
Spa Group Limited holds the entire
equity interest in BSHK, which is the
intermediate holding company of the
BS Group. BSHK is in the process of
being wound up and joint liquidators
have been appointed for the winding up
of BSHK.

During the year, EDS Distribution
Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, paid rental of
HK$240,000 to Koffman, which is
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Yu Zhen Hua, Johnny (the chairman
and a director of EDS Wellness).

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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(c) HttR5

() R=ZTE—HOmFE+=—A+hAB-
AEECECHEARQTFFZENB
‘AT Blu Spa Group Limited
ZEHEBTRAUZRENR
ENRE1.00ETBHEEHET
=B =ER&KE - Blu Spa Group
Limited#EE E B it (B
BIZ22ERAER  HX 5
AEER s TEENTDPREER
DA BB e L (HEB)LEE
TERER  YEZAHEFE
BAETEER « Z(FEB)W

==
/ﬁﬂg °

iy AR XQFF2EHBELT
EDS Distribution Limited &
B EDS Wellness TEF#%E
ETHFELAEZENRELES
S ERXZ{TH%E 240,000 %
7'E o
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53. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 53. EXERE
Capital risk management EXEREE
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital AEEEEBEEACZTEHEZEAREARE
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability BiFEgE e hHEIEEBREER B
to continue as a going concern and maintain TRHEEBERREARREE -

healthy ratios in order to support its business
and enhance shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and AEEEEHERAEBARBELSERS R
makes adjustments to it, in light of changes BIIELHAE - REFIRABELRSE
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust B AEEEAEORRRKEZRE
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the MBRRBEZEER BITHBRIAEERE
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital BEEK R NER-ZT—=%F>
to shareholders, issue new shares or raise and AEBEAEEBRE BHEXBBEFH#
repay debts. The Group’s capital management BAE o

objectives, policies or processes were unchanged
during the years of 2014 and 2013.

The Company monitors capital using gearing AATHBEEEBLR(AERER
ratio, which is the Group’s total borrowings over BBERUARDNBEBABLER)ERE
equity attributable to owners of the Company. KeR-ZZB—NEFR-_Z—=5+=-A4
The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2014 and =St+—HZEEERLRAOT :

2013 were as follows:

2014 2013
—E-NmE —
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Total borrowings (Note a) ERARRE(MEE a) 10,374 —
Less: cash and cash equivalents B ERERREEEY
(Note b) (#1EE b) (384,778) (662,153)
(374,404) (662,153)
Equity attributable to owners RAREE AEEER
of the Company 2,144,651 1,825,372
Gearing ratio EEER/RER 0.48% N/A i A
Notes: BtEt -
(@) Total borrowings including other borrowings, (a) BREFEEBEHMER  RAZBERBE
promissory notes and obligations under finance HESFE -
leases.
(b) Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances (b) HRERBRLEEYEEREHRZBITHE
and cash on hand at the end of the reporting period. BRFHEES -

KEEHRERRAT
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54. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

54, $RTH

Categories of financial instruments ST EER
2014 2013
—EF-mE —F-=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables (including cash ERREWRE(EFEER
and cash equivalents) REZEW) 1,381,394 1,675,388
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHEERERE 68,887 172
Financial assets at fair value through AR EIABHE 2
profit or loss TREE
— Listed equity securities — EHRARES 598,705 49,046
— Conversion options embedded in — ERATRREEAESZ
convertible notes receivables HpRERE - 77,572
Financial liabilities TRaE
Amortised cost 18 85 AN 41,084 10,056

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.
These risks include credit risk, liquidity risk and
price risk.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties and the
financial guarantees issued by the Group
arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2014

MBEBEREBEERBE

AEF RERREETIEINER
MmEZ T A FERE » DRBEREE A
EEVBRBEZBETNEZE - 25R
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54. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
executive directors of the Company are
responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt and
debt investment at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk rests
with the board of directors of the Company,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework to meet the Group’s
short, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements. The
Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate level of cash and cash equivalents,
by continuously monitoring forecast and
actual cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following tables detail the Group’s
and the Company’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of
the financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group and the Company
can be required to pay. The tables include
both interest and principal cash flows.

e M BRME

—HAFE+ZA=F+—HAIFE

54, SRAT B (4#)

MHRERRERERRBE(E)

(a)

(b)

=EmE (&)
REERKEERR  NATAT
E=EEEEFERE  FEFM

REMEBRF  BAECKIURE
TEWEBBER - i AEE
REJ/EBRBH BRI E S EH
REBREZTWEEE  BR

EHAT WO S BT RE D BIERE
BefltMs  ARAEFERBE

SEZEFERBEBAHRE -

MEBELERE

RHESRMHRRETHAR A
ESSRE -EETBCRIUEEZ
REBECRKMEREE  FeLE
BEf - FHRRIMERREBE
SEERE FEEEBEREN

RERHREEEYKE  FHEER
EARERERESRE  URTHES

MEEREB2HHALE  EER
BHESREMR o

TRAVNAEERAQATHIENTE
SREBEZHRTENIHER - &
KRBEAEERAQATASTRNR
EHEzERMEBEARNBEREESRE
MR - ZREEINEREAERS

A -—gi—1&
IE °

E*%héﬁﬁﬂj
— PO F F 3R
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54. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

—HAFE+-A=+—HILFE

54. €M T A (#)

BEEREEEERBEKE)

(b) TEEZEME(E)

Weighted
average Total un- Total
effective  Less than 1t03 3 months 1t05 Over discounted carrying
rate 1 month months  to 1 year years 5years cash flows amount
g AHR
ERNE  1EAMA  1Z3f8F SfAAZE1E 125  SENL HRERE  BKELE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
The Group 5B FEr FET T FEr FET FET FAT
2014 ~3-QF
Trade payables ~ EZEMHE - 7,347 5,765 53 - - 13,165 13,165
Accruals and other [ ERR
payables REMFE - 17,545 - - - - 17,545 17,545
Other borrowings ~ Eftif5% 5% 1,410 2 2,500 - - 3,930 3,850
Promissory notes AR ZE 12% - - 6,051 - - 6,051 6,069
Obligations under ~ BEHESFE
finance leases 3% 56 113 340 1 - 520 455
26,358 5,898 8,044 11 - 41,211 41,084
2013 ZE-E
Accruals and other  FEGFERR
payables HAbEHE - 10,056 - - - - 10,056 10,056
Weighted
average Total un- Total
effective  Less than 1103 3 months 1t05 Over discounted carrying
rate 1 month months  to 1 year years 5years cash flows amount
ETH AER
EBRE  1EAMR  1Z3f8A SEAZE1E 1856  SENEL HRERE BEAE
HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
The Company O] FEn FEr FEr FEn FEr FEr FAT
2014 Z2-mF
Accruals JEsTE - 2,565 - - - - 2,565 2,565
Amountdueto  ERHEAFZE
subsidiaries - 299,846 - - - - 299,846 299,846
302,411 - - - - 302,411 302,411
2013 2z
Accruals EitER - 3,011 - - - - 3,011 3,011
Amount due to o) NG
subsidiaries - 90,649 - - - - 90,649 90,649
93,660 - - - - 93,660 93,660
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54. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(c) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
mainly through its investment in listed
equity securities. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk and return
profiles.

(i) Price risk on listed securities under
listed equity securities and available-
for-sale investments

The sensitivity analyses below have
been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting period. For sensitivity
analysis purpose, the sensitivity rate
remains as 15% in the current year as
a result of the volatile financial market.

If equity prices had been 15% higher/
lower (2013: 15%):

— Post-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2014 would increase/
decrease by HK$89,806,000 (2013:
HK$7,357,000). This is mainly due
to the changes in fair value of
listed equity securities and listed
derivatives; and

— other comprehensive income
would increase/decrease by
HK$10,307,000 (2013: HK$Nil)
as a result of the revaluation of
available-for-sale investments.

54. €T A (#
BEEREEEERBEKE)

(c) EERE

AEBEFTZERHETRARSZRE
mAZRERR BEEBEBER
TREBREHNREASEEZRE
B o

() LHRAEZFFRAALERE
T2 L5 E 5 mE

AT 8RR E 5 IR 15 3R 5 57
RKeREREBMOBEE - B8
BRESNNS  REmMmEE
2 RAEENSRELLRER
A15% o

HRELH TEK15% (==
— =% 115%) :

- HE-Z—WNE+=A
=Et+t—-BLEFEEZRBR
& m AL A
89,806,0008 (= =
— = : 7,357,000 %8
Jt) 0 EEBR EHRAE
SR EMUTEIEZR
TFEEBRHE ; &

- RHEUEHERBESE{HG
Ht2mUWAZEmN,
W 410,307,000 T
(ZB—=F :TBx) -

KIERBIREBRAR
—E—NFEFR
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54. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(c) Price risk (Continued)

(i) Price risk on conversion option

embedded in convertible notes
receivables

The Group is required to estimate the
fair value of the conversion options
embedded in the convertible notes
receivables at the end of the reporting
period with changes in fair value to
be recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as long as
the convertible notes receivables are
outstanding. The fair value adjustment
will be affected either positively or
negatively, amongst others, by the
changes in share price and its volatility
of the convertible notes issuers.

The Group had no convertible notes
receivables at 31 December 2014.

The sensitivity analyses below have
been determined based on the
exposure to the change of share price
and its volatility of the convertible notes
issuers at the reporting date.

If the share prices of those convertible
notes issuers had been 15% higher/
lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December
2013 would increase/decrease by
HK$17,592,000/HK$16,465,000, as
a result of changes in fair value of
conversion options embedded in the
convertible notes receivables.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2014

54.

TR AHE
MERREEEERBR(E)

(c) 1E#mEEE)

(i) FEWRTERBREEANEZZIEEZE

EEZERER

ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁ@ﬁ%T#hm
B AXEEAREREHR
CREED R ES fWAZ%
BEZECAVE AVEE
PRFEEBRERER - AFE

A ﬁ(ﬁﬂp’@%ﬂmxm
BRTAZRERELRIEEE
ZIEHREMEE -

R-Z—NOFE+=—A=+—
B - 7 5% [ 30 R PR U A 3 iR 3R
R

T 8REDNIIRBERERE
ASMHTRREERITAZR
E&E&FWEZH@MDF

}:F_°

A RREZEEITAZRKRE
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54. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(c) Price risk (Continued)

(i) Price risk on conversion option
embedded in convertible notes
receivables (Continued)

If the volatility of share prices of
those convertible notes issuers had
been 15% higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2013 would
increase/decrease by HK$4,575,000/
HK$4,964,000, as a result of changes
in fair value of conversion options
embedded in the convertible notes
receivables.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity
analyses are unrepresentative of the
inherent market risk as the pricing
model used in the fair value valuation
of the conversion options embedded in
the convertible notes receivables and
involves multiple variables and certain
variables are interdependent.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments
that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

Some of the Group’s financial instruments
are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of
these financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the level
of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair
value measurements are categorised (levels 1 to
3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements is observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active market for identical assets or
liabilities;

54, SRAT B (4#)
MERREEEERBR(E)

(c) 1E#mEEE)

(i) FEWRTERBREEANEZZIEEZE
EREZEKREE(E)

MR EERTAZRER
842 o0 R /N 15% i Fr B &
@ﬁaﬁhxﬁ’lEWT#

ZEERECRIRBEREZD
VE%E AEBRBE-Z
—=#+_A=1+—HILEE
Z BB ER G
4,575,000 7t 4,964,000
BT ©

EHEERA HARYEERTH®
BREERAES2LBREEZA
FEGESMRA 2 EEER
S hZEa#REZAE T A&
EEZS2EHEFE  HBEBED
MARREURKEETSRAR -

EMITAZAFE

BAEHEEUAFEI B2 FEEE
BIAZAFME

AEBHI,ERM T ENRSHRERRIR
AFEFHE TREHEBUNMNEES
MEERSRAEBBZATFE(REERK
Az EESRMREASE) - R IR
AFEFECHASBENTEEREE
BAFEFESEATENAFESR
(B1EEIR)2ER -

e FIRLAFVEMERMEBEERE
BRERM S 2 MECRERE)
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54. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 54, TR (&

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued) SRMIAZAFEGE)

Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments BEEMEENL FHEGEZAEFE

that are measured at fair value on a recurring BT EZNFEGE

basis (Continued)

e Level 2 fair value measurements are those s ZFO2RNLFTEFEREEIEEN
derived from inputs other than quoted prices AEHESBEZEEENEG ASEBETE
included within Level 1 that are observable (B1RFERERND) &
for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

e Level 3 fair value measurements are those e ZEIRMATEFERRALFER
derived from valuation techniques that AEEMBEBEcEEREERA
include inputs for the asset or liability that B (TUBREAHE) 2HER
are not based on observable market data MIETE -

(unobservable inputs).
Relationship of
Fair value at Fair value at Valuation Significant unobservable
31 December 31 December  Fair value techniques unobservable inputs
2014 2013 hierarchy and key inputs input to fair value
R-8-BE  HNZR-ZF
t2B=t-B  tZR=t1-H {EERIR TUBEE \HER
TR JATE AVESE  FERARE EXTURRAANE  NTEZEA
HK$'000 HK$'000
Financial assets tHEE FAr 741
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESRER
— Listed equity securities - LREES 68,745 - Levelt Quoted bid prices in ~ N/A NIA
215 actvemarkets ~ TER TER
WERTRRE
ENE
Financial assets at fairvalue ~ RATEFABRZEREE
through profit or loss
— Listed equity securities - LilniEs 598,705 49,046 Level Quoted bid pricesin ~ N/A NA
215 actvemarkets  TEFR TER
WERTRRE
PAYN
— Conversion options - RUTRRZEAZL - 71572 Level 3 Binominal option ~ The underlying share  The fair value measurement
embedded in convertible HhREE %38 pricing model prices of the Is positively correlated
notes receivables TEAHMEEEES converible notes to the share prices of
issuers and their the convertible notes
volatilty based on issuers and their
valuation model. volatity.
(Notesa, b, candd) AFEFERTERZER
RERERR TAREE  AZREREREAL
¥TACEERER  EEEE-
R
(HEah ek d)

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2014



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

54. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments
that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

If the share prices of those convertible notes issuers
had been 15% higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2013 would increase/
decrease by HK$17,592,000/HK$16,465,000, as a
result of changes in fair value of conversion options
embedded in the convertible notes receivables.

If the volatility of share prices of those convertible
notes issuers had been 15% higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2013 would increase/decrease by HK$4,575,000/
HK$4,964,000, as a result of changes in fair value
of conversion options embedded in the convertible
notes receivables.

Based on the observable period of the Company
from October 2012 to December 2013, the price of
China Star ranges from HK$0.076 to HK$0.445 with
average at HK$0.192, whereas the conversion price
remains HK$0.11 per shares. The conversion price
is comparatively small to the recent historical high
price yet no share is converted at that time. Pursuant
to the historical exercise behavior of the holders,
the basis of adjustment of capped stock price is
justified.

The unobservable inputs of the conversion options
embedded in convertible notes receivables of
Koffman can be determined through the valuation of
equity interest in the business enterprise of Koffman,
derived through the application of the market
approach based on six comparable companies listed
on the Stock Exchange, as at 31 December 2013
after marketability discount that reflects a scenario
preparing for initial public offerings.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3 in the current
and prior years.

54. €T A (#

TMTRAZAFEE

BEEMBEELLAFHEFNEBZAEEE
BT AzAFEGE

(c)
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ERARFABE-_ZE——F+AE-_FT—=
FH+_AZuBRE > FEEZRENT
0.07678 Jt £0.44558 7t » ¥91E £0.192
B MERERNESERERRKM0.11%E
T o BREENBES SEMAYERE  #
WEAERRIEKMG - REFEABEZ
TESE ARRELR2EEBSE -

BERZEUTRRERNE 2 REE
HE AW A RIS LT B S
tH2AMALAAREE BATE
EHEEREBLRR=F—=F+=57
=+ — A2 RBETHELERRRER
ER MR E 2B TR -

&z E

BMEER > TEEAIELEIR -

KIERBIREBRAR
—E—NFEFR

217



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z_-—F—F+ _-F=+—HILFEZ

54. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 54, €T R (&)
Fair value of financial instruments (Continued) EMIAEZAFEE)
Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments BEEMEENL FHEGEZAEFE
that are not measured at fair value on a BMTHZFEGE

recurring basis (Continued)

Except as detailed in the following table, BRTRFLREN  RRABESRARE
the directors of the Company consider that BB RABIAZ2EREERERE
the carrying amounts of financial assets and BZREEEE QA FEEE °

liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E2-=F
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value

REE AVE AREE AR
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

Financial assets TREE FET FET FET FET
Available-for-sale financial assets At HELREE
— Unlisted debt security — kEHEERS 172 280 172 250

Details of the Group’s financial instruments about ﬁ@gmig—lﬂiﬁfg—ii‘f;ﬁ
the fair value hierarchy at 31 December 2014 and =t-B AEEERIAQAFEZS
2013 are as follows: MEEBWT -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

F18 F28 234 h)

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
g-mF -%-Zf Z-Z-mF Z-E-ZE C-$-ME C-F-F C-F-NEF C-EF-=F
HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

Financial assets SREE FEr FEr FEn FEr FEL FEr FEr FET
Available-for-sale financial ~ WHHESRER
assets
— Listed equity securties ~ — EmRAES 68,715 - - - - - 68,715 -
Financial assets at fair value  RATE: AB#%
through profit o loss LERHERE
— Listed equity securities ~ — EmRAES 598,705 49,046 - - - - 598,705 49,046
— Convertible options - BRARES
embedded in BRazi
convertible notes BREE
receivables - - - - - 77,572 - 11,572

667,420 49,046 - = - 71,672 667,420 126,618

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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54. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes

The Company has a designated team to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the conversion
options embedded in convertible notes
receivables, the Group uses market-observable
data to the extent it is available. The Group
engages Grant Sherman to perform the
valuation of the conversion options embedded
in convertible notes receivables at the end of
each reporting period. The designated team
works closely with Grant Sherman to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
to the valuation model. Where there is material
change in the fair value of the conversion options
embedded in convertible notes receivables, the
cause of the fluctuations will be reported to the
management of the Group.

Information about the valuation techniques and
inputs used in determining the fair value of
assets are disclosed above.

54. €M T A (#)
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54. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 54,
Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
of financial assets:

TRITAHE)
TMTRZAFEE)
RAFETEBRIGERESF (&)

THEEAFEFELEIRYERUT :

2014 2013
—E-mF —=—=
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Convertible options embedded in W TaREEREZ
convertible notes receivables: HMBRIER (Wi 32)
(note 32)
At 1 January mw—H—H 77,572 74,256
Subscription of convertible notes RIBREWATREEE
receivables
— conversion option components — RBRRERITH 35,449 =
Gain arising on change in fair value of HiRZIZBEEIH 2
conversion option components NP EEHEE WS - 29,836
Conversion of convertible notes HBEWARREE
receivables (113,021) (26,520)
At 31 December Rt=—RA=+—H — 77,572
Total gain and loss for the year R+=-R=t+—HBF&EsHE
included in profit or loss for BETAEBRRZAEE
financial assets held at 31 Wik R BSR4
December - 29,836
Note: it

The gain arising from the remeasurement of the conversion
options embedded in convertible notes receivables is
presented in “other gains and losses” in profit or loss.
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55. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

On 15 April 2010, a claim brought by China
Finance & Assets Management Limited
(“China Finance”) in the High Court
Action No. 526 of 2010 against Rexdale
for failing to pay a service fee in the sum
of HK$25,000,000 to China Finance. No
provision for the claim brought by China
Finance was made in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2014 as Lafe
Corporation Limited has undertaken to
indemnify and keep indemnified the Group
against any and all losses, claims, damages,
penalties, actions, demands, proceedings,
judgment and costs arising from or in
connection with the claim.

On 20 March 2014, the Company announced
that it came to its attention that a writ (the
“Writ 1”) of summons in High Court Action
No.9 of 2014 was issued by The Grande
Holdings Limited (in liquidation), Roderick
John Sutton (as joint and several provisional
liquidator of The Grande Holdings Limited),
Fok Hei Yu (as joint and several provisional
liquidator of The Grande Holdings Limited)
and 65 other companies listed as plaintiffs
against 25 defendants inclusive of One
Synergy, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. One Synergy has, as at the date
of this annual report, not been served with
the Writ 1.

The action alleges, inter alia, that One
Synergy is liable to the plaintiffs as a
constructive trustee and/or by way of
equitable compensation and/or an accounts
of profits and/or restitution and/or damages
as a knowing recipient and/or by reason
of the knowing or dishonest assistance in
the breaches of trust and/or breaches of
fiduciary duties by various of the defendants
and/or by reason of dealings between One
Synergy and the plaintiffs otherwise being
voidable (and avoided), void, unlawful or
illegal, in respect of its receipt of the shares
in The Grande Properties Ltd (now known as
Rexdale).

(a)

e M BRME

—HAFE+ZA=F+—HAIFE

55. RARBE

RZE—-—ZFWXA+HH » China
Finance & Assets Management
Limited (China Financel) #
IE.|—_r;£|ZJ'D_§ =T F F 52658 5F
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@ Rexdalei® tH B & o B A Lafe
Corporation Limited B &z {E L
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China FinanceiR H 2B ERAE
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— M F FEF A EPF']251‘:’.?)3Z¢
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Z kA E BH B 8 $F )Oone
Synergy/,\ # W ELThe Grande
Properties Ltd (38 # A& Rexdale)
2B EREEBEZETEAR
SEERE T EHER,SIEAL
BWZFAZEENR, HEER
REEBER REELABETRF
HEMPHZEHETAERGEAR
SHERSEERER HEOne
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o EAESESL I'I':'JE%}\EJ:%
ZEE-
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55. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

Riche (BVI), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, acquired the entire issued share
capital of Adelio Holdings Limited, which is
the holding company of One Synergy, from
Vartan Holdings Limited, an independent
third party, pursuant to a sale and purchase
agreement dated 25 May 2011. One Synergy
acquired the entire issued share capital
of Rexdale from Lafe Corporation Limited,
being one of the defendants, pursuant to
a sale and purchase agreement dated 31
December 2010 (the “Agreement”). The
entire issued share capital of Rexdale was
sold by The Grande (Nominees) Ltd., being
one of the plaintiffs, and The Grand Limited
to Lafe Corporation Limited on or about 29
June 2007. The principal assets of Rexdale
were the whole of the 1st floor and the flat
roof, the whole of 6th to 12th floors, roof,
external walls, two lavatories, three lorry
parking spaces and eight private car parking
spaces on the ground floor of an industrial
building located in Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong with a total gross floor of
approximately 139,412 square feet exclusive
of lavatories, lorry and private car parking
spaces, flat roof and roof (collectively, the
“Kwun Tong Properties”). The Kwun Tong
Properties was sold by Rexdale to Grand
Reward Limited, an independent third party,
in July 2013.

One Synergy has sought counsel opinion on
the Writ 1 and has been advised to defend
the plaintiffs’ claim in the said action.
Counsel has advised that, based upon
available evidence, there is nothing unusual
in the Agreement and One Synergy would
not have any express or constructive notice
of the plaintiffs’ alleged irregularities and/
or fraudulent acts of the former directors
and/or management officers of the plaintiffs
and One Synergy should not be held liable
to any part of the plaintiffs’ claim and has
good and valid defence thereto.
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55. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(c)

On 28 April 2014, EDS Wellness received
a writ of summons (the “Writ 2”) from the
People’s Court of Huadu District, Guangzhou
City, Guangdong Province of the People’s
Republic of China (the “Huadu People’s
Court”).

Pursuant to the two writs of civil
proceedings (the “Writs of Civil
Proceedings”) enclosed with the Writ 2,
the plaintiff EMT B2 EEERBEER D
Al (Guangzhou Yiying Property Management
Services Co. Ltd.) (“Yiying”), a property
management company, alleges that,
among others, () EMTmHEEEXER AT
(Guangzhou Yaji Properties Co. Ltd.) (“Yaji”)
has defaulted in payment of the management
fees and utilities and miscellaneous fees
in the aggregate amount of RMB2,868,000
(equivalent to HK$3,622,000) in respect
of certain commercial properties owned
by Yaji in Huadu District, Guangzhou City
(the “Properties”) for the period from
February 2012 to January 2014; and (ii)
after the Properties had been sold and
transferred to Yaji by EMmiE&HEXEE it
E B B R 2D A (Guangzhou Huadu Jiaye
Property Development Co. Ltd.) (“Jiaye”),
Yaji continued to default in payment of
the management fees and as Yaji did not
have enough capacity for payment, upon
discussion between the parties, Yaji, EDS
Wellness, Yiying and Jiaye entered into
a letter of confirmation (the “Letter of
Confirmation”) on 26 November 2010
providing that the obligations which should
be performed by Yaji in relation to the
management of the Properties would be
assumed and performed by EDS Wellness.
As such, EDS Wellness shall be jointly
liable for the payment of the outstanding
management fees and utilities and
miscellaneous fees.

e M BRME
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55. ARBBE &

(c)
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55. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(c)

(Continued)

Under the Writs of Civil Proceedings, Yiying
requests the Huadu People’s Court to:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

order Yaji and EDS Wellness to
forthwith and jointly pay to Yiying the
outstanding management fees from
February 2012 to January 2014 in the
aggregate amount of RMB2,866,000
(equivalent to HK$3,620,000) and the
default payment until the day of actual
repayment (which is in the aggregate
amount of RMB1,369,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,729,000) as at 31 January 2014),
totalling RMB4,235,000 (equivalent to
HK$5,349,000);

order Yaji and EDS Wellness to
forthwith and jointly pay to Yiying the
outstanding utilities and miscellaneous
fees from February 2012 to January
2014 in the aggregate amount of
RMB2,500 (equivalent to HK$3,100) and
the interest loss until the day of actual
repayment of RMB300 (equivalent
to HK$400) as at 31 January 2014),
totalling RMB2,800 (equivalent to
HK$3,500);

order the appraisal fee of RMB8,000
(equivalent to HK$10,000) for the
security for the application for
preservation of property be borne
jointly by Yaji and EDS Wellness; and

order all costs of the legal proceedings
be borne jointly by Yaji and EDS
Wellness.
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55. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(c)

(Continued)

With reference to the announcements of
EDS Wellness dated 30 April 2010, 5 April
2012, 4 July 2012, 24 July 2012, 3 August
2012, 21 August 2012, 28 September 2012,
26 October 2012, 1 November 2012, 21
December 2012, 29 January 2013 and 25
April 2013 in relation to, among others, the
proposed acquisition of a company which
held the entire equity interest in Yaji, the
termination of such proposed acquisition
and the legal proceedings against Mr. Shum.
Although Yaji was once a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the target company to be
acquired by the EDS Wellness Group, such
proposed acquisition was terminated and
the EDS Wellness Group has never acquired
any equity interest in Yaji.

Having examined a copy of the Letter of
Confirmation enclosed with the Writ 2
and reviewed the internal records of EDS
Wellness and enquired with the former
management of EDS Wellness at the relevant
times, EDS Wellness considers that the
signature of the alleged representative of
EDS Wellness on the Letter of Confirmation
was not signed by any authorised
representative of EDS Wellness and may
be forged for, among others, the following
reasons:

() the signature of the alleged
representative of EDS Wellness on the
Letter of Confirmation was different
from those of the former directors
and the chief executive officer of EDS
Wellness at the relevant times;

(i) the company chop affixed to the
Letter of Confirmation was not the one
commonly used by EDS Wellness for
the execution of documents;

(iii) the style of the signature and the
handwriting of the date of execution
of the alleged representative of EDS
Wellness highly resemble those of Yaji
on the same Letter of Confirmation;

(c)

e M BRME
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55. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(c) (Continued)

(iv)

the internal records of EDS Wellness
do not show that EDS Wellness has
executed or approved the Letter of
Confirmation; and

the former chairman and executive
director, the former vice-chairman and
executive director and the former chief
executive officer of EDS Wellness at
the relevant times have confirmed that
(1) they had never seen or signed the
Letter of Confirmation; (2) the Letter of
Confirmation had never been tabled for
discussion in any meetings of directors
of EDS Wellness they attended and
they had never passed any resolution
in any meeting of directors of EDS
Wellness to approve the Letter of
Confirmation or authorised any person
to represent EDS Wellness to sign the
Letter of Confirmation; and (3) they are
not aware of any person having signed
the Letter of Confirmation for and on
behalf of EDS Wellness.

EDS Wellness has instructed the PRC legal
advisers to defend the two cases. Three
hearings were held by the Huadu People’s
Court on 16 June 2014, 30 June 2014 and
15 August 2014 respectively.

On 24 September 2014, the EDS Wellness
Group received the judgments of the Civil
Proceedings (the “Civil Proceedings
Judgments”) issued by the Huadu People’s
Court on 19 September 2014, pursuant to
which, the Huadu People’s Court made the
following principal orders:

(i)

order Yaji to pay to Yiying within
10 days from the date of the
Civil Proceedings Judgments the
outstanding management fees in the
total sum of RMB2,616,000 (equivalent
to HK$3,304,000) and the default
payment until the day of actual
repayment; and

dismiss the claims against EDS
Wellness set out in the Writs of Civil
Proceedings.
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55. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(c)

(Continued)

Pursuant to the Civil Proceedings
Judgments, Yaji and Yiying may, within 15
days from receipt of the Civil Proceedings
Judgments, lodge an appeal to the
Intermediate People’s Court of Guangzhou
City, Guangdong Province of the People’s
Republic of China (the “Intermediate
People’s Court”) against the Civil
Proceedings Judgments and EDS Wellness
may, within 30 days from receipt of the Civil
Proceedings Judgments, lodge an appeal to
the Intermediate People’s Court against the
Civil Proceedings Judgments.

On 3 December 2014, EDS Wellness was
informed by its legal advisers that Yaji
had filed appeals (the “Appeals”) against
the Civil Proceedings Judgments and the
hearing for the Appeals was fixed on 11
December 2014. Yiying had not filed any
appeals against the Civil Proceedings
Judgments.

No provision for the outstanding management
fees and utilities and miscellaneous fees was
made in the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014 as the Appeals were dismissed by the
Intermediate People’s Court on 14 January
2015 according to the relevant judgments
received by the PRC legal advisers to EDS
Wellness.
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56. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(@) On 23 January 2015, EDS Wellness received
a writ of summons in High Court Action No.
200 of 2015 issued by Mr. Shum as plaintiff
against EDS Wellness as defendant for the
following claims:

(i) the Judgment in High Court Action No.
1775 of 2012 dated 6 September 2013,
in which the Court of First Instance of
the High Court of Hong Kong adjudged
that Mr. Shum (1) do pay EDS Wellness
the sum of HK$39,128,000 together
with contractual interest thereon
calculated from day to day at the rate
of 30% per annum from 1 May 2013
to 6 September 2013, and thereafter
at judgment rate pursuant to s.48 of
High Court Ordinance until payment;
and (2) shall pay EDS Wellness the
costs of this action including the costs
of and occasioned by EDS Wellness’s
application for summary judgment to be
taxed if not agreed, entered against Mr.
Shum be set aside;

(i) loss and damages suffered by Mr.
Shum as a result of the Judgement
being obtained against him;

(iii) an order for discovery upon oath of all
matters relating to the Judgement;

(iv) an order for payment of all sums found
due to Mr. Shum together with the
interest thereon at such rate and for
such period as the High Court may
deem just pursuant to the High Court
Ordinance;

(v) the costs; and

(vi) further or other relief.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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56. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (Continued)

(b)

On 11 February 2015, Victory Peace
Holdings Limited (“Victory Peace”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
as purchaser entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party as vendor in
relation to the proposed acquisition of a
74.63% of the issued share capital of a
company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Board Listed Company”). The proposed
acquisition, if materialises, constitutes a
very substantial acquisition of the Company
under the Listing Rules and leads to a
change in control of the GEM Board Listed
Company and Victory Peace is required to
make a mandatory general offer under the
Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers
in cash for all the issued shares and
relevant securities of the GEM Board Listed
Company (other than those already owned
or agreed to be acquired by Victory Peace
and parties acting in concert with it). The
proposed acquisition requires an approval
from the shareholders at a special general
meeting of the Company. On 17 February
2015, the Company has submitted a draft
announcement relating to the proposed
acquisition to the Securities and Futures
Commission and the Stock Exchange for
review and vetting. As at the date of this
annual report, the draft announcement is
being reviewed by the Securities and Futures
Commission and the Stock Exchange and is
pending their clearance for publication.
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56. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (Continued)

(c)

On 17 February 2015, EDS Wellness
as issuer entered into the conditional
subscription agreement with six investors
(the “Subscribers”), which are independent
third parties, as subscribers in relation to
a proposed subscription of new ordinary
shares and convertible preferred shares
of EDS Wellness (the “Subscription
Shares”) by the Subscribers (the “Proposed
Subscription”). Subject to satisfaction and/
or waiver (as the case may be) of the terms
and conditions set out in the conditional
subscription agreement, the Subscribers, in
aggregate, will hold more than 50% of the
then voting rights in EDS Wellness. Pursuant
to the conditional subscription agreement,
one of the Subscribers who will subscribe
for the largest portion of the Subscription
Shares and who will own 42.86% of the
ordinary shares of EDS Wellness in issue
as enlarged by the allotment and issue
of the Subscription Shares (assuming
none of the convertible preferred shares
of EDS Wellness to be subscribed by the
Subscribers are converted) and 40.00%
of the ordinary shares of EDS Wellness as
enlarged by the allotment and issue of the
Subscription Shares and upon conversion
in full of the convertible preferred shares
of EDS Wellness to be subscribed by
the Subscribers, has undertaken to EDS
Wellness that, following and subject to
completion of the conditional subscription
agreement, it will make an unconditional
mandatory general offer (the “Offer”) in
compliance with the Hong Kong Code on
Takeovers and Mergers in cash for all the
ordinary shares of EDS Wellness (other than
those already owned by or agreed to be
acquired by it and parties acting in concert
with it including a certain number of the
ordinary shares of EDS Wellness held by the
Company (which is considered a party acting
in concert with the Subscribers as a result of
certain non-disposal undertakings between
it and the Subscribers) in respect of which
the Company has undertaken not to accept
the Offer). The Proposed Subscription, if
materialises, constitutes a deemed disposal
and major transaction of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ_—F—F+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

56. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (Continued)

(c)

(Continued)

On 5 March 2015, the Company and EDS
Wellness have submitted a draft joint
announcement relating to the Proposed
Subscription and the Offer to the Securities
and Futures Commission and the Stock
Exchange for review and vetting. As at the
date of this annual report, the draft joint
announcement is being reviewed by the
Securities and Futures Commission and
the Stock Exchange and is pending their
clearance for publication.

57. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

58.

Certain comparative amounts have been
reclassified to conform with current year
presentation. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, such reclassifications provide a
more appropriate presentation of the Group’s
business segments.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on
27 March 2015.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

IFHMBEE
For the year ended 31 December
BZ+-A=t+-HLEFE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
“B-mE -B-=f <-B--f -B-—F <—B-Bf
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FAET FET
Results £
Turnover = 20 110,755 25,793 67,442 79,174 78,200
Profit/(loss) from mERM/(BR)
operations 233,280 106,103 207,494 (187,854) (853,053)
Finance costs MEER (406) - - - (3,041)
Profit/(loss) before BRBLADER (F518)
taxation 232,874 106,103 207,494 (187,854) (356,094)
Income tax (expense)/ Fre®i (M%) K&
credit (7,727) (5,560) (1,236) 32,598 (363)
Profit/(loss) for the REFELEER Y
year from continuing REEHF,/
operations (E518) 225,147 100,543 206,258 (155,256) (356,457)
Profit/(loss) for the year ~ RECRILEEEHK
from discontinued ZREERER
operations (E5#8) 153 (3,306) — - =
Profit/(loss) for the year — AFEERF/(F8) 225,300 97,237 206,258 (155,256) (356,457)
Dividends ke - - — 198,359 33,063
At 31 December
R+=A=+-8
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
“E-mE 2= CZEBE-- T CZE-E%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FHET FET
Assets and liabilities EERER
Total assets EEARE 2,243,314 1,851,699 1,603,612 1,263,432 1,397,404
Total liabilities BEmE (86,873) (26,330) (81,660) (25.797) (52.741)
Net assets BEFE 2,156,441 1,825,369 1,521,952 1,237,635 1,344,663
Capital and reserves b NGIE 2SN
attributable to the RAK
owners of the Company 2,144,651 1,825,372 1,521,954 1,237,636 1,344,663
Non-controlling interest ~ JEiEMRHER 11,790 (3) ) (1) -
2,156,441 1,825,369 1,521,952 1,237,635 1,344,663

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED

Annual Report 2014
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